HYSC ot uirmaDise knuneSeekes OFFICIAL STATEMENT Ratings:
Bl el ooy S&P: “AAA” (stable outlook)
Dafed February 3, 2022 (see “OTHER INFORMATION -
Ratings” herein)

NEW ISSUE - Book-Entry-Only
In the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Certificates will be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes

under statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions existing on the date thereof, subject to the matters described under
“TAX MATTERS?” herein.

THE CERTIFICATES HAVE NOT BEEN DESIGNATED AS “QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS” FOR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

J ' $24,255,000
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
(Dallas, Tarrant and Ellis Counties)
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2022

Dated Date: February 15,2022 Due: August 15,2022 and February 15, as shown on page 2 hereof
Interest to accerue from Delivery Date

PAYMENT TERMS. . . Interest on the $24,255,000 City of Grand Prairie, Texas Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of
Obligation, Series 2022 (the “Certificates” or the “Obligations”) will accrue from the “Delivery Date”, estimated to be March 9,
2022, will be payable August 15 and February 15 of each year commencing August 15, 2022 until maturity or prior redemption,
and will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The definitive Certificates will be initially
registered and delivered only to Cede & Co., the nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”)
pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System described herein. Beneficial ownership of the Certificates may be acquired in
denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof within a stated maturity. No physical delivery of the Certificates will be
made to the beneficial owners thereof. Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates will be payable by the
Paying Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC
for subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the Certificates. See “THE OBLIGATIONS - Book-Entry-Only System”™
herein. The initial Paying Agent/Registrar is The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas (sce “THE
OBLIGATIONS - Paying Agent/Registrar”).

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE. . . The Certificates are issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the State, particularly
Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, and constitute direct obligations of the City, payable
from a combination of (i) the levy and collection of a direct and continuing ad valorem tax, within the limits prescribed by law, on
all taxable property located within the City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the “City™), and (ii) a limited pledge of $2,500 of the net
revenues of the City’s water and wastewater system, as provided in an ordinance adopted by the City Council on February 1, 2022,
which delegated the final pricing of the Certificates to a Pricing Officer pursuant to a pricing certificate which ordinance and pricing
certificate are jointly herein referred to as the “Certificate Ordinance” (see “THE OBLIGATIONS - Authority for Issuance of the
Certificates™).

PURPOSE. . . Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates will be used for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred
for (i) renovating, improving and equipping existing buildings and facilities, to-wit: library renovations and municipal facilities
renovations, (i) improving and equipping fire station and police facilities, (iii) acquiring emergency vehicles for fire services, (iv)

f constructing and improving streets and bridges within the City, including the associated engineering for such streets and bridges
and (v) professional services rendered in connection therewith,
{ CUSIP PREFIX: 386138
. MATURITY SCHEDULE & 9 DIGIT CUSIP
s ; : . 5 See Schedul Page 2
Financial Advisory Services EeeaaR IR

Provided By

LEGALITY, . . The Certificates are offered for delivery when, as and ifissued and received by the Initial Purchaser (the “Purchaser™)
of the Certificates and subject to the approving opinion of the Attorney General of Texas and the opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright
US LLP, Dallas, Texas, Bond Counsel (see Appendix C, “Form of Bond Counsel’s Opinion™) and certain other conditions. Certain
legal matters will be passed upon by West & Associates, L.L.P. as Disclosure Counsel for the City.

HilltopSecurities

DELIVERY. . . It is expected that the Certificates will be available for delivery through DTC on March 9, 2022.
A Hilltop Holdings Company.

FROST



MATURITY SCHEDULE

Principal Maturity  Interest  Initial cusIr
Amount Date Rate Yield Suffix'"!
$ 365000 B8/15/2022  3.000% 0.650% G62
855,000 2/152023  3.000% 0.750% G70
880,000 2/15/2024  3.000% 1.000% G88
905,000 2/15/2025  3.000% 1.150% G%%
940,000 2/15/2026 4.000% 1.310% H20
975,000 2/15/2027 4.000% 1.390% H38
1,015,000  2/15/2028  4.000% 1.460% H46
1,060,000 2/15/2029  4.000% 1.570% H53
1,100,000 271572030 4.000% 1.640% H61
1,145,000 21572031  4.000% 1.680% H79
1,190,000  2/15/2032 4.000% 1.750% H87
1,230,000 2/15/2033  2.000% 1,900% ¥ H9s
1,255,000 2/15/2034  2.000% 2.050% 128
1,280,000  2/15/2035  2.000% 2.220% 136
1,310,000  2/15/2036  3.000% 2.090% ' 144

CUSIP Prefix: 386138"

$4,175,000 3.000% Term Certificate due February 15, 2039 at a Price of 107.287% to Yield 2.180% @ - CUSIP No, 1?)77
$4,575,000 3.000% Term Certificate due February 15, 2042 at a Price of 106.641% to Yield 2.230% @ - CUSIP Ne., (VK26

({Interest o accrue from Delivery Date.)

(1} CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP Giobal
Services, managed by S&P Glebal Market Intelligence on behalf of thc American Bankers Association. This data is not
intended (o create a database and does not serve inany way as a substitute for the CUSIP Services. The City, the Financial
Advisor and the Purchaser take no responsibility for the accuracy of such numbers.

(2) Yield calculated based on the assumption that the Certificates denoted and sold at a premium wilt be redeemed on
February 15, 2032, the first optional call date for such Certificates, at a redemption price of par, plus accrued interest to

the redemption date.

OFPTIONAL REDEMPTION. . . The City reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Certificates having stated maturities on and afier
February 13, 2033, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on February 15, 2032, or
any date thereafter, at the par value thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption (see “THE OBLIGATIONS - Opticnal

Redemption of the Obligations™).

MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTION. . . The Certificates maturing on February 15 in the years 2039 and 2042 (the “Term
Certificates”) are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in pert prior to maturily at a price of par plus acerued interest to
the redemption date as described under “THE OBLIGATIONS — Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption.”

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)



A
NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

Page 2 of Legal Opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP
Re: “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2022"

extent that the enforceability thereof may be affected by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium, or other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights or the exercise of judicial discretion in
accordance with the general principles of equity.

2. Pursuant to section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the
date hereof (the “Code™), and existing regulations, published rulings, and court decisions
thereunder, and assuming continuing compliance after the date hereof by the City with the
provisions of the Ordinance relating to sections 141 through 150 of the Code, interest on the
Certificates for federal income tax purposes (@) will be excludable from the gross income, as
defined in section 81 of the Code, of the owners thereof, and (b) will not be included in computing
the alternative minimum taxable income of the owners thereof.

WE EXPRESS NO OPINION with respect to any other federal, state, or local tax consequences
under present law or any proposed legislation resulting from the receipt or accrual of interest on,
or the acquisition or disposition of, the Certificates. Ownership of tax-exempt obligations such as
the Certificates may result in collateral federal tax consequences to, among others, financial
institutions, life insurance companies, property and casualty insurance companies, certain foreign
corporations doing business in the United States, S corporations with subchapter C earnings and
profits, owners of an interest in a financial asset sacuritization investment trust, individual
recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, individuals otherwise qualifying for
the earned Income tax credit, and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued
indebtedness to purchase or carry, or who have paid or incurred certain expenses allocable to,
tax-exempt obligations.

OUR OPINIONS ARE BASED on existing law, which is subject to change. Such opinions are
further based on our knowledge of facis as of the date hereof. We assume no duty to update or
supplement aur opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thereafter come to our
attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may thereafter occur or become effective.
Moreover, our opinions are not a guarantee of result and are not binding on the Internal Revenue
Service: rather. such opinions represent our legal judgment based upon our review of existing jaw
that we deem relevant 1o such opinions and in reliance upon the representations and covenants
referenced above.

102809280.2/1001189140

This Official Sratement, which includes the cover page, maturily schedule, and 1he Appendices hereto, does not constitute an offer to sell or the solizilation of an offer
1o buy in any jurisdiction Lo any person 1o whom it is unlawful to make such offer, salicilation or sale.

Mo dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized 1o give information orto make any representation other than those confained it this Official Statement,
and, if given or made, such other information or representations must aof be relied upen.

The information sct Forth herein hos been obtained from the City and other sources believed to be reliable, but such infonnation is nof guaranieed as 1o accuracy or
completeness and is noi (o be construed as the prumise or guarantee of the City or the City's Financial Advisor. 'I'his Official Statement contains, in part, estimates and
watters af opinion which are not intended as statemenls of fact, and ne representation is made as 1o the correciness of such estimates and opinions, or that they will be
realized.

The information and expressions of opinion contained herein are subject to change without notee, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any =a le made
hereunder chall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the City or other maners described.

THE AGREEMENTS OF THE CITY AND GTHERS RELATED TQ TIIE OBLIGATIONS ARE COMNTAINED SOLELY IN THE CONTRACTS DESCRIBED
HEREIN. NEITHER THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR AMY GTHER STATEMENT MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER OR SALE OF THE
OBLIGATIONS [5 TO BE CONSTRUED AS CONSTITUTING AN AGREEMENT W1TH THE PURCHASERS OF THE OBLIGATIONS. INVESTORS SHOULD
READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL $STATEMENT, INCLUDING THE SCHEDULE AND ALIL APPENDICES ATTACHED HERETO, TOOBTAIN INFORMATION
ESSEMTIAL TO MAKING AN INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION,

THE OBLIGATIONS ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AND
CONSEQUENTLY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED THEREWITH, THE REGISTRATION, QUALIFICATION, OR EXEMPTION OF THE OBLIGATIONS [N
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAW PROVISIONS OF THE JURISDICTIONS IN WHICH THE OBLIGATIONS HAVE DEEN
REGISTERED, QUALIFIED, OR EXEMPTED SHOULD NOT BE REGARDED AS A RECOMMENDATION THEREOF.

All information contained in this Official Siatement is subject, in all respects, 10 the complete body of information contained in the original sources thereof and no
guaranty, warranty, or other representation is made ronceming the accuracy or completeness of the information herein. In panticular, oo opinion or representation is
rendered as 10 whether any projection will appraximate actual resuits, and all opinions, estimates and assumplions, whether or ol expressty identified as such, should
nat be censidered statements of fact,

Nonc of the Clty, the Financial Advisor, or the Initial Pu rchaser {as defined hergin) make any reptesentation regarding the information contained in this Otficial Stalement
regarding DTC or its Book-Eniry-Only System, as such information has been furnished by DTC. CUSI? numbers have been assigned 1o these issues by CUSIP Glabal
Services, and are mncluded solely for the convenience of the owners of the Obligations. Nose ol the City, the Financial Advisor, or the Purchaser shall be responsible
for the salection or correctness of the CUISIP numbers shown on the inside cover page.

This Official Stalement contains “forward-louking™ statements within Lie meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such siatements
may invalve known and unknown risks, oncertainties and other factors which may cause the acisal results, performance and achievemems 1o be dilferent from futuze
reeulis, performance and achievemenis expressed or implied by such forward-lnoking statemenis. Investors are eautioned that the arfuat resulis coull differ
materially from those set forih in the forward-looking statements {sce “OTIER INFORMATION — Forward-Looking Stalemens Disclaimer™).

References 1o web site addresses presented herein are for informational purposes only and may be in the form of a hyperlink solefy for the reader’s convenience, Unless
specified otherwise, such websites and the information or links contained therein are not incnmoraled inlo, and are ol a part of, this Official Siatement for any purposes.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY

This summary is subject in all respects to the nore complets information and definitions contained or incerporated in this Official
Statement, The offering of the Obligations to potential investors is made only by means of this entire Official Statement. No
person is authorized to detach this summary from this Official Statement or to otherwise use it without the entive Official Statement,

THECITY oo verreveeivirres

THE CERTIFICATES. .. .v0vvsveins

PAYMENT OF INTEREST (F THE

CERTIFICATES. o1 vvvivieivinieeeans

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE

FOR THE CERTIFICATES ..o,

SECURITY FOR THE

CERTIFICATES oovieniveeiie e

REDEMPTION OF

THE ORLIGATIONS ..oy

TAX EXEMPTION .oiseireveeiivesninieres

USE oF PROCEEDS FOR THE

CERTIFICATES .oovvvconvivcvsnrnenrieen

The City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the “City”) is a political subdivision and heme rule municipal
corporation of the State of Texas, located in Dallas, Tarrant and Ellis Counties, Texas. The City
covers approximately 81 square miles (see “INTRODUCTION - Deseription of the City™).

.. The Certificates are issued as $24,255,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of

Obligation, Series 2022, The Certificates are issued as seriul certificates maturing on August
15, 2022 and on February 15 in each of the years 2023 through 2036 inclusive and as term
certificates maturing on February 135, in the years 2039 and 2042, (see “THE OBLIGATIONS
— Description of the Obligations”, “THE OBLIGATIONS - Optional Redemption of the
Obligations” and “THE OBLIGATIONS - Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemtion™).

Interest on the Certificates accrues from the Delivery Date, estimated to be March 9, 2022, and
is payable August 15, 2022, and cach February 15 and August 15 thereafier uniil maturity or
prior redemption {see “THE OBLIGATIONS - Description of the Obligations”, “THE
OBLIGATIONS - Optional Redemption of the Obligations”, and “THE OBLIGATIONS —
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption™).

.. The Cerlifivates are authorized and issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the

State, particularly Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, as amended,
and the Certificate Ordinance (see “THE OBLIGATIONS — Authority for Issuance of the
Certificates™).

The Centificates constitute direct abligations of the City, payable from a combination of {i) the
levy and collection of a direct and continuing ad valorem tax, within the limits prescribed by
taw, on all taxable property within the City and {ii) a limited pledge of $2,500 of the nel revenues
of the City’s water and wastewater system, as provided in the Certificate Ordinance (see “TIIE
OBLIGATIONS — Security and Source of Payment for the Certificates™.

The City reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Obligations having stated maturities on and
after February 15, 2033, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral
multiple thercof, on February 13, 2032 or any date thereafler, at the par value thereof plus
accrued interest to the date of redemption (sec “THE OBLIGATIONS - Optional Redemption
of the Obligations™). Additionally, the Obligations maturing on February 15 in the years 2039
and 2042 are subject 1o mandatory sinking fund redemption in part prior to maturity at the price
of par plus accrucd interest to the date of redemption (see “THE OBLIGATIONS — Mandatory
Sinking Fund Redemption™),

In the epinion of Bond Counsel, the interest on the Obligations will be excludable from gross
income for federal income tax purposes under existing law, subject to the matiers described
under the caption “TAX MATTERS” herein.

Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates will be used for the purpese of paying contractual
obligations to be incurred for (i) renovating, improving and equipping existing buildings and
facilities, to-wit: library renovations and municipal facilities renovations, (ii) improving and
equipping fire station and police facilities, (i} acquiring emergency vehicles for fire services,
(iv) constructing and improving siveets and bridges within the City, including the associated
engineering for such sireets and bridges and (v) professional services rendered in connection
therewith.

The Obligations have been rated *AAA” with a {stable cutlook) by S&P Global Ratings, a
division of S&P Globat Inc, (“S&P”) (see *OTHER INFORMATION — Ratings™,.

A
NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP
2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 36800
Dallas, Texas 75201-7932
United States

Tel +1 214 855 8000
Fax +1 214 855 8200
nortonrosefulbright.com

[closing date]

IN REGARD to the authorization and issuance of the “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Combination
Tax and Revenue Cerlificates of Obligation, Series 2022, dated February 15, 2022, in the
principai amount of $24,266,000 (the “Certificates”), we have examined into their issuance by the
City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the “City"), solely to express legai opinions as to the validity of the
Certificates and the exclusion of the interest on the Certificates from gross income for federal
income tax purposes, and for no other purpose. We have not been requested to investigate or
verify, and we neither expressly nor by implication render herein any opinion concerning, the
financial condition or capabilities of the City, the disclosure of any financial or statistical
information or data pertaining to the City and used in the sale of the Certificates, or the sufficiency
of the security for or the value or marketability of the Certificates.

THE CERTIFICATES are issued in fully registered form only and in denominations of $5,000 or
any integral multiple thereof (within a maturity). The Certificates mature on August 15, 2022 and
February 15 in each of the years specified in a pricing certificate (the “Pricing Certificate”)
executed pursuant to an ordinance adopted by the City Gouncil of the City authorizing the
issuance of the Certificates (and, jointly with the Pricing Certificate, the *Ordinance”), unless
redeemed prior to maturity in accordance with the terms stated on the Certificates. The
Certificates accrue interest from the dates, at the rates, and in the manner and interest is payable
on the dates, all as provided in the Ordinance.

IN RENDERING THE OPINIONS hereln we have examined and rely upon (i} original or certified
copies of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Certificates, including the Ordinance and
an examination of the initial Certificate executed and delivered by the City (which we found to be
in due form and properly executed); (i) certifications of officers of the City relating to the expected
use and investment of proceeds of the sale of the Certificates and certain other funds of the City
and (i) other documentation and such matters of law as we deem relevant. In the examination of
the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Certificates, we have assumed the authenticity of
all documents submitted to us as originals, the conformity to original copies of all documents
submitted to us as cerlified copies, and the accuracy of the statements contained in such
documents and certifications.

BASED ON OUR EXAMINATIONS, IT IS QUR OPINION that, under the applicable laws of the
United States of America and the State of Texas in force and effect on the date hereof

1. The Certificates have been duly authorized by the City and, when issued in
compliance with the provisions of the Ordinance, are valid, legally binding and enforceable
obligations of the City, payable from an ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed by law,
upon all taxable property in the City, and are additionally payable from and secured by a limited
pledge of the Net Revenues {as defined in the Ordinance) of the City’s combined water and
wastewater system in the manner and to the extent provided in the Ordinance, except to the

Morten Rose Fulbright US LLP is a limited liabillly partnership registerad under lhe laws of Texas. 103809280.2/1001189140
Norlon Rese Fulbrigil US LLF, Norten Rose Fulbright LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright Australia, Morton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP and Norton Rose
Fulbright South Africa In¢ are separate legal enlifies and all of them are members of Norlon Rose Fulbright Varein, a Swiss verein. Norton Rose Fulbright
Wereln helps coordinale the activifies of the members but does not ilseif provide {egal services o cllents. Delails of each entity, with certain reguiatory
information, are availabte al norlonrosefulbright.com,



BOooK-ENTRY-ONLY

SVETEM veoreeereeesseeseessssiveranenss The definitive Obligations will be initially registered and delivered only to Cede & Co., the
nominee of DTC pursuant 10 the Book-Entry-Only System described herein. Beneficial
ownership of the Obligations may be acquired in denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples
thercof. No physical delivery of the Obligations will be made to the beneficial owners thereof.
Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Obligations will be payable by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co., which wil} make distibution of the amounts so paid lo the
patticipating members of DTC for subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the
Obligations {scc “THE OBLIGATIONS - Book-Entry-Only System”) .

PAYMENT RECORD ..................... The City has not defaulted on its general obligaiion bonds since 1939 when defauits were
comrecied without refunding and has never defaulted on ifs revenue bonds.

(This Page Intentionally Blani)

(THE, REMAINDER OF TH1S PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)




SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Net G.O.
Taxable Tax Debt
Assessed  Outstanding
Valuation at End

Per Capita of Year™

Ratio of Net
G.O, Tax Debt Net
to Taxable  G.O. Tax
Assessed Debt

Valuation  Per Capita

Fiscal Year Taxable
Ended Estimated Assessed
9/30  Populat ion'”  Valuation”
2018 187,000  $13,521,607,208 ¥
2019 194,000 14,755,015,503 ©
2020 194,000 16,325,123,108 ©
2021 195,200 16,980,301,115 7
2022 200,640 18,125,734,480 ¥

(1) Source: City Staff.

$ 72,308 $211,985,000
76,057 307,720,000
84,150 285,465,000
86,989 370,245,000
90,340 371,337,000

1.57% $ 1,134

2,09% 1,586
1.75% 1,471
2.18% 1,897
2.05% 1,851

(2) As reported by the Dallas Central Appraisal District, Tarrant Appraisal District, and Ellis Central Appraisal District on the
City's annual State Property Tax Board Reports; subject to change during the ensuing year.
(3) Projected excludes revenue supported general obligation debt. See "TABLE 9 - Computation of Self-Supporting Debt"
(4) Includes taxable incremental value of approximately $281,406,819 that is not available for the City's general use,
(5) Includes taxable incremental value of approximately $381,547,594 that is not available for the City's general use,
(6) Includes taxable incremental value of approximately $424,344,427 that is not available for the City's general use,
(7) Includes taxable incremental value of approximately $760,000,000 that is not available for the City's general use.
(8) Includes taxable incremental value of approximately $870,000,000 that is not available for the City's general use,
(9) On January 18, 2022, the City approved General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022 A, B and C (the “Refunding Bonds")
to refinance a portion of the City’s outstanding general obligation debt for debt service savings through a private placement. The
Refunding Bonds have an anticipated delivery date of February 16, 2022. The outstanding general obligation debt excludes the
debt refunded by the Refunding Bonds and includes the Refunding Bonds. Includes the Certificates.

Beginning Balance
Total Revenue

Total Expenditures
Net Transfers

Sale of Capital Assets
Net Funds Available
Ending Balance

GENERAL FUND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT SUMMARY

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
$ 45,186,271 $ 33,745,051 $ 31,346,705 $ 31,011,895 £ 27,748,646
159,544,060 150,707,356 134,912,713 126,720,322 122,517,676
128,429,131 127,629,868 123,411,609 116,161,238 108,081,822
(16,768,667) (12,704,188) (10,106,151) (11,110,985) (11,794,063)
1,115,891 1,067,920 1,003,393 886,711 621,458
15,462,159 11,441,220 2,398,346 334,810 3,263,249

$ 60,648,430 b 45,186,271 $ 33,745,051

$ 31,346,705 $ 31,

011,895

For additional information regarding the City, please contact:

Caryn Riggs
criggs@GPTX.org

Chief Financial Officer

City of Grand Prairie

317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas 75050
(972) 237-8090

Brady Olsen
bolsen@GPTX.org
Treasury and Debt Manager
City of Grand Prairie

317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas 75050
(972) 237-8099

Jim §, Sabonis
Managing Director

jim.sabonis(@hilliopsecurities.com

Andre Ayala
Senior Vice President

andre.ayalaf@hilltopsecurities.com

Hilltop Securities Inc.

717 N. Harwood Street, Suite 3400

Dallas, Texas 75201
(214)953-4195

Hilltop Securities Inc.

Dallas, Texas 75201
(214) 953-4184

717 N. Harwood Street, Suite 3400

APPENDIX C

FORM OF BOND COUNSEL’S OPINION



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

O. Tax Abatements and Economic Incentive Agreements

The City has incentive agreements with companies which may refund or rebate certain amounts of taxes
based on performance indicators. These agreements are governed by Chapter 312 of the Texas Local
Government Code. Recipients may be eligible based on their impact to the City's economy, as usually
measured by job creation. Agreements may ciso confain recapture or ‘clawback’ provisions in the event
of non-performance of the agreement siandards. The City's Management Services division reviews the
performance of the companies under these agreements for their compiiance with stated standards. As
of the 2019 certified roil jused for 2020 fiscal year) the Cify's abaftement agreements with three companies
resulted in $5.584,790 in appraised values, totaling $57,518 in taxes abated on the 2019 certified fax roll
(used for the 2020 fiscal year].

P. Subsequent Events
In February 2021, the City issued $23,215,000 in Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
Bonds, Series 2021. Proceeds from the sale are expected fo be used to acquire, construct, improve, and

equip facilities; and construct street improvements.

The City has evaluated all other events or transactions that occurred after September 30, 2020 up through
March 11, 2021, the date the financial statements were available 1o be issued.
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CITY OFFICIALS, STAFF AND CONSULTANTS

ELECTED OFFICIALS
Lengh of Term
Service Expires Qccopation
Ron Jensen 17 Years May 2022 President and Owner, Conirol Products
Mayor
Jorja Jackson Clemson G Years May 2023 President, Store Service Ine.
Place 1 - District 1
Dennis King 1 Year May 2022 Pastor
Place 2 - Diistrict 2
Mike Del Bosgue 2 Years May 2023 Founder/CEO, Intire Health
Place 3 - District 3
Mayor Pro-Tem
John Topez 1 Year May 2022 Administralive Supervisor at the Federal Rescrve Bank of Dallas
Place 4 - District 4
Cole Humphreys ] Year May 2024 Owner, Austin [nsurance
Place 5 - District 3
Kurt Johnson <1 Year May 2024 Government Public Servant, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Place 6 - Distric1 6
Jeft Copeland O Years May 2023 President, Federal Title, Ine.
Place 7 - At Large
Steve Ezeonu < 1 Year May 2024 Educator
Place 8 - At Larg
SELECTED ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF
Lengh of Service Total Municipal
MName Position 1n Grand Praitie Government Experience
Steve Dye City Manager 9 Years 34 Yeurs
Chery| De Leon Deputy City Manager 2 Year 20 Years
Bill Hills Deputy City M anager 32 Years 45 Years
Megan Mahan City Attorney 9 Years i1 Years
Mona Lisa Galicia City Secrelary 17 Years 17 Years
Caryn Riges Chief Financial fficer < | Year 17 Years
Brady Qlsen Treasury and Debl M anager 2 Year T years
Kathleen Mercer Budget Director 19 Years 21 Years
Gabe Johnson Public Works Director T Years 11 Years
CONSULTANTS AND ADVISORS
AUAIOTS oo iirsrarr e e rsscn pesrms e bbb b4 rereereennes Weaver, L.ILP.
Dallas, Texas
Bond Counsel ...oouninnin reerenennene . Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP
Dallas, Texas
Disciosure COMNSEEL . .rviveerrcerieisrenini s aress s srans coreereeeeee. West & Associates, L.LP.
Dallas, Texas
Financial AdviSor. e nonin crem-Hilltop Securities Inc.
Dallas, Texas
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

RELATING TO

524,255,000
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2022

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement which includes the Appendices hereto, provides certain information regarding the issuance of $24,255,000
City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2022 (the “Ceriificates” or the
“Obligations™). Except as atherwise indicated herein, capitalized terms used in this Official Statement have the same meanings
assigned 1o such terms in the ordinance adopted by the City Council on February 1, 2022, which delegated the final pricing of the
Certificates to a Pricing Officer pursuant to a pricing certificate which ordinance and the pricing certificate are jointly herein
referred to as the “Certificate Ordinance.™

There follows in this Official Statement descriptions of the Obligations and certain information regarding the City of Grand Prairie,
Texas (the “City™} and its finances. All descriptions of documents contained herein are only summaries and ate qualified in their
entivety by reference to each such document. Copies of such documents may be obtained from the City’s Financial Advisor, Hilltop
Securities Ine., (“HilltopSecurities™) Dallas, Texas.

DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY. ., The City is a political subdivision and home rule municipal corporation of the State of Texas
(the “State™), duly organized and existing under the laws of the State, including the City’s home rule charter (the “Home Rule
Charter”). The City first adopted its Home Rule Charter in 1948, The City operates under a Counci I/Manager form of government
with a City Council comprised of the Mayor and eight Council members whao are elected for staggered three-year tetms. The City
Manager is the chief administrative officer for the City. Some of the services that the City provides ae: public safety (police and
fire protection), sireets, water and sanitary sewer utilities, environmental health services, parks and recreation, public transportation,
public facilities, planning and zoning, and general administrative services, ‘The 2010 populations was 175,396 while the 2020
Census population was 196,100. The estimated pepulation for 2022 is 200,640. The City covers approximately 81 square miles.

INFECTIOUS DISEASE OUTBREAK — COVEID-19... In March 2020, the World Health Organization and the President of the United
States separately declarcd the outbreak of a respitatory disease caused by a nove? coronavirus (" COVID-1 4" to be a public health
emergency. On March 13, 2020, the Governor of Texas {the "Governor") declared a state of disaster for all counties in the State
because of the effects of COVID-19. Subsequently, in response to a rise in COVID-19 infections in the State and pursuant to the
Chapter 418 of the Texas Government Code, the Governer issued a number of executive orders intended to help limit the spread
of COVID-19 and mitigate injury and the loss of lifs, including limitations imposed on business operations, social gatherings and
other activities,

Over the ensuing year, COVID-19 negatively affected commerce, travel and businesses locally and globally, and negatively
afTected economic growth worldwide and within the U.S., the State and the City. Following the widespread release and distribution
of various COVID-19 vaccines beginning in December 2020 and a decrease in active COVID-I9 cases generally in the United
States, state governments (including Texas) have started to lift business and social limitations associated with COVID-19, Under
executive orders in effect as of the date of this Official Statement, there are no COVID-19 related operating limits for any busincss
or other establishment in Texas, The Governor refains the right to impose additional restrictions on activities if needed in order to
mitigate the effects of COVID-19. Additional information regarding exceutive orders issued by the Governor is accessible on the
website of the Governor at hiips://gov texas.gov/, Neither the information on, nor accessed through, such website of the Governor
is incorporated by reference, either expressly ar by implication, inio this Official Statement.

With the easing or removal of associated governmental vestrictions, economic aclivity has increased. However, there are no
assurances that economic activity will continue or increase at the same rate as before the COVID-19 pandemic or following the
easing or removal of resitrictions, especially if there are future cutbreaks of COVID-19 or variants of COVID-19. The COVID-19
pandemic may result in lasting changes in some businesses and social practices, which could affect business activity and limit the
growth of or reduce the City's ad valorem and sales tax collections, [n addition, further or extended reductions in the value of stocks
and other investments could impact employee retitement plans or other funds and could require actions by the Statc. The City
camnot predict the long-term economic effect of COVID-19 or the effect of any future outbreak of COVID-19, or variants of
COVID-19, or a similar virus on the City's operations or financial condition.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

N. Segment Information for Enterprise Funds

The City maintains five enterpiise funds - water and wastewater, solid waste, golf, airport, and
storm water utility activities, At September 30, 2020, the Municipat Airport Fund had outstanding revenue-

backed certificates of obligations, Segment information for this Fund is as follows:

tunicipal
Alrport
Condensed statement of nel position:
Currenl cisefs % 798,634
Capilal qssets 14,508,555
Deferrad outilows of resocurces 34,666
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 17,341,855
Current liabilities 327.36%
Long-term tiabillHes 870,648
Dafarred inflows of resources 423911
Tolal lickililies and deferred inflows of resources 1,440,548
Met pasition: Nel investment in capital assets 15,783,555
MNed posiHon: Unrestiiclied 117,352
Tolal net posifion % 15200507
Condensed statemnent of revenues, expenses and changes in net position:
Sales to custorners 3 1,205,500
Intergovernmenial revenue 26,306
Miscellcneous 701,148
Total operating revenues 2002254
Depreciation 882,286
Cther operating expenses 1,613772
Total operafing expenses 2496058
Interest expense {38.760)
Total nonoperating revenues [expersas) {38,760}
Loss before transfers {531,844)
Transfers in 621,633
Transfers oul {48,000)
Change inne! position 41.769
Net position ot the beginning of the year 15,859,138
Net position allhe end of the year 3 15,900,907
Condensed statement of cash flows:
Net cash provided {used) by:
Operating octivities 465,233
Meoncapital financing aclivities 273,633
Capital and related finghcing activilies {1.477.202)
Investing activities -
Beginning cosh and cash equivalent balonces 983,907
Ending ¢ash and cash equivalenl balonces 3 347,271
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Mountain Creek Regional Wastewater System Contract {System)

The City entered into @ centroct in 2002 which is in effect for the entire useful life of the System. Although
the City does not yet deliver flows 1o this System, the City is obligated fo pay annual minimum fees
equivalent to 21.9 million gallons of flow. For the fiscal year ended Sepiember 30, 2020, the City paid
$40,368 to the System.

Master and Other Agreements

The City and Texas NextStage, LP [NextStage) entered into agreements [development agreements, lease
agreements and other anciliary agreements) on January 10, 2001, to design, develop and construct a
performance hall (Performance Hall}. Construction of ihe Performance Hall began in July 2000 and was
completed in February 2001. Under the agreements, the City purchased the Performance Hall from
Nextstage for $15 million with the proceeds from the $17.2 miilion TIF fax and tax increment certificate of
obligation bond issue in fiscal year 2001. NextStage initially leased the Petformance Hall from the City
under o twenty one-year lease. Effective September 18, 2002, Anschutz Texas, L. P. assumed ihe lease
obligations of NextStage and became lessee and operator of the Performance Hall. The lease between
the City and Anschuiz Texas, L. P. expires January 23, 2023. Monthly lease payments from the lessee of the
Performance Hall are used to pay debt service on bonds issued by the City for the purchase of the
Performance Hall.

The City and the Texas Airhogs Baseball Club entered into agreements [development, lease, and other
ancillary agreements) on June 26, 2007 to develop, construct and operate a minor lecgue professional
baseball stadivm. The funding for the stadium was accomplished through a one-eighth cent scales tax
approved by the citizens of Grand Prairie. Construction began in July 2007 and was completed In
May 2008,

Ground Lease - The City entered into alease agreement with the Sports Corporation for the land onwhich
the stadium was built. The lease runs through June 25, 2036 with an annuatl base rent of $50,000.

Stadium Lease — On October 19, 2014, the City entered into o four-year lease agreement with Nexiel
Promotional, LLC. In addition to Airhogs home baseball games, Nextel has unlimited use of the Stadium
to hold other sporting and entertainment events. Nexiel pays the City, in gdvance, a monthly lease
payment of $7,137 and ten percent of the total net profit generated by Neltex ai, in, or through the
stadium. Nextel is responsible for all utility services and the City is responsible for the maintenance of the
bullding, landscaping, irgation, art, and playgrounds.

Consfruction Commitments
The City has several approved outstanding major capital projects as of September 30, 2020. The City’s
tofal committed but unexpended expenditures for such authorized capital projects at year-end
approximates $85,569,753. Funding for these contracts will be received through various capital projects
funds and enterprise funds.

88

Some of the financial and operating data contained herein are as of dates and for periods prior to the economic impact of COVID-
19 and measures instituled to slow it. Accordingly, such information is nat necessarily indicative of the current financial condition
ot futurc prospects of the City. The City continues to monitor the spread of COVID-19 and is working with local, State, and national
agencies fo address the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic upon the City. While the extent of the impact of COVID-1%
on the City cannot be fully quantified at this time, the continued oulbreak of COVID-19 could have an adverse effect on the City's
operations and financial condition, and the effect could be material.

PLAN OF FINANCING

PURPOSE . . . The Certificates are being issued for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for (i} renovating,
improving and equipping existing buildings and faciiities, to-wit: library renovations and municipal facilities renovations, (i)
improving and equipping fire station and police facilities, {iii) acquiring emergency vehicles for fire services, {iv) constructing and
improving streets and bridges within the City, including the associated engineering for such streets and bridges and (v} professional
services rendered in connection therewith.

USE 0F CERTIFICATE PROCEEDS. . . Proceeds fiom the sale of the Certificates are expected to be expended as follows:

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

Par Amount of Certificates $24,255,000.00
Premium 1,972,539.25
TOTAL SOURCES: $26,227,539.25

USES OF FUNDS:

Deposi to Project Fund $26,000,000.00

Costs of Issuance 145,281.38

1nitial Purchaser's Discount 82,257.87

TOTAL USES: $26,227,539,25
THE OBLIGATIONS

DESCRIPTION OF THE OBLIGATIONS. . . ‘The Obligations are dated February 15, 2022, and are scheduled to mature on August 15,
2022 and February 15 in each of the years and in the amounis shown on page 2 hereof, Interest on the Obligations will acerue from
the Delivery Date, estimated to be March 9, 2022, will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, and
will be payable on each August 15 and February 15 until maturity or prior redemption, commencing August 15, 2022, The
definitive Obligations will be issued only in fully registered form in any integral muitipie of $5,000 for any one maturity and will
be initially registered and delivered only to Cede & Co., the nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York
(“DTC") pursuant fo the Book-Entry-Only System described herein. No physical delivery of the Obligations will be made to
the beneficial owners thereof. Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Obligations will be payable by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for
subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the Obligations. See “THE OBLIGATIONS - Bock-Entry-Only System™ herein.

Interest on the Obligations shall be paid to the registered owners appearing on the regisiration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar
at the close of business on the Record Date (heteinafier defined), and such interest shall be paid (i) by check sent United States
Mail, first class postage prepaid to the address of the regisiered owner recorded in the registration books of the Paying
Agent/Registrar or (i) by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registiar tequested by, and at the risk and expense
of, the registered owner. Principal of the Obligations will be paid to the registered owner at their stated marurity or upon carlier
redemption upon presentation to designated payment/transfer office of the Paying Agent/Registiar; provided, however, that so long,
as Cede & Co. (or other DTC nominee) is the registered owner of the Obligations, all payments will be made as described under
“THE OBLIGATIONS - Book-Entry-Only System” herein. If the date for any payment on the Obligations shall be a Saturday,
Sunday, a Jegal holiday or a day when banking institutions in the city where the designated payment/transier office of the Paying
Agent/Registrar is located are authorized to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not
such a day, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the date payment was due.

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE OF THE CERTIFICATES. . . The Certificates are being issued pursuant to the Constitution and general

laws of the State, particularly Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, and the Certificate
Ordinance.

SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT FOR THE CERTIFICATES. . . The Certificates are payable fiom a combination of (i} a
continuing direct annual ad valorem tax levied by the City, within the limits preseribed by law, upon all taxable property within
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the City and (ji) a limited pledge of $2,500 of the net revenues of the City’s water and wastewater system, as provided in the
Certificale Ordinance.

TaX RATE LIMITATION. . . All taxable property within the City is subject to the assessment, levy and collection by the City of a
continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax sufficient to provide for the payment of principal of and interest on all ad valorem tax debt
within the limits prescribed by law, Article XI, Section 5, ofthe Texas Constitution is applicable to the City, and Hmits its maximummn
ad valorem tax rate to $2.50 per each $100 of Taxable Assessed Valuation for all City purposes. The Home Rule Charter of the
City adopts the constitutionally authorized maximum tax rate of $2.50 per each $100 of Taxablc Assessed Valuation,
Administratively, the Attorney General of the State of Texas will permit allocation of $1.50 of the $2.50 maxinum tax rate for all
general abligation debt, based on a 90% tax colleciion rate as calculated at the time of issuance.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION OF THE OBLIGATIONS. . . The City reserves the right, at its opticn, to redeem Obligations having stated
maturities on and after February 15, 2033, in whole or in pait in principal amounds of $5,000 or any integral moltiple thereof, on
February 15, 2032, or any date thereafier, at (he pur value thereof plus acerued interest to the date of redemption. If less than all of
the Obligations are to be redeemed, the City may select the maturities of the Obligations to be redeemed. if less than all of the
Obligations of any maturity are to be redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar (or DTC while the Obligations are in Book-Entry-Only
form}) shall determine by lot the Obligations, or pottions thereof, within such maturity to be redeemed. If an Obligation {or any
portion of the principal sum thereof) shall have been called for redempiion and notice of such redemnption shall have been given,
such Obligation (of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed) shall become due and payable on such redemption date and
intevest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the redemption date, provided funds for the payment of the redemption price
and accroed interest thereon are held by the Paying Agentv/Registrar on the redemption date,

MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTION ... The Certificates maturing on February 15, in the years 2039 and 2042 (the “Term
Certificates”) are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on the dates and in the principal amounts shown below at the price
of par plus acerued interest to the date of redemption:

erm Certificates Due Febr 15, 2039 Term Certificates Dug Febrmary 13, 2042
Redemption Date Principal Amount Redempiion Pate Principal Amount
February 15, 2037 $1,350,000 February 15, 2040 $1,480,000
February 15, 2038 $1,390,000 February 15, 2041 $1,525,000
February 13, 2038 (maturity) 1,435,000 Februaty 13, 2042 (msturity) $1,570,000

Approximately forty-five (45) days prior to each mandatory redemption date for the Term Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar
shall select by lot the numbers of the Term Certificates within the applicable stated matusity to be redeemed on the next following
February 15 from moneys set aside for that purpose in the Certificate Fund (as defined in the Ordinance). Any Termn Cerlificates
not selected for prior redemption shall be paid on the date of its stated maturity.

The principal amount of the Term Certificates required to be redeemed on any mandatery redemption date pursuant to the operation
of the mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions shall be reduced, at the option of the City, by the principal amount of any
Term Certificates which, at least 50 days prior to a mandatory redemption date (1) shall have been acyuired by the City and
delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation ot (2) shall have been redeemed pursuant to the optional redemption
provisions and not theretofore credited against a mandatory redemptien requirement,

NOTICE OF REDPEMPTION. . . Not less than 30 days prior to a redemption date for the Qbligations, the City shall cause a notice of
redemption (o be sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the registered owners of the Obligations to be redeemed,
in whole ot in part, at the address of each registered owner appearing on the registration books of the Paying A gent/Registrar at the
close of business on the business day next preceding the date of mailing such notice, ANY NOTICE SO MAILED SHALL BE
CONCLUSIVELY PRESUMED TO HAVE BEEN DULY GIVEMN, WHETHER OR NOT THE REGISTCRED QOWNER
RECEIVES SUCH NOTICE. NOTICE HAVING BEEN SO GIVEN, THE OBLIGATIONS CALLED FOR REDEMPTION
SHALL BECOME DUE AND PAYABLE ON THE SPECIFIED REDEMPTION DATE, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THAT
ANY OBLIGATION OR PORTION THEREOF I1AS NOT BEEN SURRENDERED FOR PAYMENT, INTEREST ON SUCH
OBLIGATION OR PORTION THEREOQOF SHALL CEASE TO ACCRUE.

With: respect to any optional redemption of the Obligations, unless moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any,
and interest on the Obligations to be redeemed shall have been received by the Paying Agent/Registrar prior to the giving of such
notice of redemption, such notice may state that said redemption is conditional upon the receipt of such moneys by the Paying
Agent/Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption, or upon the satistaction of any prerequisites set forth in such
notice of redemiption; and, if sufficient moneys are not received, such notice shall be of ne force and effect, the City shall not
redeem such Obligations and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was
given, to the effect that the Obligations have not heen redeemed.

DEFEASANCE. ., The Certificate Ordinance provides for the defeasance of the Certificates when the payment of the principal of
and premium, if any, on the Obligations, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date be by rcason of
maturity, redemption or otherwise), is provided by irrevocably depositing with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or other authorized
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City Of Grond Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

M, Contracts, Commitments, and Contingent Liabilities

federal and State Grants

The City participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs. These programs are
subject fo program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Any fability for
reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not belisved to be material.

The City and Sports Corporation are contingently liable in respect of lawsuits and claims in the ordinary
course of operations which, in the opinion of management, will not have material adverse effect on the
combined financial statements.

Water intake Facility Contract

The City entered info a confract with the Trinity River Authority (TRA) whereby TRA agreed to sel revenue
bonds, and, to construct and operate water treatment, fransmission and storage facilities necessary to
supply freated water to several area cities. The City has also agreed contractually to pay TRA annudlly
an amount sufficient to pay it’s pro rata share of the operation and maintenance expenses of the facilities
and related debt service of its bands. The project is not treated as a joint venture by the City since the
project is managed and unilaterally controlled by TRA, the City has no equity interest in the project, and
the City is not obligated for the repayment of TRA bonds.

Water Purchase Coniracts

The City has a 30-year contract with the City of Dallos, which expires in 2042, for the purchase of water.
Grand Prairie currently takes up to 33.8 milion gallons o day {MGD), and pays a fixed demand charge
plus a volume charge. The demand charge i based on current maximum demand or the highest
demand esiablished during the five preceding years, whichever is greater. Thus, even if the City were 1o
stop purchasing water from Dalls, its obligation fo pay the demand charge {$242,058) would extend for
five years. The maximum may be increased in future years as needed. Grand Prairie has two intake poinis
for City of Daflas water with a contractual right obligating the City of Dallas to meet Grand Prairie’s nesds.
Existing pipelines will provide up to 55 MGD,

A contract with the City of Fort Worth, effective until the year 2031, permits the City to purchase upto 2.5
MGD.

A contfract with the City of Midlothian, executed in 2014 for a 30-year term, permits the City fo purchase
up to an average of 4.5 MGD during the term of the coniract. Beginning in January 2016, the City begon
purchasing water from the City of Midlothian ai an average rate of 0.478 MGD.

A contract with the City of Arlington, executed in 2011 for a 20-year term, allows the City to purchase up
to 2.5 MGD maximum flow unless otherwise agreed to in writing. As of September 30, 2020, no water has
been purchased through this contract.

Wastewater Treatment Contracts

The City has a 50 year contfract with TRA, which will expire in 2023, for wastewater freatment. The City Is
billed for its prorated share of total wastewater cosfs, which was 20.5% during fiscal year 2020. The City
must pay its prorated share of the debt service related to wastewater treatment facilities untit the debi
matures whether it coniributes to flow or not.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Notes to ihe Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2020

L. Fund Balance

Al September 30, 2020, fund balances were classified as follows:

Fund bolances
MNorgpendable:
Inverdory and prepolds

Spendsble:
Restricted [or

Employee Wellare
Librory Memarials
Al RIsk Youlhg
Cteg Hunlar Schelarships
Slale Traiming {Fire)
Praitia Pows Adoptions
Seclicn &
Sireel ImproYemearts
Grants
Debl Setvice
Epic 2 CIP & Epic Cemtrel
Pork Wanue
Sreets
Crirne
Holel Motel
Pollce Saire
Mymcipol Cowld
Rad Light Safety
Lake Forks
Public Improv emenl Disticts
Tox Incremanl Finoncing
Othes speciol revenua
Park venue Copilal Projects
firg Copilol Projecs
municipal Facillies Capital Projecls
Other Copitol Projects

Tedal restricled

Commitledta:
Eple 2 CIP
Sreel Improvemenls
PadE Yenue
Cable Operations
Wgigon Theolre
Cemelery
Fire Copilal Prajects
Funielpal Focililies Copilal Projects
braircige Copilal Projects
Police Capital Projecls
Olhar Copital Pajects
Capital Lending/Resery

Teldl commitled

Assigned 1o
Post-Pangemic One-Time Costs
Heme datchCash
KGPE Commissions
fouth scholarship Func
Police Memerials
stole Woining (Police)
Fire- S1ala Supplement ab Funds
Holl ol Fome Trust Fund
Flrst Offender Program
ity Creek Accessibilly Garden
S Marshols Service Agreemenl
GPPD Boxing Pragrann
GPPD Explorer Program
GFPD tounled Palrol

Tolal assigned
Unassigred

Tolal fund balances

HONMHjar
Shrests Dakd Epic 2 Governmental

General Seclion B CIP Granls servics cIP Funds Totat
$ 35344 3 3 ] b . 3 - $ x5876 % 71,220
§14.302 - 114,302
42952 - 42,752
38,337 - 33,337
$2.040 &2,040
Ba2 - g8z
263,733 263733
3,143 285 - 3,163,285
- 5,825,573 - 5825575
- - - 7245027 - . - T 260027
- - - 2,489 224 . - 2489224
- 27.000,000 2,204,049 31,294 049
. - 5423721 54123,72)
20873 3,870,043 3890934
. - - - 7.783,704 ®.783.704
- - 2158715 914718
- 381,833 381833
268,578 28,598
- - - 20¥9.224 2009234
- - - 3021 539 3021939
- - - 4.457 148 4,497 148
- - - - 18,796,004 18,790,004
- - - - 218,298 27B.3%8
- - - - 2,55383% 2553834
. - - - 2931267 2,731,267
- - - - 1.429 554 1629 556
- - - - FIDLRT F35.0087
543119 3,183,285 5825575 7265027 2489226 29000000 59615354 107,721,586
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140,648,430 $3.183,285 115,777,571 47 245,027 $2.480 224 $ 3749395t $ 107 257,420 3234115110
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escrow agent, in trust {1 ) money sufficient to make such payment or {2) Government Securities 10 mature as to principal and interest
in such amounts and at such times to insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient moncy to make such payment, and
all necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of the paying agent for the Certificates. The Ceriificate Ordinance
provides that “Government Securities” means (a) direct, noncallable obligations of the United States of America, including
obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, (b} noncallable obligations of an agency or
instrumentality of the United States of America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency
or instrumentality and that, on the date of their acquisition or purchase by the City, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally
recognized investiment rating firm not less than “AAA™ or its equivalent, (¢) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a
county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date of their acquisition or
purchase by the City, are rated as to investment guality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than “AAA” or
its equivalent, and (d) any other then authorized sceurities or cbligations that may be used to defease obligations such as the
Obligations under applicable laws of the State of Texas. The City has the right, subject to satisfying the requiremenis of (1) and
{2) above, ta substitute other Government Securities for the Government Securities originally deposited, to reinvest the uninvested
moneys on deposit for such defeasance and to withdraw for the benefit of the City moneys in excess of the amount required for
such defeasance.

There is no assurance that the current law will not be changed in a manner which would permit investments other than thosc
described above o be made with amounts deposited to defease the Obligations. Becausce the Certificate Ordinance does not
contractually limit such investments, registered owners may be deemed to have consented o defeasance with such other
investments, notwithstanding the fact that such investments may not be of the same investment quality as those currently permitled
under State law. There is no assurance that the ratings for U.S, Treasury securities used as Government Securities or that for any
other Government Security will be mainiained at any particular rating category.

Upon such deposit as described above, the applicable Obli gations shall no longer be regarded to be outstanding or unpaid. After
firm banking and financial arrangements for the discharge and final payment of the Obligations have been made as described above,
all rights of the City to initiate proceedings te call the Obligations for redemption or take any ather action amending the terms af
the Obligations arc extinguished; provided, however, that the right to cafl the Obligations for redemption is not exsinguished if the
City: (i) in the proceedings providing for the firm banking and financial arrangements, expressly reserves the right to call the
Obligations for redemption; (i) gives notice of the reservation of that right to the owners of the Qbligations immediately following
the making of the firin banking and financial arrangements; and {iii) directs that notice of the reservation be included in any
redemption notices that it authorizes.

AMENDMENTS. . .The City may, without the consent of or notice to any Holders of the Certificates, from time to time and at any
time, amend the Certificate Ordinance in any manner not detrimental fo the interests of the Holders of the Certificates, including
the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or fermal defect or omission thergin. In addition, the City may, with the wrilien consent
of Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Certificates then Outstanding, amend, add 1o, or rescind any of the
provisions of the Certificate Ordinance; provided that, without the conscnt of all Holders of Outstanding Certificates, no such
amendment, addition, or rescission shall (1} extend the time or times of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and intetest
on the Certificates, reduce the principal amount thereof, the redemption price, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way
modify the terms of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Obligations, (2) give any preference to any
Certificate over any other Certificate, respectively, ot (3} reduce the aggregate principal amount of Certificates, required to be held
by Holders for consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission.

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM. . . This section describes how ownership of the Obligations is to be transferred and how the principal
of, premium, if any and intcrest an the Obligations are to be paid to and eredited by DTC while the Obligations are registered in its
nominee name. The information in this section concerning DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System has been provided by DTC for
use in disclosute documents such as this Official Statement. The City believes the source of such information to be reliable, but
takes no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness thereof,

The City cannot and does not give any assurance that {1} DTC will distribute payments of debt service on the Obligations, or
redemption or other notices, 10 DTC Participants, (2) DTC Participants or others will distribute debt service payments paid to DTC
or its nominee (as the regisiered owner of the Obligations), or redemption or other notices, to the Beneficial Owners, or that they
will do so on a timely basis, or (3) DTC will serve and act in the manner described in this Official Statement. The cutrent rules
applicable to DTC are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the cusrent procedures of DTC o be followed in
dealing with DTC Participants are on file with DTC.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Obligations. The Obligations will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in
the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee). One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of the
Obligations in the aggregate principal amount of each such maturity and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New Yerk Banking Law, a
“hanking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing
corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniforny Commerciai Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the
provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million
issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 190
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countries) that DTC’s paiticipants {*Direct Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade sctilement among
Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry
transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities
certificates, Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depositary Trust & Clearing Corporation
(“DTCC™). DTCC is the holding company for DIC, Natiorial Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the
DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S, and non-U.S, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust com panies, and
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly
(“Indirect Participants™). DTC has Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC Rules appicable te its Partici pants are on file with
the Securities and Exchange Commissian, Mere information about DTC can be found at www.dtce.com and www.dtc.ore.

Purchases of Obligations under the D'I'C system must be made by or through DTC Participants, which will receive a credit for such
purchascs on DTC's records, The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Obligation (“Beneficial Owner™) is in turn
to be recorded on the Direct or Indivect Participants’ tecords, Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC
of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well
as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interest in the Obligations are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their
ownership interests in the Obligations, except in the event that use of the book-cntry system deseribed herein is
discontinued,

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Obligations deposited by Direct Participants with DTC arc registered in the name of DTC’s
partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit
of Obligations with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such ather DTC nominee do not affect any change in

beneficial ownership, DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Obligations; DTC’s records reflect only the .

identity of the Direct Patticipants to whose accounts such Obligations ate credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Qwners.
The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers,

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants,
and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject
1o any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Obligations may wish to
take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of netices of significant events with respeet to the Obligations, such as
redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Obligation documents. For cxample, Beneficial Owners of
Obligations may wish to ascettain that the nominee holding the Obligations for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit
notices lo Beneficial Owners. In ihe aliernative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registear
and request that copics of notices be provided dircetly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Obligations within a maturity are being redeemed, DTC’s practice
is 10 determine by Jot the amount of the interest of gach Direct Participant in such matutity to be redeemed,

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Obligations, unless authorized
by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures, Under its usual procedures, D1C mails an Omnibus Proxy to the
City as soon as possiblc after the Record Date (hereinafier defined). The Otmnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or
voting rights to thase Direct Participants to whose accounts the Obligations are credited on the Record Date (identified in a listing
attached to the Omnibus Proxy),

All payments on the Obligations will be made to Cede & Co. or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized
tepresentative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s reccipt of funds and cereesponding
detail information from the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar, an payable date in accordance with their respective heldings shown
on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be
the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC nor its nominee, the Paying Agent/Registrar or the City, subject to any
slatutoty or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from titme to time. Payment of redemption proceeds and principal and
interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility
of the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC,
and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities deposilory with respect to one or both series of the Obligations at any
time by giving reasonable notice to the City or Paying Agent/Registrar. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor
securities depository is not obtained, Ohligations are required to be printed and delivered.

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository),
In that event, Obligation certificates wifl be printed and delivered.
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IMES Supplemental Death

Deferred Quitflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference in expected and actual experience b - $ 222,026
Difference in assumptions 546,034 -
Difference inprojected and actud eamings
on OPEB planinv estments - -
Employer's contributions to the OPEB plan
subsequent to the measurement date 29,303

$ 595,339 $ 222,024

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from confributions subsequent fo the
measurement date of $29.303 will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the
City's financial statements September 30, 2021, Gther amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows
of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Retiree Health Insurance

Mecsurement Net deferred
Period Ended outflows (inflows)
September 31, of resources
2021 $ (453,955)
2022 (453,955)
2023 [453,955)
2024 408,682
2024 408,683
Total $ {544.500)
TMRS Supplemental Death
Medasurement Net deferred
Year Ended outflows {inflows)
December 31, of resources
2020 $ 81,600
2021 81,400
2022 81,600
2023 74,522
2024 31,432
Thereafter {4,744)
Tolal $ 344,010
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Noftes to the Basic Financiol Statements

September 30, 2020

Actuarial Assumplions

The refiree health insurance total OPEB liability in the September 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation

Salary Incredses
Discount Rate

Mortatity rates - retirees

2.50%
3.50%
241 %
RF-2014 Combined Table projected using MP-2019

The discount rate was selected by City of Grand Praifie based on the Bond Buyer 20-Bond Generai
Obligation Index to reflect yieids on iong-term municipal bonds as of the measurement date,

The TMRS supplemental death total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation

Sclary Increqses
Discount Rate
Administrative expenses

Mortality rates - service retfirees

Mortality rates - disabledretirees

2.50%

3.50% to 11.5% including inflation

2.75%

All administrative expenses are poid through the Pension Trust and
accounted for under reporting requirements under GASB Statement
No. 68.

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis with scale UMP,

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4 year set
forward for males and a 3 year set-forward for females. In addition, o
3.5% and 3% minimum mortality rate will be appliedtoreflect the
impairment for younger members who become disabled for mates and
females, respectively, The rates are projected on afully generational
basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements
subject to the floor.

The discount rate was based on the Fidelity index's “20-Year Municipal GO AA index” rate as of

December 31, 2019,
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STATE MANDATED HOMESTEAD EXEMPTIONS. . . State law grants, with respect to each taxing unit in the State, varions exemptions
for disabled veterans and their families, surviving spouses of memberss of the armed services killed in action and surviving spouses
of first responders killed or fatally wounded in the line of duty.

LocAL Oprion HOMESTEAD EXEMPTIONS. . . The governing body of a taxing unit, including a ¢ity, county, school district, or
special district, at its option may grant: {1) an exemption of up 1o 20% of the appraised value of all homesteads (but not less than
$5,000) and (2) an additional exemption of at least $3,000 of the appraised value of the homesteads of persons sixty-five (63} years
of age or older and the disabled. Each (axing unit decides if it will offer the local option homestead exemptions and at what
percentage or dollar amount, as applicable. The exemption described in (2), above, may also be created, increased, decreased or
repealed at an election called by the governing body of a taxing unit upon presentment of a petition for such creation, increase,
decrease, or repeal of at least 20% of the number of qualified voters who voted in the preceding election of the taxing unit.

LOCAL OprioN FREEZE FOR THE ELDERLY AND DISABLED. . , The governing body of a county, municipality or junior coilege
district may, at its option, provide for a freeze on the total amount of ad valorem taxes levied on the homesteads of persons 65 years
of age or older or of disabled persons above the amount of tax imposed in the year such residence gualified for such exemption.
Also, upon voter initiative, an election may be held to determine by majority vote whether to establish such a freeze on ad valorem
taxes. Once the fieeze is established, the total amount of taxes imposed on such homesteads cannot be increased except for certain
improvements, and such freeze cannot be repealed or rescinded.

PERSONAL PROPERTY. . . Tangible personal property (furniture, machinery, supplies, inventories, etc.) used in the “production of
income” is taxed based on the property’s market value, Taxable personal property includes income-producing equipment and
inventory. Intangibles such as goodwill, accounts receivable, and propriefary processes are not taxable. Tangible personal property
not held or used for production of income, such as househeld goods, awtornobiles or light trucks, and boats, is exempt from ad
valorem taxation unless the governing body of a taxing unit elects o tax such property.

FREEPORT AND GOODS-IN-TRANSIT EXEMPTIONS. . . Certain goods that are acquired in or imported into the State to be forwarded
outside the State, and are detained in the State for 175 days or less for the purpose of assembly, storage, manufacturing, processing
or fabrication (“Freeport Property™) are exempt from ad valorem taxation unless a taxing unit took official action to tax Freeport
Propetty before April 1, 1990 and has not subsequently taken official action 10 exempt Freeport Property. Decisions to continue
taxing Freeport Property may be reversed in the future; decisions to exempt Freeport Property are not sitbject to reversal.

Certain goods, that are acquired in or imported into the State to be forwarded to another location within or without the State, stored
in a location that is not owned by the owner of the goods and are transported to ancther location within or without the State within
175 days (“Goods-in-Transit™), are generally exempt from ad valorem taxation; however, the Property Tax Code permits a taxing
unit, on a local aption basis, to tax Goods-in-Transil if the taxing unit takes official action, afer conducting a public hearing, before
January 1 of the first tax year in which the taxing unit proposes to tax Goods-in-Transit. Goods-in-Transit and Freeport Property
do not include oil, natural gas or petroleum products, and Goods-in-Transit does not include aizcrafi or special inventories such as
manufactured housing inventory, or a dealer’s motor vehicle, boat, or heavy equipment inventory.

A taxpayer may receive only one of the Goods-in-Transit er Frecport Property exemptions for items of personal praperty.

OTHER EXEMPT PROPERTY. . . Other major categories of exempt property include property owned by the State or ifs political
subdivisions if used for public purposes, propetty exempt by federal law, property used for pollution control, farm products owned
by producers, property of nonprofit corporations used for scientific research or educational activitics benefitting a college or
university, designated historic sites, solar and wind-powered energy devices, and certain classes of intangible personal property.

Tax INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONES. . . A city or county, by petition of the landowners or by action of its governing body,
may create one of more tax increment reinvestment zones (“TIRZ”) within its boundaries. At the time of the creation of the TIRZ,
2 “base value” for the real property in the TIRZ is established and the difference belween any increase in the assessed valuation of
{axable real property in the TIRZ in cxcess of the base value is known as the “tax increment”. During the existence of the TIRZ,
all or a pottion of the taxes levied against the tax increment by a city or county, and all other overlapping taxing units that elecied
to participate, are restricted to paying only pianned project and financing costs within the TIRZ and are not available for the payment
of other obligations of such taxing units.

TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENTS. ..Taxing units may alse enter into tax abatement agreements to encourage economic
development. Under the agreements, a property owner agrees to construct certain improvements on its property. The taxing unit,
in turn, agrees noi to levy a tax on all or part of the increased value attributable to the improvements until the expiration of the
agreement. The abatement agreement could last for a period of up to 10 years,

TFor a discussion of how the various cxempiions described above are applied by the City, see “TAX INFORMATION - Clity
Application of Tax Code”.



CITy AND TAXPAYER REMEDIES. . .Under certain circumstances, taxpayers and taxing units, including the Cily, may appeal the
determinations of the Appraisal District by timely initiating a protest with the Appraisal Review Board. Additionally, taxing units
such as the City may bring suit against the Appraisal District to compel compliance with the Property Tax Code.

Beginning in the 2020 tax year, owners of certain propetty with a taxable value in excess of the current year “minimum eligibility
amount”, as determined by the State Comptroller, and situated in a county with a population of one million or mere, may protest
the determinations of an appraisal district directly to a three-member special panel of the appraisal review board, appointed by the
chairman of the appraisal review board, consisting of highly qualified professionals in the field of property tax appraisal. The
minimuwm eligibility amount is set at $50.6 million for the 2021 tax year, and is adjusted annually by the State Comptroller to reflect
the inflation rate.

The Praperty Tax Code sets forth notice and hearing procedures for certain tax rate increases by the City and provides for taxpayer
referenda that could result in the repeal of certain tax increases (see “TAX INFORMATION — Puoblic Hearing and Maintenance
and Operations Tax Rate Limitations™), The Properiy Tax Code also establishes a procedure for providing notice to property owners
of reappraisals veflecting increased property value, appraisals which are higher than renditions, and appraisals of property not
previously on an appraisal roll.

Lievy anNpCOLLECTION OF TAXES. ., The City is responsible for the collection of its taxes, unless it elects to transfer such functions
to another governmental cntity. Taxes are due October 1, or when billed, whichever comes later, and bevome delinquent after
January 31 ofthe following year. A delinquent tax incurs a penalty of six percent (6%) of the amount of the tax for the first calendar
month if is delinquent, plus one percent {1%5) for each additional month or portion of a menth the tax remains unpaid prior to J uly
1 of the year in which it hecomes delinquent. If the tax is not paid by July 1 of the year in which it becomes delinquent, the tax
incurs a total penalty of twelve percent (12%) regardless of the number of months the tax has been delinquent and incurs an
additional penalty of up to twenty percent (20%} if imposed by the City. The delinquent fax also accrues interest at a rate of one
percent (1%%) for each menih or portion of a month it remains unpaid. The Property Tax Code alse makes provision for the split
payment of taxes, discounts for early payment and the posiponement of the delinquency date of taxes for certain taxpayers.
Furthermore, the City may provide, on a local option basis, for the split payment, partial payment, and discounts for early payment
of taxes under certain circumstances.

CITY’S RIGHTS IN THE EVENT OF TAX DELINQUENCIES. . . Taxes levied by the City ate a personal obligation of the owner of the
property. On January | of each year, a tax lien atiaches lo property to secure the paymeni of all state and local taxes, penalties, and
interest ultimately imposed for the year on the property. The lien exists in favor of each taxing unit, including the City, having
power 10 tax the property. The City’s fax bien is on a parity with tax liens of such other taxing units. A tax lien on real property
takes priotity over the claim of most creditors and other holders of liens on the property encumbered by the tax lien, whether or not
the debt or lien existed before the attachment of the tax lien; however, whether a lien of the United States is on a parity with or
takes priority over a tax lien of the City is determined by applicable federal law. Personal property, under certain circumstances, is
subject to scizure and sale for the paytment of delinquent taxes, penalty, and interest.

At any time afler taxes on property become delinguent, the City may file suit to foreclose the lien securing payment of the tax, to
enforce personal liability for the tax, or both. In filing a suit to foreclose a tax lien on real property, the City must join other taxing
units that have claims for delinquent taxes against all or part of the same property.

Collection of delinquent taxes may be adversely affected by the amount of taxes owed to other taxing units, adverse market
conditions, taxpayer redemption rights, or bankruptey proceedings which restrain the collection of a taxpayer’s debt.,

Federal bankruptey law provides that an automatic stay of actions by creditors and other entities, including governmental units,
goes into ¢ffect with the filing of any petition in bankruptcy. The automatic stay prevents governmental units from foreclosing on
property and prevents liens for post-petition taxes from attaching to property and obtaining secured creditor status unless, in either
case, an order lifting the stay is obtained from the bankruptey court. In many cases, post-petition taxes are paid as an administrative
expense of the estate in bankruptcy or by order of the bankruptcy court.

PUBLIC HEARING AND MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS TAX RATE LIMITATIONS. . . The following terms as used in this section
have the meanings provided below;

“adjusted” means lost values are not included in the caleulation of the prior year's tanes and new valuss are not included in the
current year’s taxahble values,

“de minimis rate” means the maintenance and operations tax rate that will produce the prior year’s total maintenance and operations
tax lcvy {adjusted}) fram the current year’s values (adjusted), plus the rate that produces an additional $500,000 in tax revenue when
applied to the cuirent year’s taxable value, plus the debt service tax rate,

“no-new-revenue tax rate” means the combined maintenance and operations tax rate and debt service tax rate that will produce the
prior year’s total tax levy (adjusted) from the current year's total taxable values (adjusted).
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Reftirees that do not continue coverage through our refiree health care plans do not receive payment in
lieu of retiree health care,

The City offers medical, dental, and vision coverage to eligible retirees.
Emplovees Covered by Benefit Terms

For retiree health insurance at the September 30, 2020 valuation and measurement date, the following
employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving bensfits 167
Active employees 1.328
Tolal 1,495

For TMRS supplemental death at the December 31, 2019 valuation and measurement date, the following
employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 627
Inactive employees entitied to but not yet receiving benefits 125
Active employees 1,386
Total 2,138

Contribulions

For refiree healih insurance, refirees and their spouses currently receiving benefits are required to
contribute specified amounts monthly toward the cost of health insurance premiums.

Monihly retiree contribution rates are as follows:

Refiree 2018 Monthly Heaith Care Premiums {Employee Pays Porfion}

Monthly
Health Care
Premium
Over 65 Retiree
(Grandfathered by age)
Employee only $ 241
Employee plus spouse 238

Tofal OPEB Liabili
The City of Grand Prairie retiree hedith insurance total OPEB liability of $62,543,756 was measured as of

September 30, 2020, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

The City of Grand Prairie TMRS supplemental death total CPEB liability of $4,419,807 measured as of
December 31, 2019, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

81



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Benefits Provided
TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are agdopied by the governing
body of the city, within the options availabie in the siate statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's contributions, with inferest, and
the city-financed monetary crediis with interest were used to purchase dn annuity. Members may choose
to receive their refirement benefit in one of seven payments options. Members may also choose o
receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an omount equal to 12, 24, or 34
monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member's deposits and interest,

Plan provisions for the City are as follows:

Employee deposit rate 7%

Matchingratio [City o employee) 2ol

Years required for vesting 5

Service retirement eligibitily 25 years at any age, 5 years
at age ¢0 and above

Updated service credit 100% Repeating transfers

Annuity increcse toretirees 70% of CPI Repeating

Additional information related io the TMRS Plan is located in the TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report,

Emplovees Covered by Benefit Terms

At ihe December 31, 2019 valuation and measurement date, the following employeeas were covered by
the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 824
Inactive employees entitled 1o but not yel receiving benefits 643
Active employees 1,386
Total 2,853

Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, of 7% of employee gross eamings, and the
city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of
the city. Under the state iaw governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually
by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal {EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earmned by employees during the vear,
with an additional amount 1o finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the City of Grand Prairie were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross eamings
during the fiscal year, The contibution rates for the City of Grand Prairie were 16.30% and 16.09% in
calendar years 2019 and 2020, respectively. The City's coniributions 1o TMRS for the year ended
September 30, 2020, were $17.153,461, and were equal fo the required contributions.

Net Pension Ligbility
The city's Net Pension Liability [NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2019, and the Total Pension Liability
(TPL} used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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TABLE Y - VALUATION AND GENERAL OBLICATION DEBT HISTORY

Net G.O. Ratio of Met

Taxable Tax Debt G.0. Tax Debt MNet
Fiscal Year Taxable Assessed  Outsianding to Taxable G.O. Tax

Ended  Estimatcd Assessed Valuation at End Assessed Debt
9/30  Population'”  Vaiuation™ Per Capita _ of Year”) Valuation  Per Capita
2018 187,000  $13,521,607,208 * § 72,308 $211,985,000 157% 0§ 1,134
2019 194,000 14,755,015,503 ¢ 76,057 307,720,000 2.09% 1,586
2020 194,000 16,325,123,108 ' 84150 285,465,000 1.75% 1,471
2021 195,200 16,680,301,115 7 86,989 370,245,000 2.18% 1,897
2022 200,640 18,125,734,480 ¥ 90,340 371,337,000 ¥ 2.05% 1,851

(1) Source: City Staff.

(2) As reported by the Dallas Cental Appraisal District, Tarrant Appraisal District, and Ellis Central Appraisal District on the
City's annual State Property Tax Board Reports; subject to change during the ensutng year.

(3) Projected excludes revenue supported general obligation debt. See "TABLE 9 - Computation of Self-Supporting Debt"

(4) Includes taxable incremental value of approximately $281,406,819 that is not available for the City's general use.

(5) Includes taxable incremental value of approximately $381,547,594 that is not available for the City's general use.

(6} Inchudes taxable incremental value of approximately $424,344,427 that is not available for the City's general use.

(7) Includes taxable incremental value of approximately $760,000,000 that is not available for the City's general use.

(8) Includes taxable incremental value of approximately $870,000,000 that is not available for the City's general use,

(9) On January 18, 2022, the City approved General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022 A, B and C {the “Refunding Bonds™}
to refinance a portion of the City’s outstanding general obligation debt for debt service savings through a private placement. The
Refunding Bonds have an anticipated delivery date of February 16, 2022, The outstanding general obligation debl excludes the
debt refunded by the Refunding Bonds and includes the Refunding Bonds. Includes the Certificates.

TABLE 4 - TaX RATE, LEVY AND COLLECTION HISTORY

Fiscal Year

Ended Tax General Interest and % Current % Total

9430 Tax Rate Fund Sinking Fund Tax Levy Collections Collections
2018 $ 0.669998 $0.471196 b3 0.198802 $ 88,709,078 98.77% 08.77%

209 0.669998 0.463696 0.206302 98,858,309 99 80% 100.40%

2020 0.669998 0.457128 0.212870 107,331,108 98.82% 98.82%

2021 0.660998 0.460638 0.209360 113,767,678 98.90% 99.54%

2022 0.664998 0.452091 0.212907 120,535,772 1367% N 4455% O

{1} Collections as of January 1, 2022,

(THE REMAINDER OF TH1$ PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)
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TABLE 5 - TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS (1)

Tax Year 2021 % of Total
Taxable Assessed Taxable Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Nature of Property Valuation Valuation

Bell Textron Inc. Defense Industry $ 118,302,432 0.65%
Poly America LP Manufacturing 113,145,281 0.62%
Duke Secured Financing 2009 Real Estate 101,884,230 0.56%
Lockheed M artin Missles & Fire Control Systems Defense Industry 94,950,580 0.52%
Republic Beverage Manufacturing 89,353,908 0.49%
Oncor Electric Delivery Utility 74,440,610 0.41%
CH AZ Wildlife4 6 LP Real Estate 73,508,230 0.41%
Grand Prairie Outlets LLC Outlet Mall 72,494,098 0.40%
Triumph Group Aerostructures Inc. Manufacturing 76,538,943 0.42%
Blue Atlantic Riverside LP Real Estate 67,275,000 0.37%

$ 548,561,369 3.03%

(1) Source: Dallas Central Appraisal District.

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT LIMITATION. . . No general obligation debt limitation is imposed on the City under current
State law or the City’s Home Rule Charter (see “THE OBLIGATIONS — Tax Rate Limitation™).

TABLE 6 - ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING DEBT

Expenditures of the various taxing entities within the territory of the City are paid out of ad valorem taxes levied by such entities
on properties within the City. Such entities are independent of the City and may incur borrowings to finance their expenditures.
This statement of direct and estimated overlapping ad valorem tax debt (“Tax Debt”) was developed from information contained
in “Texas Municipal Reports” published by the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas. Except for the amounts relating to the City,
the City has not independently verified the accuracy or completeness of such information, and no person should rely upon such
information as being accurate or complete, Furthermore, certain of the entities listed may have issued Tax Debt since the date
hereof, and such entities may have programs requiring the issuance of substantial amounts of Tax Debt, the amount of which cannot
be determined. The following table reflects the estimated share of overlapping Tax Debt of the City.

2021/2022
Taxable G.O. Estimated
Assessed 2021/2022 Debt as of % Overlapping
Taxing Body Valuation Tax Rate 2/1/2022 Overlapping G.0. Debt

Arlington Independent School District $ 34,116,003 ,960 $ 1.3608 § 1,081,249,956 17.92% § 193,759,992
Cedar Hill Independent School District 4,487,355,360 1.2384 101,107,515 5.48% 5,540,692
Dallas County 291,250,432,162 0.2279 116,665,000 3.01% 3,511,617
Dallas County Community College District 271,168,476,338 0.1235 166,750,000 3.01% 5,019,175
Dallas County Flood Control District #1 630,280,378 0.9860 20,675,000 0.77% 159,198
Parkland Hospital District 292,6097,934,340 0.2550 575,530,000 3.04% 17,496,112
Dallas County Schools 261,927,801,917 0.0100 16,679,652 3.04% 507,061
Ellis County 21,500,257,151 0.3393 31,020,000 0.08% 24,816
Grand Prairie Independent School District 8,795,317.49 1.3763 427,000,000 B8.86% 379,432,200
Irving Independent School District 16,326,839,855 1.2077 346,060,000 0.71% 2,457,026
M ansfield Independent School District 18,070,229.806 1.4183 853,014,839 12.77% 109,006,615
Midlothian Independent School District 6,250,644,453 1.3520 429 760,000 0.23% 088,448
Tarrant County 217,644,837,270 0.2290 213,675,000 3.86% 8,247 855
Tarrant County College District 219,777,576,724 0.1302 255,995,000 3.86% 9,881,407
Tarrant County Hospital District 218,063,285,944 0.2244 14,495,000 3.86% 550,507

$ 4,650,276,962 $ 736,591,720
City of Grand Prairie $ 18125734480 § 06650 § 404,989,000 100.00% § 404,989,000
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt...c.uuiuii i it isivss s srsssinass ses s s tnesnssars R L . 3 1,141,580,720
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt to City's Taxable AssesSed VAIUC...vvvuvarsivunsssiiniiiisisssiis i sisseeis it smerssesnssesnessessnnesses 6.30%

(1) Includes the Obligations.
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Liabilities of the Risk Management Fund are reported when it is probable that aloss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been
incurred but not reported (IBNR). The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact
amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inflation, timing of filed claims, adjudication of
claim benefits, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards.

Accordingly, claims are reevaluated annually to consider the effects of inflation, plan benefit designs,
recent claim settlement frends, claim expense, and other economic and social factors. The estimate of
the claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment expenses related to specific
claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether allocated to specific claims. The total
accrued liabilities for the Risk Management Fund based on the recent September 30, 2020 actuarial re port
was $4,321,886.

The City offers group health coverage fo its employees and retirees in plans administered by
United Health Care using an escrow account funded by the City with both employee and City
contributions. The City allows retired employees under age 65 to continue participating in its group health
insurance program after retirement with a portion of premiums paid by the City. The amount of premiums
paid by retirees is based on the retirement date, length of service with the City, plan selected and
dependents covered at the time of retirement. The City retains risk for up to $400,000 per member per
year, and transfers risk in excess of this amount to a reinsurer, Reported claims are charged to expense in
the period the loss is incurred. The total accrued liabilities for health insurance as of September 30, 2020
were $1,961,897,

At September 30, 2020, the change in estimates of accrual liabilities for health coverage for the risk
management fund:

Beginning of Claims and End of
Fiscal Year Changes in Claim Fiscal Year
Liability Estimates Payments Liability
2020 $ 4145960 $ 19807058 $ 17,669,235 $ 6283783
2019 3971327 15,449,741 15,275,108 4,145,260
2018 3,861,819 16,301,886 16,192,378 3,971,327

J. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

The City participates as one of 888 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency created
by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas
Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal
employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of
the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of
the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS's defined
benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS
issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that can be obtained at
www.tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.
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TARLE 8 - INTEREST AND SINKING FUND BUDGET PROJECTION (D

Tax Supported Debt Service Requirements, Fiscal Year Ending 9/30/2022 @ § 38224619
Interest and Sinking Fund 9/30/2021 @ $ 302,851

Budgeted 2021 Interest and Sinking Fund Tax Levy @ 98% Collection 38,710,000

Prior year taxes and refunds 100,000

TIFF Contsibution (1,780,250

Prior Years Penalties, Inierest and Collections 1,000,000

Transfer in fiom TIF #1 {

Total Available ¥ 38,332,561
Estimated Balanee, Fiscal Year Ending 9/30/2022 . 107,942

{1} Source: City Staff

(2) On January 18, 2022, the City approved General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022 A, B and C (the “Refunding Bonds™}
to refinance a portion of the City’s outstanding general obligation debt for debt service savings through a private placement. The
Refunding Bonds have an anticipated delivery date of February 16, 2022, The outstanding general obligation debt excludes the
debt refunded by the Refunding Bonds and includes the Refunding Bonds.

(3) Unaudited.

TABLE 9 - COMPUTATION OF RESOURCES FOR PAYMENT OF SELF-SUPPORTING (GENFERAL OBLIGATION DEBRT

Community Forum Cstaies

Palicing District Airport Fund TIF #1 PID 5
Resources Available for Debt Service
Fiscul Year Ended 9/30/2021 ' 3 8,020,745 % 403320 $ 9012911 § 790,566
Less: Revenue Bond Requirements, Fiscal Year Ended 9/30/2020 - - -
Balance Available for payment of Self-Supporting General Obligation Debt  $ 8,020,745 % 403320 §$ 9012821 % 720,566
General Obligation Bonds and Certificates of Obligation
Debt Service Requirernents, Fiscal Year Ended 9/30/2022 6,042 677 198,375 1,758,633 85,200
Balance $ 1,978,067 § 24945 % 7.254,288 % 705,360
Percentage of System General Obligation Bonds and Cerlifieates
of Obligation Self-Support ing 100,00% 100.00%4 100.00% 100.00%%

(1) Unaudited

TABLE 10 - AUTHORIZED BUT UNISSUED GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Amount
Authorized Previously Unissued
Purpose Date Authorized Amount Issued Balance
Solid Waste 12/08/90 180,000 75,000 105,000
Streets/Signal 11/06/01 56,000,000 55,959,773 40,227
Storm Drainage L1/06/01 8,200,000 6,576,573 1,623,427
Total 64,330,000 62,611,346 1,768,654

ANTICIPATED ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT. .. The City anticipates issuing approximately
£35 million general obligation debt within the next eighteen months,

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

The capital lease is baing amortized using the interest method over the 30-year life of the lease. The
Corporation has recorded lease rental and interest for the year ended September 30, 2020 as follows:

Nominat inferest onthe lease $ 1,759,320
Amortization of the lease [1.025,364)
MNet interest 733,256
Contingent rentals received (includss rent for simulcast

facility prior to completion of project) 125,745
Totdl lease rental and interest ¥ 859,701

Closure and Post Closure Liability
State and federal laws and regulations require the City fo place a final cover on its landfill site when it

stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for
30 years after closure. Although closure and post closure care costs will be paid only near or after the
date that the tandfills stop accepting waste, the City reporis a portion of these closure and post ctosura
care costs as an operating expense in each period based on tandfill capacity used as of each balance
sheet date. The City follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 18 Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste
Landfill Closure and Post closure Care Costs. Accordingly, the City has recorded a closure and post
closure care liability of $8.648,946 in the Solid Waste Fund. The total fiability represents the cumulative
amount reported to date based on the use of 49.69% of the estimated capacity of the landfill.

The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and post closure care of 38,943,097 as the
remaining estimated capacity is filled. The City expects to close the Jandfill in year 2037. Actual cost may
e higher or lower due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulations.

Environmenial Remediation Obligations

The City has recorded a liability and an asset related to environmental remediation in the amount of
$20.900, in the Statement of Net Pasition and Statement of Activities. The estimates of the fiabilities are
prepared by the Environmental Professional Group and by the City’s Envirenmental Quality Manager and
based on arange of expected outlays, net of expected cost recoveries, if any, for the type and amount
of poliution contamination detected. The estimates are reviewed and adjusted periodicdlly for price
changes, additionat contamination and any other changes detected.

+» The City owns the building and is responsible for the asbestos abatement of the Copeland home
located at 125 SW Dallas Street.
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The following presents the fotal CPEB liability of the City's TMRS supplemental plan calculated using the
discount rate of 2.75%. as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using o
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower {1.75%) or 1 percentage point higher {3.75%} than the
current discount rate:

Sensitivily of the OPEB Liabkility fo
Changes in the Discount Rate
Current
1% Decredse Discount Rate 1% Increase

3 5,342,149  § 4419808 § 3,702,234

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Ligbility to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City's retiree heaith insurance, as well as what the
City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost frend rates that are one
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost frend rate:

Sensitivity of the OPEB Liability to
Changes in the Healthcare Cost Rate
Current
1% Decredse Discount Rate 1% Increase

$ 54304846 § £2,543756 $ 69.883.962

OPEB Expense and Deferred Quttlows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended September 30, 2020, the City recoghized fotal OPEB expense of $2,841,498 which
included $2,454,262 related to Retiree Health insurance and $387,236 related to TMRS Suppiemental
Death.

Al September 30, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following resources:

Retiree Health Insuragnce

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference in expecied and actual experience 3 - $ 2,877,504
Difference in assumptions 3,314,370 981,366
Difference in projected and actual earmings

on OPEB plan Invesimeants - -
Emplover's contributions to the OPEB plan

subsequent 1o the measurement date - -

$ 3,314,370 b 3,858,870

84

Effect of Termination of Book-Entry-Only Sysiem...In the event that the Book-Entry-Only System is discontinued, printed
Obligation certificates will be issued to the holders and the Obligations will be subject to transfer, exchange and registration
provisions as set forth in the Ordinance and summarized under “THE OBLIGATIONS - Transfer, Exchange and Registration”
herein.

Use of Certain Terms in Other Sections of iiis Qfficial Siatement. In reading this Official Statement it should be understood that
while the Dbligations are in the Book-Entry-Only System, references in other sections of this Official Statement to registered
owners should be read to include the person for which the Participant acquires an interest in the Obligations, but (i) ali rights of
ownership must be exercised through DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System, and (i} except as described above, notices that are
to be given to registered owners under the Ordinance will be given only to DTC.

information concerning DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System has been obtained from DTC and is not guaranteed as to accuracy
or completeness by, and is not to be construed as a representation by the City, the Financial Advisor or the Purchaser.

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR. . . The initial Paying Agent/Registrar is The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A , Dallas,
Texas. In the Certificate Ordinance, the City retains the right to replace the Paying Agent/Registrar. The City covenants to maintain
and provide a Paying Agent/Registrar at all times until the Obligations are duly paid, and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar
shall be a bark, trust company, financial institution or other entity duly qualified and legally authotized (o serve as and perform the
duties and services of Paying Agent/Registar for the Obligations. Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar for the
Obligations, the City agices to promptly causc a written notice thereof to be sent to each registered owner of the Obligations by
United States mail, first class, pestage prepaid, which notice shall alse give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.

TRANSFER, EXCHANGE AND REGISTRATION. . . In the event the Book-Entry-Only System should be discontinued with respect to
the Obligations, printed Obfigations, will be delivered to the registered owners thereof, and thereafter the Obligations, may be
transferred and exchanged on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar only upon presentation and susrender to the
Paying Agent/Registrar, and such transfer or exchange shail be without expense or service charge to the registered owner, cxcept
for any tax or olher governmental charges requited to be paid with respect to such registration, exchange and transfer. Obligations
may be assigned by the execution of an assignment form on the respective Obligations or by other instrument of transfer and
assignment acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar. New Obligations will be delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar, in lieu of
the Obligations being iransferred or ¢xchanged, at the designated ofiice of the Paying Agent/Registrar, or sent by United States
mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the new registered owner or his designee. To the extent passible, new Obligations issued in an
exchange or transfer of Obligations will be delivered to the registered owner or assignee of the registered owner in not more than
three business days after the receipt of the Obligatiens to be canceled, and the writter instrument of transfer or request for exchange
duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized agent, in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registras, New
Obligations registcred and delivered in an exchange or transfer shall be in any integral multiple of $5,000 for any one matu rity and
for a like aggregate principal amount as the Obligations surrendered for exchange or transfer. See “THE OBLIGATIONS -
Book-Entry-Only System™ herein for a description of the system to be uiilized initially in regard te ownership and transferability
of the Obligations. Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shatl be required to transfer or exchange any Obligation called
for redemption, in wholc or in part, within 45 days of the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation on transfer
shall not be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the uncalled balance of an Obligation.

RECORD DATE FOR INTEREST PAYMENT. . . The record date (*Record Date™) for the interest payable on the Obligations on any
interest payment date means the close of business on the last business day of the preceding month.

In the event of a pon-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new recotd date for such
interest payment (a “Special Record Date™) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment
ofsuch interest have been received from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of Lthe past
due interest (which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five business days prior to the Special
Record Date by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each registered owner of an Obligation appearing

on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of
mailing of such notice.

OBLIGATIONHOLDERS® REMEDIES. . . If the City defaults in the payment of principal, interest or redemiption price, as applicable,
on the Obligations when due, or if it fails to make payments into any fund or funds created in the Ondinance or defaults in the
obgervation or performance of any other covenants, conditions or obli gations set forth in the Centificate Ordinance, the registered
owners may seek a writ of mandamus o compe! City officials to carry out their legally imposed duties with respect to the
Obligations if there is no other available remedy at law to compel performance of the Obligations or the Certificate Ordinance and
the City’s obligations are not uncertain or disputed. The issuance of a writ of mandamus is controlled by equitable principies, and
rests with the discretion of the court, but may not be arbitrarily refused. There is no acceleration of matwrity of the Obligations in
the event of default and, consequently, the remedy of mandamus may have to be relied upon from year to year. The Certificate
Ordinance daes not provide for the appeintment of a trustee to represent the interest of the holdets of the Obligations upon any
faiture of the City to perform in accordance with the terms of the Certificate Ordinance, or upon any other condition and,
accordingly, all legal actions to enforce such remedies would have to be undertaken at the initiative of, and be financed by, the
registered owners. On April 1, 2016, the Texas Supreme Court ruled in Wasson Interests, Lid. v. City of Jacksorville, 489 S.W. 3d
427 (Tex. 2016) (*Wasson™) that sovereign immunity does not imbue a city with derivative immunity when it performs proprietary,
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as opposed to governmental, functions in respect to contracts execuled by a city, The Texas Supreme Court reviewed Wasson
again in June 2018 and clarified that to determine whether governmental immunity applics to a breach of contract claim, the proper
inquiry is whether the municipality was engaged in a governmental or proprietary function when it entered into the contract, not at
the time of the alleged breach. Therefore in regard to municipal contract cases {as in tort claims) it is incumbent on the courts to
determine whether a function was proprietary or governmental based upon the statutory guidance at the time of the contractual
relationship. Texas jurisprudence has generally held that proprietary functions are those conducted by a city in its private capacity,
for the benefit only of those within its corporate limits, and not as an arm of the government or under the authority or for the benefit
of the state, If sovereign immunity is determined by 4 vourt to exist, then the Texas Supreme Court has ruled in Tooke v. City of
Mexia, 197 S.W.3d 325 (Tex. 2006) that a waiver of sovereign immunity in a contractual dispute must be provided for by stalute
in “clear and unambiguous™ language. Because it is unclear whether the Texas legislature has effectively waived the City’s
sovereign immunity fiom a suit for money damages, holders of the Obligations may not be able to bring such a suit against the City
for breach of the Obligations or the covenants in the Certificate Ordinance. Even if a judgment against the City could be obtained,
it could not be enforced by direct levy and execution against the City’s property. Further, the registered owners cannot (hemselves
foreclose on property within the City or sell property within the City to enforce the tax lien on taxable property to pay the principal
of and interest on the Obligations. Furthermore, the City is eligible to scek relief from its creditors under Chapter 9 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code (“Chapter 9°). Although Chapter 9 provides for the recognifion of a security interest represented by a specifically
pledged source of revenues, the pledge of ad valorem taxes in support of a general obligation of a bankrupt entity is not specifically
recognized as a security interest under Chapter 9. Chapter 9 also includes an automatic stay provision that would prohibit, without
Bankrupicy Court approval, the prosecution of any other legal action by creditors ot holders of the Obligations of an entity which
has sought protection under Chapter 9. Therefore, should the City avail itself of Chapter 9 protection from credilors, the ability to
enforce creditors’ rights would be subject to the approval of the Bankruptey Court (which could require that the action be heard in
Bankruptcy Court instead of other federal or state court); and the Bankruptey Code provides for broad discretionary powers of a
Bankruptcy Court in administering any proceeding brought before it. The opinion of Bond Counse! will note that all opinions
relative to the enforceability of the Certificate Ordinance and the Obligations are qualified with respect Lo the customary rights of
debtors relative to their creditors.

TAX INFORMATION

The foliowing is a summary of certain provisions of State law as it relates to ad valorem taxation and is nof intended to be complete,

Prospective investors are encowraged fo review Title I of the Texas Tox Code, as amended (the “Property Tax Code’), Jor

identification of property subject to ad valorem taxation, property exempt or which may be exempted from ad valorem faxation if
elaimed, the appraisal of property for ad valorem tax purposes, and the procedures and limitations applicable fo the fevy and
colfection af ad valoren javes.

VALUATION OF TAXABLE PROPERTY, . . The Property Tax Code provides for countywide appraisal and equalization of taxable
property values and establishes in each county of the State an appraisal district and an appraisal review board (the “Appraisal
Review Board”} responsible for appraising property for all taxing units within the county. The appraisal of property within the City
is the responsibility of the Dallas Central Appraisal District, Ellis County Appraisal District and Tarrant Appraisal District
{collectively, the “Appraisat District”) with respect to City property located within such counties, which are county-wide agencies
created under the Property Tax Cade for that purpose. Except as generally described below, the Appraisal District is required to
appraise all propetty within the Appraisal District on the basis of 100% of its market value and is prohibited from applying any
assessiment 1atios. In determining market value of propeity, the Appraisal District is required to consider the cost method of
appraisal, the income method of appraisal and the market data comparison method of appraisal, and use the method the chiel
appraiser of the Appraisal District considers most approptiate. The Property Tax Code requires appraisal districts to rcappraise afl
property in its jurisdiction at least once every three (3) years. A taxing unit may require annual review at its own expense, and is
entitled to challenge the determination of appraised value of property within the taxing unit by petition fited with the Appraisal
Review Board.

State law requires the appraised value of an owner’s principal residence (“homestead™ or “homesteads®) to be based solely on the
property’s value as a homestead, regardless of whether residential use is considered to be the highest and best use of the property.
State law further limits the appraised value of a homestead to the lesser of (1) the market value of the property or (2) 110% of the
apptaised value of the property for the preceding tax year plus the market value of ali new improvements to the propeity. The 10%
increase is cumulative, meaning the maximum increase is 10% times the number of years since the propetty was last appraised.

Slate law provides that eligible owners of both agricultural land and open-space land, inciuding open-space land devoted to farm
or ranch purpeses or open-space land devoted to timber production, may elect to have such property appraised for property taxation
on the basis of its productive capacity. The same land may not be qualified as both agricultural and epcn-space land.

The appraisal values set by the Appraisal District are subject to review and change hy the Appraisal Review Board, The appraisal
tolls, as approved by the Appraisal Review Board, are used by taxing units, such as the City, in establishing their tax rolls and tax
rates {see “TAX INFORMATION - City and Taxpayer Remedies"),
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Change in OPEB Liability Total OPER
Retiree Heclth Insurance Liability
Balance at Sepiemizer 30, 2019 $ 57.183,450
Changes for the year:
Service cost 2,196,5%8
Interest 2,214,000
Difference between expected
and actual experience {1.525.154)
Changes In assumptions 3,977,244
Benefit payments* (1.502,382)
Net changes 5,340,304
Balance at September 30, 2020 $ 62543756
Chonge in QPEB Liability Total OPEB
TMRS Supplemental Death Liability
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 4220784
Changes for the year:
Service cost 14717
Interest 168,603
Difference between expecied
and aciual experience {760,883)
Changes in assumptions 692.831)
Benefit payments* {39,444}
Net changes 199,024
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 4419808

*Due to the Plon being considered an unfunded OPER plon under GASR 75, benefit payments are reated as being equat to the
employer's yearly contributions for retirees.

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Roite

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City's refiree hedlth insurance calculoted using the
discount rate of 3.83%, as weil as what the City’s tofal OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using o
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower [2.83%) or 1 percentage point higher (4.83%) than the
current discount rate:

Sensitivity of the OPEB Liability 1o
Changes in the Discount Rate
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

b} 68,016,956 § 62543756 % 55,575,295
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The deaih benefit for aclive employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the
employee's annual salary {calculated based on the employee's actual eamings, for the 12-month peried
preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an "other post-
employment benefit,” or OPEB.

Retfiree Health Benefits .

Current employees who retire from the City of Grand Prairie under a TMRS Retirement / Plan option may
elect to remain on the City's medical, dental, and vision insurance plans as long as they meet the
following criteria:

« Under age of 65
« Currently working for the City immediately prior to retirement, and
« Payment of reguired monthly premiums by due date, or within grace period

TMRS Retirement / Plan option may include:

+ Service refirement, 25 years of TMRS creditable service af any age, or
» Age 80 and 5 years of TMRS creditable service
e Disability/medical retirement at any age, if approved by TMRS

Eliginility requirements do not vary by type of refirement. The refiree health care plan is a single-employer
defined benefit plan. No trust is setup for the plan; therefore, there is no separate audit report availkable.

Retirees pay a portion of their retiree health care premium based on their years of service with the City of
Grand Prairie, the plan selected, and dependent coverage when they refire. The base retiree health care
premium is based on the accrual rate, claims costs, and budget for the prior fiscal year.

Medical coverage for retiree benefits extends only to age 65. Once aretiree reaches age 65, they will be
dropped from medical coverage at the beginning of the month in which they turn 65. 1If aretiree cancels
any or all insurance at any time during retirement, they forfeit all rights 1o coverage through the City for
that benefit. If they cancel medical coverage all together, they may not elect medical again in the future
for any reason,

A spouse who is on the employee’s plan at the time of retirement may contfinue on the plan until the
spouse reaches age 65. Spouse coverage continues affer the employee reaches the age 65 and atfer
the death of the employee until the spouse reaches the age of 65, as well. Spouse coverage continues
even though the employee becomes Medicare eligible.

Rates for spouse coverage are dependent upon the employee's years of service with the City of Grand
Praitie. Spouses receive the same benefits as the employee. Surviving spouses of deceased active
members are not eligible for retiree health care benefits, unless they become eligible under TMRS and
elect retirement immediately following the month of death. They become “retiree” in that case.

For all retrements after 1/1/08, dependents must have been covered for the 2 years immediately
preceding the effective date of refirement o be eligible to continue coverage under retiree into
retirement.

New dependents gained during retirement {due to marriage or birth) may not be added to the City's
plan since they were not eligible at the time of retirement.
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“special taxing unit” means a cify for which the maintenance and operations tax rate proposed for the current tax vear is 2.5 cents
or less per $100 of taxable value.

sunused increment rate” means the cumulative difference between a city’s voter-approval tax rate and its actual tax rate for each
of the tax years 2020 through 2022, which may be applied to a city’s tax rate in tax years 2021 through 2023 without impacting the
voter-approval tax rate.

“yoter-approval tax rate” means the maintenance and operations tax tate that will produce the prior year’s total maintenance and

operations tax levy (adjusted) from the current year’s values (adjusted) multiplied by 1.035, plus the debl service tax rate, plus the
“unused increment rage”.

The City's tax rate consists of two components: (1} & vate for funding of maintenance and operations expenditures in the current
year (the “maintenance and operations tax rate”), and (2} a rate for funding deht service in the current year (the “debt service tax
rate’™). UInder State law, the assessor for the City must submit an appraisal roll showing the total appraised, assessed, and taxable
values of all property in the Cily to the City Council by August | or as soon as practicable thereaftes.

A city must annually caleulate its voter-approval tax rate and no-new-revenue tax rate in accordance with forms prescribed by the
State Comptrolier and provide notice of such rates to each owner of taxable property within the city and the county (ax assessor-
collector for each county in which ali or part of the city is located. A city must adopt a tax rate before the later of September 30 or
the 60th day afier receipi of the certified appraisal roll, except that a tax rate that exceeds the voter-approval tax rate must be
adopted not later than the 71st day before the next occurring November uniform election date. 1f 2 city fails to timely adopt a tax
rate, the tax rate is statutorily set as the Jower of' the no-new-revenue tax rale for the current tax year or the tax rate adapted by the
city for the preceding tax year.

As described below, the Property Tax Code provides that if a city adopts a tax rate that exceeds its voter-approval tax rate or, in
certain cases, its de minimis rate, an election must be held te determine whether cr not to reduce the adopted tax rate to the voter-
approval tax tate.

A city may not adopt a tax rate that exceeds the lower of the voter-approval tax rale ot the ne-new-revenuc tax rate until each
appraisal district in which such city participates has delivered notice to cach taxpayer of the estimated total amount of property
taxes owed and the city has held a public hearing on the proposed fax increase.

For cities with a poputation of 30,000 or more as of the most recent federal decennial census, if the adopted tax rate for any tax
year exceeds the voter-approval tax rate, that city must conduct an election on the next occurring November uniform election date
to determine whether or not to reduce the adopted tax fate to the voter-approval tax rate.

For cities with a population less than 30,000 as of the most recent federal decennial census, if the adopted tax rate for any tax year
exceeds the greater of (i) the voter-approval tax rate or (ii) the de minimis rate, the city must conduct an election on the mext
occurring November uniform election date to determine whether or not to reduce the adopted tax rate to the voter-approval tax rate,
However, for any tax year during which a city has a population of less than 30,000 as of the most recent federal decennial census
and does not qualify as a special taxing unit, if a city’s adopted tax rate is equal to o less than the de minimis rate but greater than
both (a) the no-new-revenue tax rate, naultiplicd by 1.08, plus the debt service tax rate or (b) the city’s voter-a pproval tax rate, then
a valid petition signed by at least thre percent of the registered voters in the city would require that an election be held to determine
whether or not to reduce the adopied tax rate to the voter-approval tax rate.

Any city located at least partly within an area declared a disaster area by the Governor of the State or the President of the United
States during the current year may calculate its voter-approval lax rate using a 1.08 multiplier, instead of 1.035, until the carlier of
(i) the second tax year in which such city’s total taxable appraised value cxceeds the taxable appraised value on January 1 of the
year the disaster occurred, or (ji} the third tax year after the tax year in which the disaster occurred.

State law provides cities and counties in the State the option of assessing a maximum one-half percent (1/2%) sales and use tax on
retail sales of taxable items for the purpose of reducing its ad valorem taxes, if approved by a majority of the voters in a local option
election, If the additional sales and usc tax for ad valorem tax reduction is approved and levied, the no-new-revenue tax rate and
voter-approval tax rate must be reduced by the amount of the estimated sales tax revenues to be generated in the current tax year.

The caleulations of the no-new-revenue tax rate and voter-approval tax rate do not limit or impact the City’s ability to set

a debt service tax rate in each year sufficient to pay debt service on all of the City’s tax-supperted debt obligations, including
the Cercificates.

Reference is made to the Property Tax Code for definitive requirements for the levy and celleetion of ad valorem taxes and the
calculation of the various defined tax rates.



DEBT TaX RATE LIMITATIONS. .. All taxable property within the City is subject to the assessment, levy and collection by the City
of a continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax sufficient to provide for the payment of principal of and interest on all ad vatorem
tax-supported debt within the limits prescribed by law. Article X1, Section $, of the Texas Constitution is applicable to the City,
and limits its maximum ad valorem tax rate to $2.50 per $100 of Taxable Assessed Valuation. Administratively, the Attorney
General of the State of Texas will permit allocation of $1.50 of the $2.50 maximum tax rate for all dzbt service on ad valoren tax-
supported debt, as calculated at the time of issuance,

CITY APPLICATION OF Tax CODE . . . The City grants an exemption to the market value of the residence homestead of persens 65
years of age or older of $45,000; the disabled are also granted an exerption of $30,000, Disabled veterans or the surviving spouse
or children of a deceased veteran who died while on active duty in the armed forces are granted a maximum exemption of up
$12,000 dependent upon the amount of disability. Disabled veterans (and spouses) awarded 100% disability compensation and a
disability rating of 100% are entitled to have 100% of the appraised value of their residence homestead exempted from property
taxcs,

The City has granted an additional exemption of 10% of the market value of residence homesteads; the minimum exemption is
$5,000.

See Table 1 for a listing of the amounts of the exemptions described above,

The City has adopted the tax freeze for citizens who are disabied or are 65 years of age or older, which became a local option and
subject to local referendum on January 1, 2004,

Ad valorem taxes are not levied by the City against the exempt value of residence homesteads for the payment of deb,
The City does not tax nonbusiness personal property.

Dallas County collects taxes for the City by contract.

The City does permit split payments, and discounts are not allowed.

The City does not tax Freeport Property.

The City does not collect the additional one-half cent sales tax for reduction of ad valorem taxes.

The City has adopted partial tax abatement guidelines, The City granted partial tax abatements to three companies See “Tax
ABATEMENTS” below,

The City has created three TIRZs, but at ¢his time only two are active,

TAX ABATEMENTS.. ... As of the 2021 certified roll (used for 2022 fiscal year) the City’s abatement agreements with three
companies resulted in $38,060,542 in appraised values being exempt (rom taxation, totaling $255,005 in taxes abated on the 2021
certified tax roll (used for the 2022 fiscal year).

Tax INCREMENT FINANCING ZONES..... Three TIRZs have been created within the City, with twa being currently active, TIRZ
No. | and TIRZ No, 3, TIRZ No. 1 was recently expanded to include more land mass within the City. Both active TIRZs have
combined property tax inerements of approximately $5,289,537 for Fiscal Year 2021. For the Fiscal Year 2022, the City anticipates
propetty tax revenue increments of $5,775,069. Both active TIRZs are still being developed.

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)
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Pension Expense and Deferred Quiflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Reiated to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2020, the city recognized pension expense of $19.217,648.

At September 30, 2020, the City reported deferred inflows/outflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference in expected and actual experience b 3.241,408 % (1.510,794)
[actuarial {gains) or losses)

Difference in assumptions 925,824

Difference inprojected and actual earnings
onpension plan investrnents - (170121103
[actuaricl {gains) or losses]

Employer's contributions to the pension plan
subsequent to the measurement date 12,453,895 -

$ 16,621,127 % (18,522,906)

The $12,453,895 reported as deferred outfiows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension iability for the
year ending September 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as defened outfiows and inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Measurement Net deferred
Year Ended outflows (inflows)

December 31 of resources
2020 $ (4.16%,174)
2021 [4,247,429)
2022 1,823,672
2023 (7.810.082)
2024 47.33¢%
Total $  {14355,674)

K. Other Postemployment Benefits {OFEB)
Plan Description

Supplemental Death Benefits

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance
plan operated by the TMRS known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund [SDBF). The City elected, by
ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both curent and retired employeaes, The
City may terminate coverage under and disconfinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance
before November 1 of any year to be effective the folowing January 1,
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TABLE 1 - VALUATION, EXEMPTIONS AND GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT
September 30, 2020

Tax Year 2021 (FY 21-22) Market Valuation Established by Dallas Central Appraisal District,

Discount Rate Tarrant Appraisal District, and Ellis County Appraisal District

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the Less Exemptions/Reductions
rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was Homestead

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive Over 65 & Disabled

$ 22,464,615,113

$ 686,130,452

406,482,782
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied fo Disabled Veterans 193,027,262
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability. Agricultural Use Reductions 62,661,160

Non-Taxable/Totally Exempt 1,496,233,722

Changes.in the Net Pension Liability Tax Abatements 31,247,363
Increase (Decrease) Freeport Property 885,513,388

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension Pollution Control 5,839,136

Liabilit Net Position Liabilit Under $500 583,212

Y Y Com HSE DEV 2,579,366

(Al (B) (A) - (B) Foreign Trade Zone 87,545,062

Balance at December 31, 2018
Changes for the year:

$ 587.394.541

$ 486,228,225

$ 101,166,316

Capped Value Loss
Total Exemptions/Reductions

481,037,728

$ 4,338,880,633

Service cost 17,424,628 - 17.424,628 2021/2022 Taxable Assessed Valuation $ 18,125,734,480
Interest 39,278,509 - 39,278,509
Change of benefit terms - - -
Difference between expected - Outstanding General Obligation Debt as of 2/1/2022 " $ 380,734,000
and actual experience 2,850,261 - 2,850,261 The Certificates 24,255,000
Changes in assurnptions 1,142,147 - 1,142,147 Total Outstanding General Obligation Debt as of 2/1/2022 $ 404,989,000
Contributions - employer - 16,638,630 (16,638,630)
Contributions - employee B 6,905,686 (6.905,686)
HEtToEeshmant e ame ) 121025 (257,025} Less Self-Supporting General Obligation Debt
Benefit paymenis* (28,406,023) (28,406,023) - Rimort g 555,000
Administrafive expense - (424.748) 424,746 Tax Increment Financing District No. 1 1,635,000
Other changes - (12,759) 12,759 Public Improvement Districts 310,000
Crime Control Prevention District 5,245,000
Net changes 32289 522 69.871.813 (37.582,291) Total General Obligation Self-Supporting Debt $ 7,745,000
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 619,684,063 $ 556,100,038 $ 63,584,025

* Includes refunds of employee contributions

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%,as
well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-

Net General Obligation Debt Pay able from Ad Valorem Taxes as of 2/1/2022

Interest and Sinking Fund balance as of 1/1/2022

Ratio General Obligation Tax Debt to Taxable Assessed Valuation

$ 397,244,000

3 18,961,957

2.19%

. : ; i 2022 Estimated Population - 200,640
percentage-point lower (5.75%) or one-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate: Per Capita Tasable Assessed Valustion - 5 90.340
e _ 5 Per Capita Net General Obligation Debt Payable
Sensitivity of the Net F'.enmon Liability to G A ——— $ 1.980
Changes in the Discount Rate
Current
1% Decrease single Rate 1% Increase (1) OnJanuary 18, 2022, the City approved General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022 A, B and C (the “Refunding Bonds™)

to refinance a portion of the City’s outstanding general obligation debt for debt service savings through a private placement.
The Refunding Bonds have an anticipated delivery date of February 16, 2022. The outsianding general obligation debt excludes

$ 151,726,229 $ 63,584,025 $ (8.768.674) the debt refunded by the Refunding Bonds and includes the Refunding Bonds.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued
TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Intemet at www.tmrs.com.
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TABLE 2 - TAXABLE ASSESSED YALUATIONS BY CATEGORY

Tasable Appraised Value for Fiscal Year Ended Seplomber 30,7

2022 2021 2020
Amotmt % of Tolal Amotnl % of Total Ampunt % of Total Actuarial Assumptions
Real, Residenitial. Single-Family 5 10265520735 4570% § 9.263,738070 43795% § 8,702,702,90% 42.82% . . . . . . . .
Real, Residential, Multi-Family 098,039,165 934% 1887988272 892% 588,113,327 2.80% The Total Fension tiability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the
Real, Vacant Platted Lots/Tracts 357,109,671 1.50% 310,804,651 1518 288,614,469 1.45% following actuariat assumptions:
Real, Acrcage (Land Only) 63,095,104 0.28% 63,418,971 0.32% 627,276 037
Real, Farm and Ranch lptovements 11,302 2832 0.05% 9,911,004 Q.05% T85,322 0.00% Inflati 2537
Real, Cominercial and Indust rial H37TE,TE2.444 24.83% 5,275,7 100240 24.92% 3,352, 103009 26.33% nilanon w0
(il, Gas Mineral Rezerves 23788415 a.11% 20,760,977 0.10%% 3TN 0.19% Sa|OrY Increases 30% to 11 50% per qur Including inflafion
Real e Tangible Pecsonal, Utilities 222,013,882 0.99% 229,563,134 108% 217,058,489 1.07% . :
Tangible Persaral, Fusiness 1,753.377.147 1671% 4000055 088 18048 3475124423 17.10% Investment rate of return 6.75%. net of pension planinv estment
Tangible Personal, Other 17472657 0.08% 17,940,686 Q.08% 2657940 0.01% . + . .
Special Inventory 74,108,057 0.33% 69,545,022 033% 56,371,520 0.28% expense, including inflation
Certified values in disp e - 0.00% - 0.00%: 411,654,298 2.03% . . .
Non-Taxable Property - 0.00% - o00%  1L1I1,126.67) 547% Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and
Total Appraised Value Before Exemptions S 21464615113 100004 F 21172497131 100,002 § 20,3256731.616 1 00.00% beﬂefiCiUfieS were based on the gender—disﬁncf RP?OOO Combiﬂed HeG”hy MO!’fC]liTy Tables Wifh
Less Exemptions: Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates muliiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates
gome;;e;dn_ " $ f:g;;g;;i § gg:;i:«?: $ :;zfi;m are projectaed on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For
AVET 53l ¥ " +f o LERLIA LY + ’ + . . + .
Dissbled Veterans 193,027,262 172.617.663 138,427 888 disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar
Agrieultural/Open Spaces 62.661.160 57.391.026 34.372,699 Adjustment are used with males rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with athree-
Non-Taxablc 1,496,233,722 1,524,398 672 1.436,365.414 war . . . .
Tax Abaternents 31247363 1640778 35,649,613 yeclr‘se‘r-fqrword for both males and femciles. In addition, 0_3% minimum mortality raje is applied to reflect
Frecport Property 885,513,328 1010555653 965,572,510 the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully
Poltution Control 5.839.136 200805 26t 077 T i H H H
Do pritid 175 000 o0.02s generational basis by scale 8B to account for future mortdiity improvements subject to the 3% floor.
Com HSE DEV 2,579,366 272,867 12,303,303 \ , . . . N . .
Foreign 'rade Zone 27,545,062 1647150 . The actuarial assumptions were developed prmarlly from the actuarial investigation of the
Capped Vilue Loss 481,037.738 356,080,640 33052120 experience of TMRS over the four year period from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014. They
Total Exemptions $ 4338880633 3 4.192196,016 F 4.000,550,508

were adoptedin 2015 and first used in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation. The post-retirement
mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity Purchase Rate (APRs) are based on the
Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013.
In conjunction with thase changes first used in the December 31, 2013 vatuation, the System adopted

Taxable Assessed Value £ 1B.125,734,4%0 % 15930.301,145 £ 16,325,123,108

Tamble Appraised Valve for Jiscal Year Ended Seplember 30,1

2019 2018 the Entry Age Normal Actuarioi cost method and a one-fime change to the amortization policy. Plan
Real, Residential. Single-Pannily 3 RAI?I‘;E:;;{( 070 %oﬁl:;r 3 {;rg;:'?sa% %oga;;; assets are manages on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as
al, [ AT - 3 3 HaELER - tn - . R . n . . - . N
Rea, Resident ial, M ulti-Fanily 445,719,187 7EI% 1195400146 705% the production of income, in order to satisfy the shori-term and long-term funding needls of TMRS.
Real, Vacant Platied Loas/Tencts 292,948 871 1 58% 251817282 1.50%
:“‘1-;‘"‘"53&““' f;"” . “2233§§§ g-;::;" ‘;;g;gg g;i; The leng-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
eal, Farm and Ranch linp rovements 500, L04% 527, . . . .
Reah, Commercial a.,d,,,.f:,mia. 3.474.724,125 1577% 3079017750 18.75% block method in which best estimate ranges of expected fulure real rates of return [expected returns, net
Oit, Gas Mineral Rescrves 15,860,528 0.10% 17.500.902 0.10% of pension plan investment expanse and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
Real and Tanpible P, al, Utilith 197,330,501 1.07% 180,239.772 1.06% . . .
']':_;g::le p::inzﬁ_ ]:;Ss‘i):ess e 3.223,646,846 1740%  3,194.539,962 18.85% are combined o produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
Tangible Personal, Oiler 10,116,667 0.05% 10,620,787 0.06% rates of retun by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. In
f‘;rf;;“\j;“ug‘:?n dpmte ,mf‘:ﬁ:; ?;iﬁf ﬁz:’l’;;g g:,_f;j determining their best estimate of a recommended investment return assumption under the various
Noo-Tasable Property 1,324,853 428 706% 1186206863 7.00% alternative asset allocation portfolios, GRS focused on the area between (1} arithmetic mean [aggressive)
Tolal Appraised Volue Before Exzmptions 3 _1B.512.092.412  100.00% 5 16951056044 100.00% without an adjustment for time (conservative) and (2] the geometiic mean (conservative] with an
Less Excpions: adjustment for time {aggressive}. The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each
Homestead 3309413678 § 303360667 major asset class in fiscal year 2020 are summarized in the following table:
Over 65 & Disabled 303401064 348917131
Digabled Velerans 116,731,360 29,178,560
Agricultuea®0 pen Spaces 7724319 368508 Long-Term Bxpected
Non-Tasmble 132,853,428 1.188,530,014 Redl Rate of Return
Tiax Abatements 30,822,819 33,730,575 Asset Class Target Allocation [ Arit hmetic)
Frcepart Prap erty L,001.108,814 077.034.125
Pollution Contiol 2,593,194 2,796427 Domestic Equity 17.5% 4.30%
Under $500 380.851 331,081 Inlemations! Equity 17.5% 610%
Com H3E DEV 91.880 11,800,000 Core Fixed Incame 100% 1.00%
Foreign Trade Zone By AT T1G £3.934.15) )
Capped Value Loss 44,280,284 330,975,497 Mon-Core Fixed Income 200% 3.39%
Total Exemplions §  3.757.076.819 §  3.420.449.736 Real Return 10.0% 3.78%
Redal Estate 10.0% 4.44%
Taxable Assessed Value 5 14.753,013,5931 § 13.521,607.208 Absalute Relurn 10.0% 3.54%,
Private Equity 50% 7.75%
{1} Valuations shown are certified taxable assessed values reported by the three Appraisal Districts 10 the State Compiroller of Public Accounts. [ —
Certified values are subject te change throughout the year as centested values are resolved and the Appraisal Districts updates records, Regarding Totat 100.0%
variances between the three districts require some estimates or adjustments to thess categories’ details.
20
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On March 5, 2009, Magna Entertainment Corporation, the parent company of MEC, filed for bankruptcy
under Chapter 11 federal bankruptcy protection. Subsequently, on September 14, 2009, Lone Stor filed
for bankruptcy protection.

On October 23, 2009, an auction for Lone Star was conducied with Global Gaming LSP, LLC [a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Chickasaw Nation} winning the auction for $47 million.

On May 13, 2011, Global Gaming obtained their license with the Texas Racing Commission. The sale was
completed on May 16, 2011. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, Global Goming has agreed to
assume the lease agreement between Lone Star and the Sports Corporation.

The agreement states that upon completion of the project, Global Gaming will lease the facility for a
period of thirty years. The lease became effective April 1997 and meets the requirements for accounting
as a direct financing lease.

The future base rent payments under the lease are as follows:

Yeqr Amount
2021 3 1,756,920
2022 1,888,689
2023 1,932,612
2024 1.932,612
2025 1,932,612
Thereafter 3,124,389
12,567 834
Less interest 2,840,830
Net present value 9,727,004
Less current portion 1.025,344

Non-current porfion 5 8,701,640

Additional contingent rentals are due monthly based upon 1% of gross revenues from the operation of
the track for each month plus an amount equal io the cumulative net retainage from the live races and
the simulcast races multiplied by the following percentage:

Cumulative Net Retainages Percentoage
30 1o less than $20 million 1%
$20 million 1o less than $40 million 3%
340 million to less than $60 million 5%
$40 million or more 7%

The lease has been accounted for as a capital lease. However, only the base rent payments are
determinable and are included in the lease payments receivable at the net present value of future rent
payments. The remaining portion of the Facility is recorded as estimated unguaranteed residual value of
the lease. Its fair value is estimated fo be approximately equal to the differences between the original
cost plus capitalized improvements of the Facility, net of what accumulated depreciation would be, and
the fixed lease payments receivable. Therefore, this amount is being amortized over the life of the lease
(thirty years). Amortization for the year ended September 30, 2020 was $4.305,040 Additional contingent
rentals are recorded as revenue when received.
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OTHER OBLIGATIONS , .. The City has no other property tax supporied debt outstanding as of the date of this Official Statement
cxcept as deseribed herein,

RETIREMENT PLAN . . . All eligible employees of the City are members of the Texas Municipal Retirement System ("TMRS".
Members can retire at ages 60 and above wilh 5 or more years of service or with 20 years of service regardless of age. The Plan also
provides death and disability benefits. A member is vested afier 5 years, but he musi leave his accumulated contributions in the Plan.
[f a member withdraws his own money, he is not entitled to the employer-financed monetary credits, even if he was vested, The Plan
provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available In the State statutes governing TMRS and within
the actual constraints also in the statutes.

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annwally by the actoary, using the Eatry Age
Normal (EAN) cost method (EAN was first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation; previously, the Projected Unit Credit actuarial
cost method had been used). This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution rate, which
is caleulated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate for an employee is the contribution
vate which, if applied to a member's compensation throughout their peried of anticipated covered service with the municipality,
would be sufficient to meet all benefits payable on their behalf. The salary-weighted average of the individual rates is the total normal
cost rate. The prior service contribution rate amottizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable period
for that city. Both the normal cost and prior service contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually
repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases.

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and she City make confributions nonthty.
Since the City needs 1o know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, therc is a one-year delay between the actuarial
valhation thal serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes info effect.

Unfunded Unfunded Pension
Net Assets Pension Pension Annual Renefit Obligation
Fiscal Available Benefit Percentage Benefit Covered as a Percentage of
Year for Benefits Obligation Funded Obligation Payroll Covered Payroll
2016 $426,404,111 $ 496,727,015 25.80% $70,322,904 $79,933,264 85.64%
2047 444,611,622 525,359,395 84.63% 80,747,733 87,729,762 91.01%
2018 504,848,965 555,774,884 90.84% 50,925,919 92,501,160 57.00%
2019 426,228,223 587,394,540 82.78% 101,166,317 093,746,412 108.00%
2020 556,100,038 619,684,063 80.70% 63,584,025 98,611,365 64.48%

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to providing pension benefits through the Texas Municipal Refirement System, the City has opted to provide cligible
retired empleyees with the following post-employment benefits:

Eligible retirees may purchase health insurance fiom the City’s healthcare provider, The cost of insurance varies based on date
retired, plan selected, and years of Grand Prairie service. The cost of coverage is shared between the City and the retivee in varying
increments based on the above factors.

Eligible retirees may purchase health insurance from the City's heailhcare pravider at the City’s cost to cover current employces
for dependents if the dependents were cavered consceutively during the past two years prior to the retivement date. The cost of
msurance varics based on date retired, plan selected, and years of Grand Prairie service. The cost of coverage is shared between
the City and the retires in varying increments based on the above factors.

The City recognizes its sharc of the costs of providing these benefits when paid, on a “pay -as-you-go” basis. These payments are
budgeted anoually. The appropriation for the fiseal year ending September 30, 2020 was $2,152,381.32. The budgeted amount
for such benefits in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 is $2,241,666.

In fiscal 2017/2018, the City implesnented GASB Statement No. 75 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-employment
Benefits Other Than Pensions.” The City has performed an actuarial valuation ofits post-retirernent benefit liability. 1t has engaged
an independent actuarial firm to prepare a valuation, The City reviewed the study and plans to comply with legal requircments to

perform additional studies in the future at the required intervals, The actuarial liability is estimated at $37,183,450 at September
30,2049,

For more information concerning the City’s post-employment benefits, see the financial statements of the City, and the notes
thereto.
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TABLE 11 - CHANGE IN NET ASSETS September 30, 2020

Fiscal Year Ending, September 30,

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Grand Praitie Housing Finance Corporation
Revenues The GPHFC has a general obligation note payable to a bank which was used to construct the Cotton
Fees, Fines and Charges for Services  § 43,280,739 § 51,189,057 § 47,831,146 $ 50,349,054 $ 45,025,523 Creek and Willow Tree Learning Center. The note bears a rate of 4.25% and is payable in equal monthly
Operating Grants and Contributions 63,784,399 30,265,579 36,511,876 35,572,942 37,024,064 installments of $12,438 through Sepiember 21, 2040.
Capital Grants and Contributions 417,050 8,575,572 3,971,782 8,305,146 8,807,012
(eneral Revenues: In December, 2003, the HFC issued Independent Senior Living Center Revenue Bonds for $13.890,000 to
Property Taxes 116020990 § 106,378,593 § 94,648,600 3 84925774 § 77,923,990 finance the construction and operations of its planned Senior Living Center facility. The bonds bear
Sales Taxes 70,808,392 69,672,182 64,250,717  60,585824 57,076,997 interest rates from 7.5% to 7.75% depending on longevity, Beginning January 1, 2011, semi-annual
Other Taxes and Assessments 1,794,491 2,231,019 2,208,208 2,015,917 1,791,075 refirements of the Bonds began and continues through January 1, 2034. The bonds are non-recourse
Franchise Fees 13,903,806 14,796,138 14,485,521 9:996,934 13,928,847 liabilities collateralized solely by the land and construction in progress, less the accrued interest.
Investment Income 7,952,664 9,776,886 3,506,788 2,425,419 2,173,508
Other - - - - - s . .
Total Reveres 5 317071551 8 302455026 267448 S 254137010 SIBI5ATS A summary of long-term debt activity during the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:
Due
Expenses L. ] T
Sz;port Services $ 31310741 § 30,669,782 § 27614430 § 26,731,588 $ 23045026 Beginning N _ Ending within
Public Safety 113,728,877 109,767,831 101,033,502 100,253,923 91,860,495 Balarce Additions Deletions Balance One Year
Recreation and Leisure 32,949,455 35,232,643 33,942,742 32,962,890 29,709,690 Note payable $ 2114592 3§ - $ (60.613) $§ 2054379 § 43,148
Development and Other Services 110,126,929 102,740,890 97,241,362 90,088,069 88,963,122 Revenue bonds 7,160,000 . (255,000) £.905.000 965,000
Interest on Long-Term Debt 12,689,169 14,987,576 12,481,762 12,108,299 12,374,896 subordinale bonds 4,550,000 . ] 4.550.000 i
$ 300805171 § 293398722 $272313,79%8 $262,144,769 $ 245,953,229 Developer 1oan 1,425,532 41759 i 1,467,991 ]
Increase i net position before ransfers  § 17,166,360 $ 9,086,304 $ (4,898980) $ (7,967,759) $ (2,202,213) Tolal § 15250524 § 41759 $ (315413} $ 14976670 $ 328,148
Transfers, net 4,830,309 7,253,810 6,272,419 5,271,645 5,346,108
Increase (decrease) in Net Position $ 21997359 § 16340114 §  1,373439 § (2,696,114) $ 3,143,805 Effective July 1. 2010 the bonds of the Senior Living Center were reissued in two sesies: $8.430,000 in Priority
Prior period adjustments * $ - % - 5 (49,038,142) $ - % - Lien Revenue Bonds and $4,550,000 in Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds.
Net position - beginning 374,082,846 357,742,732 405,407,435 408,103,540 404,959,654 »
Net position - ending § 396080205 _§ 374,082,846 $357,742,732 $405.407435 §408,103,540 Future maturities of the debt are as foflows:
Year Ending Note Payable Revenue Bonds
December 31, Principal interest Principal interest
(1) Transfers
2020 $ 63048 3 B6I0Y $ 265000 §  529.837
2021 65,885 83.372 295,000 508,981
2022 68,740 80,517 315,000 485,731
2023 71,719 77.538 340,000 460,738
2024 74.824 74,429 370,000 434,000
2025-2029 425,682 320,602 2,335,000 1,681,944
2030-2034 526,271 220013 2,985,000 604,306
{THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.) 2035-2039 650,629 95.655 -
2040 107,481 1,889 -
Total $ 2054379 § 1040124 § 4905000 $ 4705537

The Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds are not scheduled above as their payments are contingent upon
cash flow and payment amounts and periods are uncertain.

Leases

Grand Praifie Sporis Facilities Development [Sports Corporation] - A Component Unit

On September 15, 1995, the Sports Corporation and LSJC entered into a lease agreement. On
October 23, 2002, Lone Star, LSJC, and MEC Lone Star, L.P. (MEC) entered into an asset purchase
agreement whereby MEC agreed to purchase substantially all of the racing assets of Lone Star and LSJC.,
The Master Agreement between the Sports Corporation, Lone Star, and LSJC was terminated. Lone Star
and LSJC assigned to MEC dll of their rights and obligations under the lease and certain ancillary
agreements with the Sports Corporation,

26
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Water and Wastewater System Debi Service Coverage
The following covenants are included in various water and wastewater system revenue bond indenture
ordinances:

o Net revenues {defined as gross revenues less expenses of operatfion and maintenance} are
pledged for the payment of bond principal and inferest.

e Additional water and wastewater system revenue bonds cannot be issued unless the "net
eamings” {defined as gross revenues after deduciing the expenses of operation and
maintenance, excluding depreciation and certain other items specified in the ordinances) of the
system for twelve consecutive months out of the fifteen months prior to the date of such bonds is
equal to at least 1.25 times the average annual requirements for the payment of principal and
inferest on the then-outstanding bonds and any additional bonds then proposed to be issued.

« Allrevenues derived from the operations must be kept separate from other funds of the City.

e The amount required to meet interest and principal payments faling due on or before the next
maturity dates of the bonds is fo be paid into the water and wastewater system interest and
redemption account during each vear.

At September 30, 2020, compliance with these covenanis can be demonstrated as follows:

Systemrevenue ' $ 82,440,094
Operating expenses:
W ater purchased 17,194,531
Sewage disposal contract 17,699.189
Other operating expenses 23,494,317
Total expenses 4 58,388,037

Netrevenve (available for debt service) $ 24052057

Average annual principal andinterest requirements, oll water

and wastewater revenue bonds of September 30, 2020 % 3089544
Coverage of average annual requirements based on
September 30, 2020 reverue available for debt service 7.78

{1) Includes cperating rev enues, plus iny estment income and impact fees
{2) Excludes depreciation expense.
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TABLE 12 - GENERAL FUND REVENUES AND EXPENDITURE HISTORY

Revenues:

Property Taxes

Sales Taxes
Franchise Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Licenses and Permits
Interest

Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Administrative Services
Public Safety Services
Development Service and Other
Recreation and Eeisure Services
Capital Outlays

‘Fotal Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency ) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Transfer in (Out) Net

Proceeds for sale of capital assets

Beginning Fund Balance

Prior period adjustments

Ending Fund Balance

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
$ 60356384 § 66107431 S 61,122817 $ 56275511 § 53681627
34,938,179 34,381,013 31,532,937 20,804,519 27,922,103
12,903,806 14,796,138 14,485,52 | 13,805,038 13,928,847
4,978,448 5,964,359 5,847,113 5,676,907 5,796,986
5,758,341 7,380,465 7,337,547 7,633,756 7,740,514
2,981,599 3,242,194 3,000,527 3,080,890 3,457,438
7,833,606 9,490,011 3,213,375 2,065,665 1,833,724
19,293,703 9,345,745 8,372,846 8,377,136 8,156,437
$ 150544066 $ 150,707356 § 134912713 § 126720322 § 122,517,676
$ 22783021 % 22976923 $ 22333632 $ 20,899,884 $ 18,145433
88,318,340 87,527,565 84,283,161 78,678,246 73,478,242
13,263,283 13,461 438 12,947,245 12,686,050 12,391,453
2,802,857 2,844,027 2,760,622 2,591,734 2,398,214
1,261,630 819,915 1,086,949 1,305,324 {668,480
$ 128429131 § 127,629.868 § 123411609 $ 116,161,238 $ 108,081,822
$ 31,114,935 $ 23,077488 $ 11,501,104 $ 10,559,084 § 14,435,854
(16,762,667)  (12,704,188)  (10,106,151) (51,110,985)  (11,794,063)
1,115,891 1,067,920 1,003,393 886,711 621,458
45,186,271 33,745,051 31,346,705 31,011,895 27,148,646
(6,000.00) - - - -
$ 60648430 § 45186271 $ 33,745,051 $ 31346705 $ 31,011,895

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)
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TABLE 13 - MUNICIPAL SALES Tax HISTORY
September 30, 2020

The City has adopted the Municipal Sales and Use Tax Act, Tax Code, Chapter 321, which grants the City the power to impose and
levy a 1% Local Sales and Use Tax within the City; the proceeds are credited to the General Fund and are not pledged to the payment
of the Obligations. Collections and enforcements are administered through the offices of the Comptroller of Public Accounts, State of

At September 30, 2020, the aggregate debt service payments for long-term debt through the final year

Texas, who remits the proceeds of the tax to the City monthly, after deduction of a 2% service fee. of meur“y for the Cityls water and wastewater system were s follows:

‘ Fiscal Water and W astewalter System Revenue Bonds
Fauivalent of Year Principal Interest Total
Total Ad
i o o &R ety ety - Tou e T 2021 § 5120000 $ 1.388.655 § 6,508,655
nde ity arks & Ree. reets olicing i o ate
201§ $ 31,532,937 $ 8207902 § 8207902 § 809,074 § 8207902 § 64,250,717 $0.2332 2022 5.295.000 1.214.044 6,509,044
2019 29,206,350 7,301,588 7,301,858 7,264,961 7,301,588 58,376,344 0.1979 2023 5.445,000 1.061.202 6,506,202
2020 35,400,956 8,250,239 8,250,239 8,824,550 £,850,239 70,776,223 0.2168 2024 5,620,000 882,439 6,502,439
2021 18,857,085 9,714,271 9,714,271 9,648,997 9714271 77,648,895 N 0.228% 2025 5.140,000 703,150 5,843.150
2022 11,281,717 2,820,429 2,820,420 2,798,904 2,820,429 22,541,909 0.,0622 2026 4,145,000 545,598 4,490,598
{1} City General Fund nly. 2027 3,200,000 409,031 4,309.031
(2) Collections through December 31, 2021 on a cash basis. 2028 2,315,000 313,748 2,628,748
SALES TAX ELECTIONS 2029 2,380,000 247,088 2,627 088
2030 2,055,000 185,14} 2,240,141
The votess appl'ove_d a one-fourth cent (174 cent) local sales and use tax rate (“Parkg & Rec Sales Tax™ atan election held onNovember 2031 1,090,000 137,278 1,227 278
2, 1999 under Section 334.021 of Chapter 334, Local Government Code. The additional sales tax receipts is used exclugively for costs
associated with the municipal parks and recreation system as defined in Section 334.001{4)(D). The City began collecting the tax in 2032 850.000 103,280 953280
April 2000, The Parks and Rec Sales Tax is not pledged to nor available for payment on the Obdigations, 2033 880,000 74,736 254,736
The vot d fourth cent (1/4 cent) local sal d use tax rate (the “Street Repair Sales Tax™) at lection held 2034 610,000 20912 860512
e voters approved a one-fourth cen cent) Jocal sales and use tax rate (the “Street Repair Sales Tax™) at an election held on

November 6, 2001 under Chapter 327 Subtitle C, Title 3, Tax Code, which are used exclusively for street repair maintenance, The 1/4 2035 630.000 32,014 682,016
cent sales tax was reavthorized in May 2009 and again in May 2017 for 8 years. The Street Repair Sales Tax is not pledged io or 2034 650,000 12,2564 642,256
available for payment of the Obligations, 2037 160,600 1.832 161,832
On May 12, 2007 voters approved a half cent sales tax to be utilized ina 1/4 cent and two 1/8 cent increments for the following projects: 2038 160,000 1144 161.144
2039 710,800 392 711,192

-A one-fourth cent (1/4 cent) local sales and use tax under Section 363,054, Local Governiment Code for Community Policing
District to fund a new Police Center. (*Crime Control Sales Tax™) Total $ 47155800 § 7363942 § 54,519,742
-A one-eighth cent (1/8 cent) local sales and use tax for a new Senior Center. (*Senior Center Tax™)

-A one-eighth cent (1/8 cent) local sales and use tax for a minor league baseball stadivm. (*Baseball Stadium Tax™)

Al September 30, 2020, long-term debt is being repaid solely from dirport revenues. Aggregate debt

The additional sales tax receipts were to be exclusively for costs associated with each of the projects. The City began collecting the service p(:fymenfs forlong-term debt through the final year of maturity for the City's municipal airport were
tax on October 1, 2007, Such sales tax is not pledged to or available for payment of the Gbligations. as follows:

At an election held on May 10, 2014, voters abolished the Senior Center Tax and the Basebail Stadium Tax, effective September 30, Fiscal Certificates of Obligation
2015, and adopted a new addilional 1/4% city sales and use tax for the City’s EPIC project {the “Central Park Sales Tax™) as permitted

under the provisions of Chapter 334, Local Government Code, effective October 1, 2015. The Central Park Sales Tax receipts are Year Principa Inferest Tofal

used to pay the costs associated with the City’s EPTC project. The City began collecting the tax on October 1, 2015. Such sales tax is

not pledged 10 or available for payment of the Obligations. 2021 $ 170000 % 31,830 § 201,830
2022 175,000 23,375 198,375

Atan efection on Novenber 3, 2020, the 149% sales tax for the Community Policing District was reauthorized for a period of ten years, 2023 185.000 14,375 199 375
2024 195,000 4,875 199875
Total 3 725000 % 74,455 % 799.455

{THE REMAINDER OF THiS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)

28

6%



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2020

At September 30, 2020, changes in long-ierm debt for the City’s business-type dactivities were as follows:

W ater and wastewater:
Revenue bonds
Series 2010
Series 201

Series 2011 A

Series 2013
Series 2014
Series 2015
Series 2016
Series 2017
Series 2017 A
Series 2019
Series 2019

Total revenve bonds
Bond premiums fcliscounts
Total water and wastewater

Municipal airport:
Certificate of obligation
Series 2004 A

Total municipat airport

Tetal change in long-term debt -
business-lype activilies

Balance Balance
October 1, Borrowings Payments September 30, Due Within
2019 orincregse  or Decredse 2020 One Year

$ 3110000 % - % {240,000 $ 2870000 § 250,000
1,945,000 [585.000] 1,380,000 610,000

5,705,000 - {5,205,000) - -
8.8%0,000 - {1,320.000) 7,570,000 1,340,000
2.800,000 - (240,000) 2,560,000 240,000
3,475000 - (385,000) 3,090,000 390.000
16,265,000 - {1.085,000) 15,180,000 1,110,000
4,330,000 - [3%0.000) 3,540,000 3%0,000
2, 755000 - {50,000) 2,705,000 55,000
3,730,800 - {140,000} 3,570,800 160,000
- 4,290,000 - 4,290,000 555,000
53,225800 4,290,000 (10,350,000} 47,155,800 5,120,000

3,752,233 262,200 [648,755] 3,367,678 -
56978033 4,552,200 {11,006,755) 50,523,478 5,120,000
885,000 - {160,000) 725000 170,000
885,000 - (140,000} 725,000 170,000
$57.863,033  $4,552,200  ${11,166.755} $ 51.248478  $5.290,000

In April 2020, the City issued $4,290,000 in Water and Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2020. $5,125.000 was used to advance refund the oulstanding Series 2011A Water and W astewater
System Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds leaving no remaining outstanding principal as of
September 30, 2020. As a resuit, the fully refunded bonds are considered defeased, and ihe liability for
those bonds has been removed from the government-wide statements. The refunding resulted in a
decrease in the City's debt service payments of $670,409, which resulted In an economic gain (difference
between the present value of the debt service payments of the old debt and new debt) of $309,360.
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DEVELOPMENT FEES

The City’s impact fees are used for water improvements and wastewater improvements and are not pledged to the payment of the debt
service requirements of the Chligations. 1mpact fees for roadway improvements were eliminated in 2001. Each of the two types of
fees are developed separately based upon excess capacity ol existing infrastructure and projected construction of capital improvements
aver the next 10 years. Revenues generated by impact fees can only be used to finance the improvements identified in an adopted
capital improvements plan. The City must update land use assumptions and capital improvemernis plans every five years.

Iimpact Fee Revenues

FYE Waier Wastewater

2017 $ 1,403,218 & 404,663
2018 1,910,802 §27,434
2019 1,075,784 427,744
2020 1,303,498 534,079
2021 3,126,913 1,774,290

The City created a storm water utility under the Texas Municipal Drainage Utility Systems Act. Such Act provides for the creation of
a storm water utility to provide storm water services including planning, operations, maintenance, and capital improvements for siorm
water runoff. Such Act also provides for collection of user fees bused on storm water runofl volumes.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The City's acerued unfunded compensated absences liability is approximately $21,533,868 as of September 30, 2020.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Property, liability, safety, workers’ compensation and health and wellness insurance are accounted for in the Risk Management
Fund, an internal service fund. Net expenses of these programs in property was $4,321,886, liability and workers' compensation
and $17,771,441 for employee heaith and wellness insurance.

Beginning October ¥, 1991, the City placed all of its property, liability and workers' compensation coverage with Texas Municipal
League Intergovernmental Risk Poot. The limits of ltability and retention vary according to type of coverage provided.

The operating funds are charged premiums for property, fiability, workers' compensation and employee health coverage by the
Risk Management Fund. Employees pay for dependent health coverage independently. The incurred but unreported claims for
these programs as of Septerber 30, 2020 were $1,961,897.

The City allows retired employees to continue participating in its group healsh insurance program after retirement with alt premiums
paid by the retivees.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The City Council and staft make financial decisions throughout the year based upon financia) guidelines. The Financial Management
Pelicies (FMP) provides a framewotk, or master plan, within which to make operating and capital budget decisions, as well as other
financial decisions. The primary objective of the FMP is to enable the City to achieve a long-term stable and positive financial
condition.

The policies which are updated annually to address the following subjects: accounting, auditing and financial reporting, internal
controls, operating budget, capital budget and program, revenue management, expenditure control, asset management, financial
condition and reserves, debt management, and staffing and training, Significant issues addressed by the policics include the following:

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING . . . The City policy is to adhere to the accoumting principles establishied by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, as amended.

GENERAL FUND BALANCE . . . The City's goal is to maintain at least 0 days ef expenditures of the Generaf Fund expenditures budget
in the General Fund resources balance.

DEBT SERVICE FUND BALANCE . . . The City policy is to maintain balances of no greater than one month of principal and interest
requirements except that the City's revenue bond pelicy and bond erdinance requirement are to maintain revenue suppotted debt service
reserves at the level of the average annual debs service plus an aimount accrued for the debt service payment.

Use OF BOND PROCEEDS, GRANTS, ETC . . . The City palicy is to use bond proceeds anly for major assets with expected lives which
equal ot exceed the average life of the debt issue.
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BUDGETARY PROCEDURES . . . The City policy is to pay for current expenditures with certain revenues and to utilize reserves only for
emergencies, The annual operating budget shall provide for operation and maintenance of capital plant.

FUND INVESTMENTS . . . The City policy is to invest its cash with three objectives in mind listed in arder of priority; safety, Fquidity
and yield. Unrestricted idle cash is pooled for short-term investment in govetnment securifies, money market mutual funds and local
government investment pools. The mix and term of investments is determined based on the City's liquidity needs and the yield curve,

Tax ABATEMENTS . . . The City policy is to grant tax abatement for the development of new facilities or the expansion of existing
facilities for which the life of the facility exceeds the life of the abatement. For properties not in an enterprise zone, total investment
must exceed $5,000,000, total job creation must exceed 25 permanent positions, the abatement period may not exceed 10 years and
the abatement percentage may not exceed 75%.

INVESTMENTS

The City invests its investable funds in investments anthorized by Siate law in accordance with investment policies approved by the
City Council (“Investment Policies™). Both State law and the City’s investment policies are subject to change.

LEGALINVESTMENTS... Both State law and the City's investment policies are subject to change. Under State law, the City is authorized
to invest in obligations meeting the requirements of the Publie Funds Investment Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256, as
amended (the “PFIA™), which may include: (1) obligations, including letters of credit, of the United States or its agencies and
instrumentalities, including the Fedoral Home Loan Banks; (2) direct obligations of the State or its agencies and instrumentalities; (3)
collateralized morigage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality of the United States, the underlying security
for which is guaranteed by an agency et instrumentality of the United States; (4) other obligations, the principal and interest of which
are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by or backed by the full faith and credit of, the State or the United States or their respective
agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations that are fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
or by the explicit full faith and eredit of the United States; (5) obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political
subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than A or its
cquivalent; (6) bonds issued, assumed or guavanteed by the State of Istael; (7} interesi-bearing banking deposits thai are guaranteed or
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund or its
successor; (8) interest-bearing banking deposits other than those described by clause (7) if (A) the funds invested in the banking
deposits are invested through: (i) a broker with a main office or branch office in this State that the investing entity selects from a list
the goveming body or designated investment committee of the entity adopts as required by Section 2236.025; or (i) a depository
institutien with a main office or branch office in this State that the investing entity selects; (B) the broker or depository institution
selected as described by {A) above arranges for the deposit of the fimds in the banking deposits in one ar more federally insured
depository institutions, regardless of where located, for the investing entily’s account; (C) the full amount of the principal and accrued
interest of the banking deposits is insured by the United States or an instrumentality of the United States; and (D) the investing cntity
appoints as the entity’s custadian of the bavking deposits issued for the entity’s account: (i) the depository institution selected as
described by (A) above; (ii} an entity described by Section 2257.041(d), Texas Government Code; or (i) a clearing broker dealer
registered with the Sccurities and Exchange Commission and operating under Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢3-3 {17
C.F R, Section 240.15¢3-3); (9) certificates of deposit and share certificates (i} issued by a depository institution that has its main effice
or a branch office in the State of Texas, and are guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor or
the National Credit Union Insurance Fund or its successor, or are secured as to principal by obligations described in the clauses (1D
through (8} or in any other manner and amount provided by law for City deposits, or (ii) where (a) the funds are invested by the City
through (1) a broker that has its main office or a branch office in the State and is selected from a list adopted by the City as required by
law or (IT} a depository institution that has its main office or a branch office in the State that is selected by the City; (b) the broker or
the depository institution selected by the City arranges for the depusit of the funds in certificates of deposit in one or more federally
insured depository institutions, wherever located, for the account of the City; (o) the full amount of the principal and accrued interest
of each of the cerlificates of deposit is insured by the United States or an instrumentality of the United States, and (d) the City appoints
the depository Institution selecled under (2) above, an entity as described by Section 2257.041(d) of the Texas Government Code, or a
clearing broker-dealer tegistered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and operating pursuant to Securities and Exchangs
Comtnission Rule 15¢3-3 (17 C.F.R. Section 240,15¢3-3) as custodian for the City with respect to the certificates of deposit; (10) fully
collateralized repurchase agreements that have a detined termination date, are fully secured by a combination of cash and obligations
described in clause (1} which are pledged to the City, held in the City’s name, and deposited at the time the investment is made with
the City or with a third party sclected and approved by the City and arc placed through a primary government securities dealer, as
defined by the Federal Reserve, or a financial institution doing business in the State; (11} securities lending programs if (1) the securities
loaned undet the program are 100% collateralized, a loan made under the program allows for termination at any time and a loan made
under the program is cither secured by (a) obligalions that arc described in clauses (1) through (8) above, (b) irrevocable letters of
credit issued by a state or national bank that is continuously rated by a nationally tecognized investment rating firm at not less than A
or its equivalent or (¢) cash invested in obligations described in clauses (1} through (8) above, clauses {13) through {15) below, or an
authorized investment pool; (i} securities held as collateral under a loan are pledged to the City, held in the City's name and depaosited
at the time the investment is made with the City or a third party designated by the City; (iii) a loan made under the prograim is placed
through either a primary government securities dealer or a financial institution doing business in the State; and (iv) the agreement to
lend securities has a term of one year or less, {12) certain bankers’ acceptances with the remaining term of 270 days or less, if the short-
term obligations of the accepting bank or its parent are rated at least A-L or P-1 or the equivalent by at least one nationally recognized
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities

Long-term debt in the business-type activities column of the government-wide Statement of Net Position
consists of general obligation refunding bonds, water and wastewater system revenue bonds, certificates
of obligation bonds, and unamortized bond premiums/discounts. Bonds issued  for
business-type  activities are secured by a pledge of the property tax levy of the City, but are
self-supporting obligations which are paid from the respective net revenues of each activily. Bond
proceeds are used fo fund additions and improvements to the City's water and wastewater system, solid
wdaste system, municipal golf courses, and municipal airport.

At September 30, 2020, long-term debit for the City's business-type activities consisted of the following:

Interest Year of Year of Criginal Amount
Rate % Issue Maturity Amount Quistanding
W ater and wastewater:
Revenue bonds
Series 2010 0.0-2.587 20190 2030 $ 4995000 $ 2,870,000
Series 2011 2.0-4.25 2011 2031 8,240,600 1,380,000
Series 201 1A 20-50 2011 2031 11,020,000 -
Series 2013 20-40 2013 2026 14,045,000 7,570,000
Series 2014 0.0-1.990 2014 2030 4,000,000 2,560,000
Series 2015 2.25-40 2015 2027 4,155,000 3,090,000
Series 2014 20-50 2016 2036 17,625,000 15,180,000
Serfes 2017 0.0-0.8 2017 2030 5,110,000 3,940,000
Series 2017A 2.0-4.0 2017 2034 2,755,000 2,705,000
Series 2019 0.0-0.49 201% 2039 3,730,800 3,570,800
Series 2020 5.00 2020 2031 4,290,000 4,290,000
Total bonds poavaoble - water wastewater 47,155,800
Unamortized bond premiums/discounts 3,347,678
Total long-term debt - water wastewater 50,523,478
Municipat airport:
Certificates of obligation bonds
Series 2004A 2.25-50 2004 2024 2,120,000 725,000
Tolal long-term debt - business-lype activities $ 51.248.478
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2020

Fiscal Total
Yeor Principal Inferest Total
2021 3 34875000 $ 16342285 $ 51,217,285
2022 34,200,000 14,130,639 50,330,639
2023 28,620,600 12,108,261 40,728,261
2024 2%.100,000 11,036.385 40,136,385
2025 22,705,000 10,052,490 32,757,490
2024 27,275,000 2,138,281 36,413,281
2027 20,710,000 8,243,663 28,953,663
2028 18.080,000 7459276 25,539,276
2029 18,630,000 6,720,907 25,350,907
2030 17,840,000 6,001,850 23,841,850
2031 18,165,000 5,303,478 23,468,478
2032 17,950,000 4,613,752 22,563,752
2033 18,655,000 3,908,409 22,563,409
2034 18,570,000 3,145,328 21,735,328
2035 14,225,000 2,487,719 16,712,719
2036 12,925,000 1,901,553 14,826,553
2037 10,625,000 1,384,448 12,009,448
2038 2,510,000 933,270 10,443,270
2039 2,950,000 493,089 10,443,089
2040 5,325,000 133,977 5,458,977

$ 389,935,000

$ 125559.060

$ 515,494,060
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credit rating agency, (13) commercial paper with a stated maturity of 365 days or less that is rated at least A-1 or P-1 or the equivalent
by cither (a) two nationally recognized credit rating agencies ot {b) one natlonally recognized credit rating agency if the paper is fully
secured by an irrevocable letter of eredit issuved by a 1.8, or state bank, (14} a no-load money matket mutual fund registered with and
regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission that provides the City with a prospectus and other information required by the
Securifies Exchange Act of 1934 or the Invesimenl Company Act of 1940 and complies with federal Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 2a-7, and (15) no-load mutual funds registered with the Securitics and Exchange Commission that have an average
weighted maturity of less than two years, and have a duration of ohe year or more and are invested exclusively in obligations described
in this paragraph or have a duration of less than one year and the investment portfolio is limited to investment grade securities, exciuding
asset-backed securities. T addition, bond proceeds may be invested in guaranteed invesiment contracts that have a defined termination
date and are seeured by obligations, including letters of credit, of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities in an amount

at least equal to the amount of bond proceeds invested under such contract, other than the prohibited obligations described in the next
succeeding paragraph.

The City may invest in such obligations directly or through goverament investment pools that invest solely in such obligations provided
that the poois are rated no lower than AAA ar AAAm or an equivalent by at least one nationally recognized rating service. The City
may also contract with an investment management firm registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Section 80h-
i et seq.) or with the State Secwrities Board to provide for the investment and management of its public funds er other funds under its
control for a term up to two years, but the City retains ultimate responsibility as fiduciary of its assets. In order to renew or extend
such a contract, the City must do so by order, ordinance, or resolution. The City is specifically prohibited from nvesting in: {1)
obligations whose payment represents the coupen payments on the outstanding principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed
security collateral and pay no principal; (2) obligations whose payinent represents the principat siream of cash flow from the underlying
mortgage-backed security and bear no interest; (3) collateralized morigage obligations that have a stated final maturity of greater than
10 years; and (4) collateralized mostgage obligations the interest rate of which is determined by an index that adjusts opposite to the
changes in a market index.

INVESTMENT POLICIES. . . Under State law, the City is required o invest its funds under written invesiment policies that primarily
emphasize safety of principal and liquidity; that address investment diversification, yield, maturity, and the quality and capability of
investment management; and that includes a list of authorized investments for City funds, maximum atlowable stated maturity of any
individual investment, the maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed for pooled fund groups, methads to manitor the market
price of investments acquired with public funds, a requitement for settlement of all transactions, except investment pool funds and
mufual funds, on a delivery versus payment basis, and procedures to moniter rating changes in investments acquired with public
funds and the liquidation of such investments consistent with the Public Funds Investment Act, All City funds must be invested
consistent with a formally adopted “Investment Strategy Statement” that specifically addresses each funds’ investment. Each Investment
Strategy Statement will describe its objectives concerning: (1) suitability of investment type, (2) preservation and safety of principal, (3)
liquidity, (4) marketability of each investment, (5} diversification of the portfolio; and (6) yield.

Under State law, City investments must be made “with judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person of prudence,
discretion, and intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment,
considering the probable salely ol capital and the probable income to be derived.” At least quarterly the investnient officers of the City
shall submit an investment report detailing: (1) the investment pasition of the City, (2) that all investment officers jointly prepared and
signed the report, (3} the beginning market value, the ending market value and the fully accrued interest during the reporting period
of each pooled fund group, (4) the book value and market value of each separatety listed asset at the end of the reperting period, (5)
ihe maturity date of each separately invested asset, {6) the account or fund or pooled fund group for which each individual investment
was acquired, and (7) the compliance of the investment portfolio as it relates to: (a) adopted investment strategy statements and (b}
state law. No person may invest City funds without express written authority from the City Couneil.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS. . . Under State law, lhe City is additionally required to: (1) annually review its adopted policies and
strategies; (2) adopt a rule, order, ordinance or reselution stating that it has reviewed its investment policy and investment strategies
and records any changes made to either its investment policy or investment strategy in the respective rule, order, ordinance or
resolution; (3) require any investment officers with personal business relationships or relatives with firms seeking to sell securities
to the City to disclose the relationship and file a statement with the Texas Ethics Commission and the City Council; (4) require the
gualified representative of firms offering to engage in an investment transaction with the City to: (a) receive and review the City's
investment policy, (b) acknowledge that reasorable controls and procedures have been implemented to preclude investment
transactions conducted between the City and the business organization that are not authorized by the City’s investment policy
(except to the extent that this authorization is dependent en an analysis of the makeup of the City’s entire portlolic and requires an
interpretation of subjective investment standards) and (¢} deliver a written statement in a form acceptable to the City and the
business organization attesting to these requirements; (5) perform an annual audit of the management controls on investments and
adherence o the City’s invesiment policy; (6) provide specific investment training for the City’s designated Investment Officer;
(7 restrict reverse repurchase agreements to not more than 90 days and restrict the investment of reverse repurchase agreement
funds to no greater than the term of the reverse purchase agreement; (8) restrict the investment in no-load mutual funds in the
aggregate to no more than 15% of the City’s monthly average fund balance, excluding bond proceeds and reserves and other funds
held for debs service; (9) require local government invesiment pools 1o conforn to the new disclosure, rating, net asset value, vield
calculation, and advisory board requirements; and (10} at least annually review, revise, and adopt a list of qualificd brokers that are
authorized to engage in investment transactions with the City.
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THE CITY'S INVESTMENT POLICIES

The City Manager designates the Cliel Financlal Officer as the City's chief mvestment officer. The Treasury and Debt Manager,
Controller, and Treasury Analyst are designated as additional investment officers, The Chief Financial Officer ts responsible for the

o " : ! o - - i 3 ' Fiseaf Tax and Tax Increment Bonds (TIFs) Sales Tax Revenue Bonds-Crime Control

Fity 3 cnmgmrehenswe cafsh l_nanagement program, mcll_lc_.l ing the adm_lnlstratlm? of the Investment Policies, The Chief Financial Oﬂ'lqer Year Fincipd Imorest Tolal Principal e p—— Total

is responsible for considering the quality and capability of staff involved in invesiment management and procedures. The Chief

Financial Officer shatl be responsible for authorizing invesimenis and the Treasury and Debt Manager shall accoumt for {nvestiments 2021 2475000 3 553378 3 3228378 % 5550000 3 1841740 3 7091740

and pledged collateral in order to maintain appropriate internat controls, The Controller shall be responsible for recording investments 2022 2,170,000 2829172 2452912 5,245,000 797,677 6.042.877

in the City's books of accounts. The Internal Audit staff shall audit records monthly and the external auditors will review for 2025 540,000 148,333 488,333 . B R

management controls en inVBS(I]lt?n.lS and adherence (e policy as required by law. On Noevember 16, 2021, the City Council approved o024 555,000 136834 491,834 _ } .

and readopted the Investment Policics. 2025 565,000 198,450 688,450 _ ) )
2026 5,220,000 £8,203 5,278,203 - - -

City policy requires investments in accordance with applicable State law, specifically the PF1A. The City's Investment Policy does

not permit the investment of City funds inall eligible investments permitted by State law. Furthermore, this policy specilically prohibits $ 11,725000 % 1,303,110 § 13028110 § 10795000 §  2.439.417 $ 13,234,417

investment in the following investment securities.

1. Obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the outstanding principal batarice of the underlying

4 . Fiscal Sales Tax Revenue Bonds-Park Venue Sales Tax Revenue Bonds-EPIC
mortgage-backed security collateral and pays no principal, v e ——— pup—— " P———
2. Obligations whose payment represents the prineipal stream of cash flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security o e reres o melpd Injerest Totdl
collateral find bears no 1nterf_:5t, . ] 2021 $ 2050000 $ 4949468 $ 2,546,948 3 2.285.000 L 3 3177.362 % 5,442,342
3. Collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated final maturity date of greatet than 10 years.
. S P L . . . . 2022 2,120,000 448,418 2,558,418 2375000 3.084.142 5459142
4. Collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is detetmined by an index that adjusts oppostie to the changes
. . 2023 2,170,000 401,203 2,591,203 2475000 2,987,162 5462162
in a market index.
2024 2,270,000 341018 2,611,118 2,575,000 2,866,162 5,461,162
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 2028 2,340,000 275203 2,635,203 2,480,000 2,761,062 5,461 062
2024 2,450,000 213.493 2,663,473 2,785,000 2,675,647 5460647
An Investment Committee consisting of the Treasury Analyst, Treasury and Debt Manager, Controller, Chief Financial Officer, and . 2027 1,170,000 164,038 1,234,038 2,895,000 2,567,509 5.462.50%
Deputy City Manager shail meet as fiequently as necessary to review the City's investment porifolio. The committee shall also meet 20728 370,000 142,438 512.438 3610000 D 449 919 5450019
as necessary to add or delete a financial institution or broker/dealer from the list of institutions with which the City may do business or . e
\ \ L . 2029 385,000 127338 512,338 3,140,000 2,323,165 5,443,165
to conduct other business. The committes shall also meet to review prospectuses, financial statements and other performance data on
money market mutual funds and shall formulate recommendations on the advisability of investing in specific funds for the 2030 400.000 111.638 511.638 3.275.000 2187.743 5,442,743
consideration of the City Coungil, 2031 420,000 95,238 515,238 3,425.000 2035.914 5460914
2032 435,000 78.138 513,138 3,550,000 1.868.185 54581858
Any three of the five Investiment Committee embers constitute a quorum. The Treasury and Debt Manager shall serve as chairman 2033 455,000 40,338 515,338 3.770.000 1,692,208 5,462,208
of the commiitee, and maintain written record of invesiment committee meetings, 2034 470,000 43,600 513,400 3,955,000 1.507.503 5.462 5053
TABLE 14- C Inv ENTS 2035 485,000 2e.081 513,081 4,145,000 1,313,832 5,458832
- CURRENT INVESTM 2034 505,000 10,100 515,100 4,355,000 1.105,153 5,460,153
As of December 31, 2021, the City’s investable funds were invested in the follewing categories: 2037 - - - 4,580,000 880,348 5,460,348
2038 - - - 4,815,000 643,970 5,458,570
Type of Investment Percentage Book Value Zgiz ) ) ’ gggzggg ?2238: 2::2289
Local Government Pools and Money Market Funds 1603% & 74,146,404 - 320, 27 48977
Federal Agency and Instrumentality Notes 83.97% 388,538,723 $ 18535000 % 30589350 $ 21574350 % 70,520,000 $ 38494372 3 109216372

$ 462,685,128

TAX MATTERS

TAX EXEMPTION . . . The delivery of the Obligations is subject ko the opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that interest on the
Obligations for federal income tax purposes (1) will be excludable from gross income, as defined in sectien 61 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended to the date of such opinion {the “Code™), pursuant to section 103 of the Code and existing regulations,
published rulings, and court decisions, and (2} will not be inchuded in computing the aliernative minimum taxable income of the owners
thereof, The form of Bond Counsel’s opinion relating to the Obligations is reproduced as Appendix C. The statutes, regulations,
rulings, and court decisions on which such opinion is based are subject to change.

In rendering the foregoing opinion, Bond Counsel wilt rely upon representations and certifications of the City made in a certificate
dated the date of delivery of the Obligations pertaining to the use, expenditure, and invesiment of the proceeds of the Obligations and
will assume continuing compliance by the City with the provisions of the Ordinance subsequent to the issuance of the Obligations.
The Certificate Ordinance contains covenants by the City with respect ip, among other matters, the use of the proceeds of the
Obligations and the facilities fimanced therewith by persons other than state or local governmental units, the manner in which the
proceeds of the Obligations are to be invested, the periodic caleulation and payment to the United States Treasury of arbitrage “profits”
from the investment of proceeds, and the reporting of certain information to the United States Treasury. Failure to comply with any of
these covenants may cause interest on the Obligations to be includable in the gross income of the owners therecf fiom the date of the
issuance of the Obligations.

12
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in November 2019, the City issued $19,475,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2019.
$21,545,000 was used to advance refund the outstanding Series 2011 and Series 2011 A Combination Tax
and Revenue Cerfificates of Obligation bonds; and the Series 2011 and Series 2011 A Genercl Obligation
Refunding and Improvement bonds, leaving no remaining outstanding principal as o September 30,
2020. As o resuli, the fully refunded bonds are considered defeased, and the liablity for those bonds has
been removed from the government-wide statements, The refunding resulted in o decrease in the City's
debt service paymenis of $2,195,440, which resulfed in an economic gain (difference between the
present value of the debt service payments of the old debt and new debt) of $1.981,602.

Quistanding Bond Debt Defeasement
Al September 30, 2020, certain outstanding debt of the city was considered 1o be defeased. The following
table details such oulstanding defeased debt:

Defeased Deb?

Type of Obligation Outstanding
General obligation refunding bonds % 200,000
Total debt defeasement $ 200,000

At September 30, 2020, the aggregate debt service payments for long-term debt through the final year
of maturity for the City's governmental acfivities were as follows:

Fiscal General Opligalion Bonds Cenlificat es of Obligalion Bonds
Year Principal Interest Tetal Principal Interest Totdal
2021 ¥ B825000 3 2,430,143 $ 11255143 b 3 13,490,000 ) BO4Z 474 $ 21,532,674
2022 8,520,000 2047 500 10,637,500 15,700,000 7.A469570 23,169 370
2023 7,410,000 1,706,175 2I16175 14,005 000 6,865,383 22,870,388
2024 7.095,000 1,400,075 8495075 16,605,000 6272194 22,877,194
2025 6,185,000 1,111,644 7,296,644 10,915,000 5751,131 16,676,131
2024 5,880,000 840,119 6,720,119 10,240,000 5350819 16290819
2027 £.290,000 575088 5965088 11,255,000 4,235,028 14,190,028
2028 3.,005.000 3700363 3,375,363 11.695.000 4,4% 6,556 16,191,556
2029 2,960,000 226,513 3,186,513 12,145,000 4043871 15,188.8%1
2030 1,560,000 122,403 1,862,603 12,605,000 3,577,886 16,18484646
203 1,240,000 &1,757 1,301,757 13,080,000 3,110,569 16,190.56%
2032 375,000 24854 401,856 13,550,000 2,640,573 16,190,573
2033 385.000 13,304 398,306 14,045,000 2.142,557 16,187,557
2034 155,000 3,197 158.1%7 13,790,000 1,411,028 15,601,028
2035 - - - 2,595,000 1,145,806 10740804
20346 - - - 8,045,000 786,300 B8.851.300
2037 - - - 6.045,000 504,100 5047100
2038 - - - 4,695,000 287,300 4,964,300
203% - - - 4,885,000 97.700 4 582,700
b 5%.055000 $ 10935357 3 89,990,359 ¥ 212,305,000 $ 49145452 $ 288,450,452

&4

Bond Counsel's opinion is not a guarantee of a result, but represents its legal judgment based upon its review of existing statufes,
regulations, published rulings and court decisions and the representations and covenants of the City described above. No ruling has
been sought fiom the Internal Revenue Service (the *IRS™) with respect to the matters addressed in the opinion of Bond Counsel, and
Bond Counsel’s opinicn is not binding on the IRS, The IRS has an ongoing program of auditing the tax-exempt status of the interest
on tax-exempt obligations, 1f an audit of the Obligations is commenced, under cusrent procedures the IRS is likely to treat the City as
the “taxpayer,” and the owners of the Obligations would have no right to participate in the audit process. In responding to or defending
an audit of the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Obligations, the City may have different or conflicting inferests from the owners
of the Obligations. Public awareness of any fulure audit of the Obligations could adverscly affect the value and liquidity of the
Obligations dusing the pendency of the audit, regardless of its ultimate outcome.

Except as described above, Bond Counse! expresses no other opinion with respect 10 any other federal, state ot local tax consequences
usder present law, or proposed legislation, resulting from the receipt or accrual of interest on, or the acquisition or disposition of, the
Obligations. Prospeetive purchascrs of the Obligations should be aware that the ownership of tax-exempt obligations such as the
Obligations may result in collateral federal fax consequences to, among others, financial institutions, life insurance companies, psoperty
and casualty insurance companies, certain foreign cotporations doing business in the United States, S corporations with subchapter C
earnings and profits, individual recipients of Social Security or Railtoad Retiroment benefits, individuals otherwise qualifying for the
earned income tax credit, owners of an interest in a financial asset securitization investment trust (“FASI1™), and taxpayers who may
be deemed 1o have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry, or who have paid or incurred certain expenses allocable
0, fax-exempt obligations. Prospective purchasers should consult their own tax advisors as to the applicability of these consequences
to their particular circumstances.

Existing law may change to reduce or eliminate the benefit to holders of the Obligations of the exclusion of interest on the
Obligations from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Any proposed legislation or administrative action, whether or not
taken, could also affcct the value and marketability of the Obligations. Prospective purchasers of the Obligations should consult
with their own tax advisors with respect to any proposed or future changes in tax law.

TAX ACCOUNTING TREATMENT OF DISCOUNT AND PREMIUM ON CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS. . .The initial public offering price of
centain Obligations (the “Discount Obligations™) may be less than the amount payable on such Obligations at maturity. An amount
equal to the difference between the initial public offering price of a Discount Obligation (assuming that a substantial amount of the
Ohligations of that maturity are sold to the public at such price) and the amourt payable at maturity constitutes original issue discount
to the initial purchaser of such Discount Obligation. A portion of such original issuc discount allocable to the holding period of such
Discount Obligation by the initial purchaser will, upon the disposition of such Discount Obligation (including by reason of its payment
at maturity), be treated as interest excludable fiom gross income, rather than as taxable gain, for federal income tax purposes, on the
same ferms and conditions as those for other interest on the Obligations described above under “Tax Exemption” Such interest is
considered 1o be accrued actuarially in accordance with the constant interest method over the life of a Discount Obligation, taking into
account the semiannual compounding of accrued interest, at the yield to maturity on such Discount Obligation and generally will be
allocated to an initial purchaser in a different amount from the amount of the payment denominated as interest acluably received by the
initial purchaser during the tax year.

However, such interest may be required to be taken into account in determining the amount of the branch profits tax applicable to
cerlain foreign corporations doing business in the United States, even though there will not be a correspoading cash payment. 1n
addition, the accrual of such interest may result in certain other collateral federal income tax consequences to, among others, financial
institutions, lifc insurance companies, property and casualty insurance companies, 8 corporations with “subchapter C” earnings and
profits, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, individuats otherwise qualifying for the earned income
tax credit, owners of an inferest ina FASIT, and taxpayers wha may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase
or carry, oy who have paid or incured certain expenses allocable to, tax-exempt obligations, Moreovet, in the event of the redemption,
sale or other taxable disposition of a Discount Obligation by the initial owner ptior to maturity, the amount reaized by such owner in
excess of the basis of such Discount Obligation in the hands of such cwner (adjusted upwazrd by the portion of the original issue
discount allocable to the period for which such Discount Obligation was held) is includable in gross income.

Owners of Discount Obligations should consult with their own tax advisors with respect o the determination of acerued original issue
discount on Discount Obligations for federal income tax purposes and with respect to the slate and local tax consequences of owning
and disposing of Discount Obligations. [t is possible that, under applicable provisions governing determination of state and local
income taxes, acerued interest on Discount Obligations may be decmed to be received in the year of accrual even though there will not
be a cotresponding cash payment.

The purchase price of certain Obligations (the “Premium Obligations™) paid by an owner may be greater than the amount payable on
such Obligations at maturity, An amount equal to the excess of a purchaser’s tax basis in a Premivm Obligation over the amount
payable at maturity constitutes premium to such purchaser. The basis for federal income tax purposes of a Premium Obligation in the
hands of such purchaser must be reduced each year by the amertizabie bond premiuwn, although no federal income tax deduction is
allowed as a result of such reduction in basis for amortizable bond premium, Such reduction in basis will increase the amount of any
gain {or decrcase the amount of any loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale or other taxable disposition of
a Premium Obligation. The amount of premivm that is amortizable each year by a purchaser is determined by using such purchaser’s
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yield to maturigy (or, in some cases with respect to a callable Obligation, the yield based on a call date that results in the Jowest vield
on the Obligation).

Furchasers of the Premium Obligations should consult with their own tax advisors with respect ta the determination of amortizable
bond premium on Premium Obligations for federal income tax purposes and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of
owning and disposing of Premium Obligations,

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

In the Certificate Qrdinance, the City has made the following agreement for the benefit of the registered and beneficial owners of
the Obligations. The City is required to observe the agreement for so long as it remains obligated to advance funds to pay the
Obligations, Under the agreement, the City will be obligated to provide certain updated financial information and operating data
annually, and timely notice of specitted events, to the Municipal Secorities Rulemaking Board {the “MSRB’").

ANNUAL REPORTS. . . The City will provide annually to the MSRB (1) within six months after the end of each fiscal year ending
in or after 2021, finaneial information and operating data with respect to the City of the general type of information contained in
Tables 1 through 5 and 7 through 14 and (2) within twelve months after the end of each fiseal year ending in or after 2021, audited
financial statemenis of the City. Any financial statements so provided shall be prepared in accordance with the accounting principles
described in Appendix B, or such other accounting principles as the City may be required e employ from time to time pursuant to
state law or regulation. I audited financial statements are not available within 12 months after the end of any fiscal yeat, the City
will provide unaudited financial statements by the required time, and audited financial statements when and if such audited financial
statements become available.

The financial information and operating data to be provided may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included
by specific reference to any document available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet Wel site or filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC™), as permitied by SEC Rule 15¢2-12 (the “Rule™).

The City’s current fiscal year end is September 30. Accordingly, the City must provide updated information included in the above-
referenced tables by March 31 in each year, and audited financial statements for the preceding fiscal year (or unaudited financial
statements if the audited financial statoments are not yet available) must be provided by September 30 in each year, unless the City
changes its fiscal year. If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRE of the change (and of the date of the new fiscal
year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required to provide financial information and operating data.

NOTICE OF CERTAIN EVENTS... The City will also provide timely noticcs of certain events to the MSRB, The City will provide
notice of any of the following events with respect to the Obligations to the MSRB in a timely manner (but not in excess of ten
business days afier the occurrence of the event): (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related defatlts,
if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; {(4) unscheduled draws on credit
enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse
tax opiniens, the issuance by the lnternal Revenue Service of proposed or tinal determinations of taxabifity, Notices of Proposed
Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB), or other material nutices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Obligations, or other
material events affecting the tax status of the Obligations; (7) medifications to rights of holders of the Obligations, if material; (8)
Obligation calls, if material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment
of the Obligations, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the City, which
shall occur as described below; (13) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition invalving the City or the sale of
all or substantially all of its assets, other than in the ordinary coursc of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake
such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material;
(14) appointment of a successor or additional paying agent/registrar or the change of name of a paying agent/registrar, if material;
(15} incurrence of a Financial Cbligation of the City, if material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority
rights, or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which affect security holders, if material; and (16) default,
event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events under the terms of 2 Financial Obligation of
the City, any of which reflect (inanciat difficulties. In addition, the City will provide to the MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of
any failure by the City to provide the required annual financial information described above under - Annual Reports” and any
natices of events in accordance with this section.

For these purposes, (A) any event described in (12) in the immediately preceding paragraph is considered to occur when any of the
foltowing occur: the appointment of a recciver, fiscal agent, or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the United States
Bankruptey Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the
existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a coutt or governmental
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, atrangement, or liquidation by a court or governmental
authority having supervision or jurisdietion over substantially alt of the assets or business of the City, and {B) the City intends the
words used in the immediately preceding clauses (135) and (16) and in the definition of Financial Obligation above 1o have the
meanings ascribed to them in SEC Release No. 34-83885 dated August 20, 2018,
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Senerd obligalion bonds:
Series 2011
Sarias 2011 A
Series 2012
Seties 2013
Series 20134
Serles 2015
Series 2006
Serles 2020

Total general obligotion bonds

Combinotion tax and revenue
certificates of obligation
Series 201
Series 200 1A
Series 2013
Series 20134
Serias 20014
Seres 2015
Serles 2016
Series 2017
Serigs 2018
Series Z017A
Series 20198

Total combinagtion tax and reverwe

cerlificates of obligalion

Taxincrement and public

improvemend distict debl
Series 2001 TIRZ
Seres 2011 TIRZ |
Series 2013 TRZ 1
Series 2015 TIRZ 1
Series 2013 PID S
Series 2016 -TIRZ)
Serigs 2019 - PD

Total tax incremenl and public

Sales lax revenue dabl:
Zrime Control
Satiss 2008

Tedal Crime Control

Park Yenue
Series 2009 subordinale
Serigs 2013
Seties 2016 Povk Venue

Total Park Venue

EFHD
Series 2015 EPIC

Toldl ERIC

Tolal change in1ong term debt

liramortized bond premiumsfdiscounls

Total ¢hunge Inlong«ferm debt -
governmentol aclivities

At September 30, 2020, changes in long-term debt for the City's governmental activities were as follows:

Balance Balonce
October 1, Borrowings Prrviments Septemtoer 30, Due W Elhin
2019 or Increase of Decraase 2020 One Year
$ 4340000 3 4 (4340000 $ - $ -
11,845,000 - [11.845,000) - -
4,745,000 {625,000) 4,120,000 545000
3,770,000 {460,000) 330,000 3000
1,800,000 [$0.000) 1710000 ?5,000
7855000 790,000} 7065000 1050000
24,445 000 - 13,090,000} 23,375,000 2,935,000
- 19,475,000 - 19,475,000 3,790,000
S0.820,000 19,47 5,000 [21.240.000) 59,053,000 £.825,000
4275000 {4.375,000) - -
5,155,000 - {5.155.000) - -
4£,715000 - [393.000} 6,320,000 405,000
9,755,000 - [475.000] 2,280,000 500,000
18,765 000 - |2.02:5.000) 16,940,000 2125000
23,745,000 11.300.000) 22,445,000 1,345,000
30,060,000 [1,880.000) 28,180,000 1.915.000
33,275,000 - (3.340.000) 29215000 3,500.000
40,405,000 {1,795.000) 38810000 1,865,000
34,910,000 - 11.800.000} 33110000 1815000
34,305,000 - - 34,305 000 -
241,865,000 - {22,560,000) 217,305,000 13.490,000
4,580,000 - {1.420,000) 3,160,000 1,525,000
80,000 - {80,000} - -
433,000 - [435.000] -
225000 - [225,0:00) - -
450,000 - 170,000 320,000 70,000
2,110,000 - {1.030.000) 1,080,000 1,060,000
7105000 - - 7405000 -
14,985,000 - (3,260,000} 11725000 2,675,000
15,880,000 - 15.085.000) 10,795,000 5,550,000
15,880,000 - {3.085,000) 10,795,000 5.550.000
7.770.000 - 1.630,000] 6,740,000 495,000
4550000 - [450,000) £.850,000 1,290,000
§,205,000 - | 270,000] 5,935,000 265,000
20,525,000 - [1,990,000) 18,535,000 2050000
72,715,000 - (2.195.000) 70,520,000 2.283.000
73715000 - (2,155,000} 70,520,000 2,285.000
424,790,000 19475000 (56,330,000 389,935,000 34.875.000
24,528,815 2,734,530 {3,173,725) 20,087,420 -
§ 453318815 § 22,209.530 b (57.503,725) 3 416024420 3 34875000
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At September 30, 2020, long-term debt for the City's governmental activities consisted of the following:

IMterest Yaar of Yedr of Orlglnal Amount
Rale % Issue mMaturity Amount Quisionding
Genergl otiigation bonds:
Serigs 2011 20-5.3 2011 2031 11,550,000 % -
Series 2011 A 20-50 2011 2025 30,940,000 -
Series 2012 1.0-20 2012 2024 27,400,000 4,120,000
Series 2013 1.5-3.25 2013 2033 10,275,000 3,310,000
Serles 20134 3.0-4.125 2004 2034 2,220,000 1,710,000
Serles 2003 1.73-50 2016 2027 10,270,000 7065000
Seres 2014 3.0-3.0 2016 2030 33,810,000 23.375.000
Series 2020 5.00 2020 2031 192,475,000 19,475,000
Telal general obligation bonds 57055000
Combination tax and revenue certifleates of obligalion
Series 2011 2.0-5.3 2011 2031 6.305.000 -
Serigs 2011 A 2.0-40 2011 2031 7.430,000 -
Seres 2013 20325 2013 2033 8,830,000 6,320,000
Seres 20134 20-4125 2014 2034 11,945,000 2,280,000
Series 2014 30-50 2015 2034 26,125,000 16,940,000
Series 2015 2.0-50 2014 2035 27380000 22,445,000
Senes 2004 20-40 2016 2034 33,705,000 28.180.000
Series 20017 2.25-3.0 2007 2037 35,515.000 29,915,000
Seres 2018 2.0-4.0 2msa 2037 40,605,000 38,810,000
Series 20194, 20-50 2019 2039 24210000 33,110,000
Serles 20198 1.5-3.0 2019 2034 34,305,000 34,305,000
Total combination 1ax and revernue certificates of obligation 219,305,000
Tax increment and public improvemen distric! deibt
Series 2001 TIRZ 1 J-month LIBOR+31% 2000 2022 17,700,000 3,140,000
Series 20011 TIRE | 20-5.3 20M 2020 655,000 -
Series 2013 TR 2.0-3.25 2003 2020 2,820,000 -
Serles 2015 TIRZ § 1.750-50 2014 2027 895,000 -
Serlas 2015 PID S 2.0-5.0 2016 2035 £40,000 380,000
Seres 2016 TRE 3.0-52.0 2016 2030 3,135000 1,080,000
Series 2019 PID 1.5-2.3 e 2026 7,105,000 7105000
Total tox increment and public improvement distric! delot 11,725000
Scles laxrevenue debt
Series 2008 Crimne Control smo LIBOR*&2.07541.0 2008 2022 54,800,000 10,795000
Total Crime Control 10,795000
Sefies 2009 Park Venue subordinate 377 2009 2027 13,390.000 4,740,000
Serles 2013 Park Yenue 2.0-4.0 2013 2027 11,040,000 5,860,000
Senles 2016 Park Yenue 20-40 26 2036 6,730,000 5935000
Totql Park Venue 18,535.000
Sales tax revenue debt
Series 2015 EFIC 3.721-5032 2015 2040 74,825,000 70,520,000
Total ERIC M
Total general obligation debt 389,935 000
Unamaertized bond premivms/discount s M
Total long-term debt « governmental acfivities $ 416,024,620
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AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION. . . The City has agreed o provide the foregoing financial and operating information only as
described above. Investors may access continving disclosure information filed with the MSRB fiee of charge at
www.emma.msrb.org.

LIMITATIONS AND AMENDMENTS . . . The City has agreed to update informalicn and to provide notices of material events only as
described above. The City has not agreed to provide other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation
ofits financial results of operations, condition, or prospects or agreed to update any information that is provided, except as described
above, The City makes no representation or warranty concerning such information or concerning its usefulness to a decision to
invest in or sell Obligations at any future date. The City disclaims any contractual or tort liability for damages resulting in whole
o in part from any breach of its continuing disciosure agreement or from any statement made pursuant to its agreement, although
holders of Obligations may seek a writ of mandamus to compel the City to comply with its agreement. The City may amend its
continuing disclosure agreement from time 1o time to adapt fo changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements,
a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, if (i} the agreement, as amended, would
have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Obligations in the offering described herein in compliance with the Rule, taking
into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such changed circumstances,
and (ii) cither (a) the holders of a majority in aggregate principat amount of the respective outstanding Obligations consent to the
amendment or (b} any person unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that the
amendment will not materially impair the interests of the holders and beneficial owners of the Obligations. The City may also
amend or repeal the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provisions of
the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction emers judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to the extent
that the provisions of this sentence would net prevent an underwriter from lawfully purchasing or selling Obligations in the primary
offering of the Obligations. If the City so amends its continuing disclosure agreement, it has agreed fo include with the next
financial information and operating data provided in accordance with its agreement described above under “Annual Reports™ an

explanation, in narcative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information
and operating data so provided.

COMPLIANCE WITH PriOR UNDERTAKINGS. . . During the last five years, the City has complied in all material respects with all
continuing disclosure agreements made by it in accordance with the Rule.

OTHER INFORMATION

RATINGS

The Obligations have been rated “AA A" with a stable outlook by S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc. {“S&P™)
without regard to credit enhancement, An explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained from the company
furnishing the rating. The rating reflects only the views of such organization and the City makes no representation as to the
appropriateness of the rating. There is no assurance that such rating will continue for any given period of time or that they will nog
be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by rating company, if in the judgment of company, circumsiances so warrant. Any
such downward revision or withdrawal of such rating, may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Obligations.

LITIGATION

City staff believes there is no pending litigation: against the City that would have a material adverse financial impact upon the City
or its operations,

REGISTRATION AND QUALIFICATION OF OBLIGATIONS FOR SALE

The sale of the Obligations has not been registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance upon the
exemption provided thereunder by Section 3(a)(2): and the Obligations have not been qualified under the Securities Act of Texas
in reliance upon various exemplions contained therein; nor have the Obligations been qualified under the securities acts of any
other jurisdiction, The City assumes no responsibility for qualification of the Obligations under the securitics laws of any
Jurisdiction in which the Obligations may be sold, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise transferred. This disclaimer of
responsibility for quatification for sale or other disposition of the Obligations shall not be construed as an interpretation of any kind
with regard to the availability of any exemption from securities registration provisions.

LEGAL INVESTMENTS AND ELIGIBILITY TO SECURE PUBLIC FUNDS IN TEXAS

Section 1201.041 of the Public Security Procedures Act (Chapter 1201, Government Code, as amended) provides that the
Obligations are negotiable instruments, investment sceurities governed by, Chapter 8, Business and Commerce Code, as amended,
and are legal and authorized investments for insurance companies, fiduciaries, trustees, or for the sinking funds of municipalitics
or other political subdivisions or public agencies of the State. With respect to investment in the Obligations by municipalities or
other political subdivisions or public agencies of the Stute, the Public Funds Investment Act, Government Code, Chapter 2256, as
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amended, requires thai the Obligations be assigned a rating of not less than “A” or its equivalent as to investment quality by a
national rating agency. See “OTHER INFORMATION — Rating” above. In addition, various provisions of the Texas Finance
Code provide that, subject to a prudent investor standard, the Obligations are legal investments for state banks, savings hanks, trust
companies with capital of one million dollars or more, and savings and loan associations, The Obligations are eligible 1o secure
deposits of any public funds of the State, its agencies, and its political subdivisions, and are legal security for those deposits to the
extent of their market value. No review by the City has been made of the laws in other states to determine whether the Obligations
are legal investiments for various institutions in those states. Mo representation is made that the Obligations will be acceptabie to
public entities to secure their deposits or acceptable to such inslitutions for invesiment purposes.

The City made no investigation of other laws, rules, regulations or investment eriteria which might apply to such institutions or
entitics or which might limit the suitability of the Obligations for any of the foregoing putposes or limit the authority of such
institwions or entities to purchase or invest in the Obligations for such purposes.

LEGAL OPINION AND NO LITIGATION CERTIFICATE

The City will furnish te the Purchaser a complete transcript of proceedings had incident to the autherization and issuange of the
Certificates, including the unqualified approving legal opinion of the Attorney General of Texas approving the Initial Certificate,
to the effect that the Certificates are valid and legally binding obligations of the City, and based vpon examination of such transcript
of proceedings, the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel, to like effect and to the effect that the interest on the Certificates will
be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103(a) of the Code, subject to the maiters described
under “TAX MATTERS” hetein, Bond Counscl was not requested to participate, and did not take part, in the preparation of the
Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement, or the Notice of Sale and Bidding Instructions and such firm has not assumed
any responsibility with respect thereto or undertaken independently to verify any of the information contained therein, except that,
in its capacity as Bond Counsel, such finn has reviewed the infonmation under the captions and subcaptions, “THE
OBLIGATIONS” (except for the information under the subcaptions “*Book-Entry-Only System,” “Obligationholders’ Remedies”
and the last sentence under “Tax Rate Limitations™y, “TAX MATIERS” and “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE QF
INFORMATION" {except for the information under the subcaption “Compiiance with Prior Undertakings™), and the subcaptions
*Registration and Qualification of Obligations for Sale,” “Legal Investments and Eligibility te Sceure Public Funds in Texas” and
“Legal Opinion and No Litigation Certificate” under the caption “OTHER INFORMATION" it this Official Statement and such
firm is of the apinion that the information relating to the Obligations and the legal issues contained under such capiions and
subcaptions is an accurate and fair description of the [aws and legal issues addressed therein and, with respect to the Obligations,
such information conforms to the provisions of the Certificate Ordinance. The legal fee to be paid Bond Counscl for services
rendered in connection with the issuance of the Obligations is contingent on the sale and delivery of the Obligations. The legal
opinion will accompany the Obligations deposited with DTC or will be printed on the Obligations in the event of the discontinuance
of the Book-Entry-Only System.

The legal opinion to he delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Obligations express the professional judgment of the
allorneys rendering Lhe opinions as to the legal issues explicitly addressed therein. In rendering a legal opinion, the attorney does
not become an insurer or guarantor of that expression of professional judgment, of the transaction opined upen, or of the future
petformance of the parties to the transaction. Nor does the rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that
may arise out of the fransaction.

CYBERSECURITY

The City has taken several steps to enhance and protect information systems and information of the City. The City's dedicated
Chief Information Officer is certified in cybersecurity matters and responsible for carrying out information security responsibilities.
Some of the City's security operations include regular staff cyber training, periodic system tests and audits, authorizing information
access commensurate with classification level and sensitivity, and roufine replacement of software and related information
equipment. In addition, fe help protect the City against claims and expenses due to a cybersecurity incident, the City maintains
cyber insurance. The City pricritizes the ability to identify, protect, detect, respond and recover from cyber events and incidents
from nation state actors, organized criminats, hactivist groups and insider threats.

AUTHENTICITY OF FINANCIAL PATA AND OTHER INFORMATION

The {inancial data and other information contained herein have been obtained lrom City records, audited financial statemients and
other sources which are believed to be reliable. There is ne guarantec that any of the assumptions or cstimates contained herein
will be realized. All of the summaries of the statutes, documents and reselutions contained in this Official Statement are made
subject to all of the provisions of such statutes, documents and resolutions. These summaries do not purport fo be complete
statements of such provisions and reference is made to such documents for fnther information. Reference is made to original
documents in all respects.
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Below is a summary of the changes in noncurrent liabilities

compaonent units:

Frimery govermnment:
Goverrmental activities:
General obligation bonds
Combination lax and revenue
certificates of obligalion
Taxincrernent and public
district bonds
Sakes 10y rev enue bonds - Epic
Sales 1ax revenue bonds - Crime
Sales faxrevenue bonds - Park Yenue
Issuance prermiurmsfdiscounts, net

Total long-term debsd

Compensated absences

Other post-employment benefits liability
Net pension liability

Environmental remediation liability
Ofher fliabilities

Total gov ernmental activities

Busingss-lype activilies:
Certificates of obligation
W ater and wastewat er revenue bonds
Obligations under capitod leases
lssvance premiums/discounts, net

Total long-term debt

Compensated gbsences

Olher post-employment benefits liability
Nel pengion liabiflty

Closure and posl closure ability

Total business-type activities
Tolal primary government

Component unit activities:
Housing Finance Corporalion:
MNotes payable/dey eloper loan
Revenus bonds
Subordinate rev enue bonds

Total component unils

of the City's primary govermment and

Balance Bolonce
Qctober 1, Borrowings Payments Saptember 30. Due Within
201¢% orf Increase or Decrease 2020 One Year
1 60,820.000 b 19,475,000 $ [21.240,000) 3 59.055000 % 8.825,000
241,845,000 - (22,560,000} 219,303,000 13,490,000
14,985,000 - [3.260,000} 11,225.000 2,675,000
72,715,000 - 2,195,000} 70,520,000 2.285.000
15,880,000 - (5,685,000} 10,795,000 5,550,000
20,525,000 - {1.990,000} 18,535,000 2.050.000
26,528,815 2,734,530 {3.173,725} 24,089,620 -
453318815 20,202,530 [59,503,725] 414,024,620 34,875000
18,363,930 10,5972 831 (B.292.304] 21,484,457 %.005253
55,519,083 G.692822 (3.524,324] 40,687,581 -
21,350,173 54,411,033 {89,047 ,256) 37113240 -
77,037 - {54,137) 20,900 20,200
1,300,144 - {180.777) 1,139,347 Va0 774
420129182 ¥8,506.216 [160.584,533) 558,050,845 44,061,929
BES,000 - [160,000) 725,000 1 70,000
£3.225.800 4,290,000 {10.340.000] 47,155,800 5.120,000
3,752,233 262,200 |644,755) 3.387.678 -
57 B&63.033 4,552,200 (11.166.755] 51,248,478 5,290,000
472,012 371,254 1373.8535] 467,411 464,294
5,885,150 £94,371 1303,538) 6,275,783 -
9.416,144 45232017 2.668,075) 4,470,085 -
8,232,679 414,347 - 8,648,944 -
82069038 10,356,08% [21.512,224) 1112903 5,754,294
$  702198.220 b 109062308 3 |182094,757) $ 622163768 3 49816223
b 3,540,524 3 41,759 % [60,613) & 3521670 % £3,148
7.160.000 - {255,000} 6,205,000 263000
4,550,000 - - 4,550,000 -
3 15,250 524 % 4175 % {315613) § 14,776,670 % 328,148
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financicl Statements
September 30, 2020

G. Unearnad Revenue

Unearned revenue is a liability for resources obtained prior to revenue recognition. Below is A summary of
the City's uneamed revenue as of Sepfember 30, 2020.

Governmenial Business-Type
Aciivities Activities Toted
Prepaid pipeline lease $ 884,131 $ 124,555 % 1,008,686
Prepaid arangements - Cemetery Fund 1,817,439 - 1,817,439
Unspent grant funds - Texas W ater Development Board - 205,606 ?05,604
Prepaid rental deposits - Parks 178,789 - i78,78%
Park Yenue Fund deposits onevents 1o be held 271 - 271
Unspent grant funding 107,380 - 107,380
Total unedrned revenue $ 2988010 % 1.030.161 $ 4,018,171

H. Long-Term Obligations

Compensated Absences and Postemployment Benefits

Covernmenial activities record liabiities for compensated absences and retiree postemployment costs
at the govemment-wide financial statement level. Generally, these liabilifies are paid from the General
Fund. Licibilities for business-type activities are recorded and liquidated in the fund that incurs the liability.

Long-Term Debt

Governmenial Activities

Long-term debt in the governmental activities' column of the government-wide Statement of Net Posifion
consisis of general obligation bonds (including refunding). certificates of obligation bonds, sales tax
revenue bonds, and unamortized bond premium/discounts, The certificates of obligation bonds include
bonds issued in 2010 for Tax Increment Financing Zones No. 2 project.

General obligation bonds and certificates of obligation provide funds for the acquisition and construction
of capital equipment and faciiities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge
of the general taxing power for the payment of the debt obligations of the City. General obligation bonds
and certificates of obligation require the City to compute. af the time ofher faxes are levied, the rate of
tax required to provide (in each year bonds are outstanding) a fund to pay interest and principal at
maturity.
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FINANCIAL ADVISOR

HilltopSecurities is employed as Financial Advisor to the City in connection with the issuance of the Obligations. The Financial
Advisar's fee for services rendered with respect 10 the sale of the Obligations is contingent upon the issuance and delivery of the
Obligations. HilltopSecurities, in its capacity as Financial Advisor, docs not assume any responsibitity for the information,
covenants and representations contained in any of the legal documents with respect to the federal income tax status of the
Obligations, or the possible impact of any present, pending or future actions taken by any legislative or judicial bodies.

The Financial Advisor 1o the City has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The Financial
Advisor has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, ifs responsibilities to the City
and, as applicable, to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but
the Financial Advisor does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information,

INITIAL PURCHASER FOR THE CERTIFICATES

After requesting competitive bids for the Certificates, the City accepted the bid of Frost Bank (the "Purchaser”} to purchase the
Certificates at the interest rates shown on page 2 of this Official Statement at a price of 100% of par plus a cash premium of
$1,890,281.38. The Purchaser can give no assurance that any trading market will be developed for the Certificates after their sate
by ihe City to the Purchaser. The City has no control over the price at which the Certificates are subgequently sold and the initial
yield at which the Certificates will be priced and reoffered will be established by and will be the responsibility of the Purchaser.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS DISCLAIMER

The statements contained in this Official Statement, and in any other information provided by the City, that are nat purely historical,
are forward-looking statements, including statements regarding the City’s expectations, hopes, intentions, or strategies regarding
the future. Readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Al forward-looking statements included in
this Official Statement are based on information available to the City on the date hereof|, and the City assumes no obligation to

update any such forward-looking statements. The City's actual results could differ materially from those discussed in such forward-
looking statements.

The forward-looking statements included herein are necessarily based on varions assumptions and cstimates and are inherently
subject to various risks and uncertainties, including risks and uncertainties relating to the possible invalidity of the underlying
assumptions and estimates and possible changes or developments in social, economic, business, industry, market, legal, and
regulatory circumstances and conditions and actions taken or omitied to be taken by third parties, including customers, suppliers,
business partners and competitors, and legislative, judicial, and other governmental authorities and efficials. Assumptions related
to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive, and market conditions and
future business decisions, all of which are difficult ot impossible 1o predict accurately and many of which are beyond the control
of the City. Any of such assumptions could be inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking
statements included in this Official Statemnent will prove to be accurate.

CERTIFICATION OF THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT

At the time of payment for and delivery of the Obligations, the City will furnish a cerlificaie, exccuted by a proper officer, acting
in their official capacity, to the effect that to the best of his or her knowledge and belief: (a) the descriptions and statements of or
pertaining to the City contained in its Official Statement, and any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto, on the date of such
Official Statement, on the date of sale of said Obligations and the acceptance of the best bid therefor, and on the date of the delivery,
were and are true and correct in ajl material respects; (b) insofar as the City and its affairs, including its financial affairs, are
concemed, such Official Statement did not and docs not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not misleading; () insofar as the descriptions and statements, including financial data, of or perlaining to entities, other
than the City, and their activities contained in such Official Statement are concerned, such statements and data have been obtained
from sources which the City believes to be reliable and the City has no reason to believe that they are untrue in any material respect;

and {d) there has been no material adverse change in the financial condition of the City since the date of the last audited financial
statements of the City.

The Pricing Centificate related to authorizing the issuance of the Obligations has approved the form and content of this Official
Statement, and any addenda, supplement ar amendment thereto, and authorizes its further use in the reoffering of the Gbligations
by the Purchaser.

Caryn Riggs
Pricing Officer
City of Grand Prairie, Texas
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Significant transfers from Business-Type Activities to Governmental Activities:

L ]

$150.000 from Water and Wastewater Fund to IT Acquisition Fund for technology services
$1,264,308 from Water and Wastewater Fund to Street Maintenance Fund for payments in liev of
property taxes

$497,500 from Water and Wastewater Fund to Grants Fund for project funding

$200.000 from Solid Waste Fund to Street Maintfenance Fund for capital project funding

$98,354 from Solid Waste Fund to Street Maintenance Fund for payments in lieu of property taxes
$4.860,000 from Storm Water Utility Fund to Storm Drainage CIP Fund for capital project funding
$48.000 from Airport Fund to Capital Lending Reserve for repayment of interfund loan

Other significant transfers made between governmental funds included the foliowing:

F.

$6,598.102 from General to Pork Venue, atong with other sources, for fiscal operations
$1.940,000 from General to IT & Equipment Acquisition funds {annual approptiation)
$1.017,829 from General to Grants to fund matching requirements related to operating grants

$5.304,000 from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve and Capital and Lending Funds for future
capital needs and improvements

$1.000,000 from the Genercl Fund to the Other CIP Funds for fulure capital needs and
improvements

$6,641,426 from the Streets CIP Fund to the Grants Fund to fund the City's portion of federaj and
state funded projects

$1.000,000 from Epic Sales Tax Fund to Epic 2 CIP for capital project funding

$3.500.00C from Park Venue to Park Capital Fund for improvements to infrastructure and
equipment at city wide parks

$200,000 from Lake Parks to Lake Parks CIP for improvements to park amenities

$2.500.000 from Capital Reserve and Capital and Lending Funds to EPIC 2 CIP for building
improvemants & equipmeant

$876,716 from the Park Venue CIP Fund to the Grants Fund to fund the City's portion of federal
and state funded projects

Deferred Qutflows/inflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Unavailable Revenue

The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from the following sources:

General Debt Service
Fund Fund Total
Property taxes 3 1928676 % 720013 & 2.648.689
Ambulance 285,727 - 255,727
Total 3 2,184,403 b 720,013 $ 2,904,416

In the Government-Wide Statement of Activities, these amounts were reported as revenue in the period
in which they were earned.
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At September 30, 2020, transfers between the City's governmental activities and the City's business-type

activities consisted of the following:

Transfers In

General Section 8 Sireets Granis Debt Epic 2

Transfers Out Fund Fund CIP Fund Func Service Fund CIP Fund
General Fund % } - % - ] 1,017.82%9 % - b
Seclion 8 Fund - - - - 20,833 -
Sireels CIP Fund - - 6.641.424
Grants Fund - - - - -
Debi Service Fund - - - - -
Nonmajor Gov ernmental Funds - - 886,000 884714 3,500,000
Internal Sefvice funds - - - -
Water & Wastewaler Fund - - 497,500 -
Solid Waoste Fund - - - - - -
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds - - - - - -
Tolal % - L3 - $ 886000 3 9,043,471 $ 20833 % 3,500.000

Transfers In
Nonmgjor Water Solid Cther Internal
Governmental  Wastewater Waste NonRmajor Service

Transters out Furicls Fund Fund Ent erprise Funds Fund Total
General Fund $ 14848838 § 824000 3 - 3 $ - $16,762.657
Section 8 Fund - - - - - 20833
Sireets CIP Fund 43,000 - - - - 6,704,424
Granls Fund 53,789 3.530 - - - 57319
Debl Service Fund - - - 17,955 - 17,955
Nonrmigjor Gov ermnmental Funds 8,733,108 116,000 - 1,253,678 - 15,375,502
Intermnal Service Funds 230,219 - - - 230,219
W aler & Wastewater Fund 1,414,308 1,911,808
Solid Waste Fund 268,354 - - - - 298,354
Nonrmajor Enterprise Funds 4,208,000 4,908.000
Total $ 30549416 $1015530 % - 3 1,271,633 % £44,287,083

Significant transfers from Govemmental Activities to Business-Type Activities:

o $876,000 from General Fund to Water and Wastewater Fund for capital projects
e $100,000 from TiF Fund to Water and Wastewater Fund for $tadium Drive construction work
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

For the year ended September 30, 2020, cost reimbursements were as follows:

Fund Amount
W ater and wastewater funds $ 4,305,522
Solidwaste funds 449,742
Storm water funds 100,305
Airport fund 76,479
Other nonmajor governmental funds 262,229
Tofal to general fund ¥ 5194377

Franchise Fees

The City's enterprise funds, which use public right-of-way, pay franchise fees 1o the General Fund as if
they were organizations separate from the City. These fees are not taxes, but are compensation to the
City for the use of the City's right-of-way. These payments, 4% of gross revenues, are reported as interfund
services provided and used rather than interfund transfers, and are reported as revenue {franchise fees)
in the General Fund and expenses in the enterprise funds.

For the year ended September 30, 2020, franchise fees paid to the General Fund were as foliows:

Fund Arnount
W ater and wastewater funds $ 3085048
Solid waste funds 386,274
Stormwater funds 308,279
Tolai $ 3779621

Interfund Transfers

Interfund fransfers are made to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the debi
service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due, 2) move restricted amounts
from borrowings 1o the debt service fund fo establish mandatery reserve accounts, 3) move unrestricted
revenues fo finance various programs that the government must account for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authotizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds
for various grant prograrms, and 4] make payments in lisu of property taxes.

Two of the City’s enterprise funds, the Water and Wastewater Fund and the Solid Waste Fund, make
payments in lieu of property taxes to the Street Maintenance Fund, which is a Nonmajor Govermnmental
Fund to provide funding for street repairs. The payments are calculated by applying the City's property
tax rate to the net book value of the enterprise funds' capital assets. Since the calculation methodology
is not the same as that applied to similar activities in the private sector in several raspects, these payments
are recorded as transfers in/out rather than as operating revenues/expenses.
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At September 30, 2020, a summary of changes in capital assets of the Housing Finance Corporation was
as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balance
January 1, Additions/ Disposals/ December 31,
2020 Compietions Reclasses 2020
Non-depreciabie capital assets:

L.and $ 1.412.851 3 - $ - $ 1612835
Total non-depreciabie capital assets 1,612,851 - - 1,612,851
Depreciable capital assets:

Buildings 20,885,524 574,091 [373,251) 21,086,364

Less accumulated depreciation [9.653,405) (1,006,537} 373,251 {10.286,691]
Total depreciable capital assets, nat 11,232,119 (432,446] - 10,79%.4673
Housing Finance Corporation

assets, nef $ 128449270 $ (432.444) % - $ 12412524

E. Interfund Transactions

interfund Receivables and Payables

Interfund receivables and payables are reported in the City's financial statements as due to/from other
funds. At September 30, 2020, interfund balances existed between the Capital Lending Reserve Fund and
the Park Venue CIP Fund for $90.953 and between ihe Capital Lending Reserve Fund and Epic
Cenier/Sales Tax Fund for $3,002.683. In May 2014, citizens approved a quatter-cent sales tax to construct
The Epic Center. Through an interfund borrowing agreement approved by the City Council, funds were
loaned to the Epic 2 CIP Fund fo begin planning for this project. A porticn of the funds loaned remain
outstanding at September 30, 2020.

At September 30, 2020, interfund balances existed between the Red Light Safety Fund and the General
Fund for $356,283.

Cost Reimbursements

The cost of the City's central general and administrative services is allocated 1o the designated special
revenue and enterprise funds, These costs are reported as interfund services provided and used rather
than interfund fransfers. Interfund services provided and used are arms-length transactions between
departments or funds that would be freated as revenues, expenditures or expenses if they were with an
external organization. The distinguishing aspect of interfund services provided and used are that each
department or fund both gives and receives consideration.

Cost reimbursements for general and administrative services (indirect costs) are recorded as general and
administrafive revenue in the City's General Fund. Indirect costs are recorded as general and
administrative expenses in the funds receiving these services.
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THE CiTv
LOCATION

The City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the “City™), is centrally located amid the estimated 6 million people in the Dallas/Fort Worth
Area, The City, with an estimated population of 200,640 for 2022, siretches 28 miles long by about eight miles at its widest point,
The City covers about 81 square miles.

TRANSPORTATION

The City has access to four major interstate highway systems - 1-20, 1-30, [-35 & 1-45 - five state highway systems - SH 360, SH
180, SH 103, SH 161, Loop 12 and FM 1382 - and U.S. 287 all run through the Cify, or are within 15-30 minutes of the City’s
boundaries,

»  IH 20: an eight-lanc cast-west expressway that passes through south of the City, finking the City to Dallas and Fort Worth.
West of Fort Worth, IH 20 leads to Abilene and Odessa. Eastward destinations on [H 20 are Tyler, Longview and
Shreveport, La.

» IH 30: a six-lanc easi-west expressway that passes through north of the City and also links the City to Dailas and Fort
Worth. IH 30 links to [H 20 in west Fort Worth, Eastward destinations on |H 30 are Greenville, Texarkana and Arkansas.

¥  SH 360: a six-lane north-south expressway mnning along the western edge of the city, a key route to Dallas-Fort Worth
International Airport.

¥  President George Bush Turnpike: a four and six-lane north-south tollway runs 10.5 miles through Grand Prairie from the
northern City Timits to 1-20.

The City's Municipal Airport serves smaH piston planes o large business turboprop aircraft and helicopters. The airport has a
4,000-foot-long, 75-foot-wide lighted, concrete runway, repair service and carge handling, a helipad, dining facifities, and support
facilities for training, private aviation and business flying activitics. The airport is designated in the FAA National Plan of Integrated

Airport System and the Texas Aeronautical Facilities Plan. Hangar space is available for nearly 233 airerafi, with tie-down space
and FBO services available.

The Dallas/Fart Worth International Airport, the 3™ busiest airport in the world in texms of operations (10" in terms of passengers),
lies about five miles north of the City’s northern border. In 2020 it served 47 million passengers and provided service to 178
domestic and 34 international destinations (www.dfwairport.com).

PoruLaTiON

The estimated population for 2022 is 200,640. From the 1990 Census (o the 2010 Census, the Citys popuiation increased 38
percent.

DEMOGRAPHICS

2010 Census estimates of the City Non-Hispanic population breakdown were 29.1 percent white, 19.6 percent black, 6.5 percent
Asian and Pacific Islander, 0.4 pereent American Indian, 1.7 percent other; Hispanic of any race comprises 42.7% of the population.

Age distribution estimales of residents, according to the 2010 Census, are 64.7 percent ages 21 and older, 6.9 percent older than
65, and 30.9 percent younger than 18,

The 2010 median household income was estimated o be $51,368 (dmerican Communiny Survey Census).

INpuUsTRIAL BASE

Wholesale trade {distribution), manufacturing and retail trade companies are the largest industrial sectors in the City.



INDUSTRY PROFILE

City Of Grand Prairle, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Industry Percent of Total gross sales
Whaolesale Trade 32.42% Balance Transfers/ Balance
M anufacturing 24.62% October 1, Disposals/ September 30,
Retail Trade 21.89% Business-Type Activities 2019 Additions Reclassification 2020
Construction 9.12% Non-depreciable capital assets:
Accommodation/Food Services 2.30% Land $ 4,831,334 $ 273,888 - % 5105222
Admin/Support/Waste M gmt/Remcdiation Services 2.03% Constructionin progress 28,648,888 14,074,324 (8.617,469) 34,107,743
Other Services (except Public Administration 1.97% , .
l (excep ‘ ) ’ Total non-depreciable capital assets 33,480,222 14,350,212 {8.617,469) 39,212,965
Real Estate/Rental/Leasing 1.i8%
Transportation/Warehousing 0.91% Depreciable capital assets:
Professional/Scientific/Technical Services 0.90% Buildiings 19.790.824 303,167 (185,604) 19,908,987
Arts/Entertainment/Recreation 0.70% Equipment 25,178,492 3.884.146 (954,851) 28,107,787
Information 0.658% Infrastructure 387,369,747 177.500 14,134,085 401,481,312
Agriculture/Forestry/Fishing/Hunting 0.48% Total depreciable capital assets 432,339,063 4,364,813 12,994,210 449,698,086
Finance/lnsurance 0.25% .
; . . _ Less accumulated depreciation for:
Educational Services O-18% Buildi (9,351,323 (624,844 185,001 9,791,166
vildings 30%, . : J21.
Health Care/Sccial Assistance 0.13% . N :l ] [ )
Equipment 112,379.743) [2.656,431) 982214 {14,053,240)
infrastructure [207,502,728} {14,931,558) 2,375,445 {220,058,838)
Source: Texas Comptroller. -
Tetal accumulated depreciation (229,233,794) (18,212,833} 3.542.663 [243,203.964)
LABOR FORCE . .
Totdl depreciable capital assets, net 203,105,269 (13,848,020} 16,536,873 205,794,122
) g bor F Emnl U 1 t U | t Rai
Yea Civilian Labor Force mployment nemp loy men Memp oyment Raie Total capital assels, net $236,585491 $ 502,192 7919404  $ 245,007,087
2017 08,782 95,044 3,738 3.8%
2018 100,962 97,210 3,752 3.7% Depreciation expense was charged to governmental and business-type activities as follows:
2019 101,390 97,781 3,609 3.6%
2020 100,856 92,918 7.038 7.9, Gosvernmtentﬂl‘ccfivities: . Busi ness~fyp§: octiviiies:
(M 6.1% upport services 4,171,389 W ater and wostewater $ 14,424,053
2021 102475 96,180 6300 e Public safety services 8336730  Solidwaste 1,675,747
Recreation and |eisure services 8,494,751 Other business-type
Source: Texas Employment Commission, Development services 22,820,444 activities 2,111,033
(1) Data as of October 2021. Internal services funds {see nole below} 255,432
Total business-type activilies $ 18,212,833
EMPLOYERS
Total governmental acfivifies 3 43,880,758
Estimated
Company Product-§ ervive Emnployees Capital assets held by the government's intemnal service funds are charged to various functions based on
Granel Praitie Independent School District Administeation of Education Programs 4,000 their usage of the assefs.
Lockhesd M artin M issiles and Fire Control Research and Development in the Phy sical, Engineering, and Life 4,000
Paly-America Inc. Unsupported Plastics Fitm and Sheet (except Packaging) 2,000 Al September 30, 2020, a summary of changes in capital assets of the Sports Corporation was as foliows:
City of Grand Prairie Public Administration 1,614
Bell Helicopter-Textron Helicopter aircraft manufacturing 1,200
. h Balance Transfers/ Balance
T ear Seating M anufacturing 1,105 " .
Lene Star Park at Grand Praitie Racetracks : 950 October 1, Additiors/ Disposals/ September 30.
Forterra Pipe & Products, Inc. Concrete Pipe Manufacturing 930 2019 Completions Reclasses 2020
Republic National Distributing Wine and Distilled Aleoholic Beverage Wholesalers 800 :
Flex-N-Gate Auto Accessory Manufacturing 200 Equipment $ 310,078 $ - 3 - 3 310,078
Less accumulated depreciation (310,078} - - (310,078)
Total $ - $ - $ - 3 -
A-2
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2020

Assels were restricted for the following purposes:

Governmentcl Business-Type
Purpose Activities Activities
Custamer deposits 3 38,000 $ 5203046 $ 5241044
Debt service 2,489,225 6.562,083 2.051,308
Capital projects 103,301,790 55,676,204 158,977,994
Support services - - -
Public safety 13,288,354 - 13,288,354
Recreation and leisure 13,713,025 13,713,025
Development services 19,879,460 - 19,879,440
Other specific purposes 2.671.337 - 2,671,337
Tofal reshicted assels $ 155,381,191 $ 47,441,333 $ 222,822,524

D. Capital Assetls

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2020 was as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balance
October 1, Disposals/ September 30,
Governmentadl Activities 2019 Additions Reclassification 2020

Non-depreciable capital ossets:

Land 3 46,708,853 $ 438,654 $ 10,400 $ 47,157907

Construction in progress 168,140,079 51,801,634 (39.782.867) 180,158,846
Total non-depreciable capital assets 214,848,932 52,240,288 (39.772.,487) 227,316,753
Depreciable capital assets:

Buildings 231,755,795 1,153,874 24,110,845 257,020,516

Equipment 124,745,099 4,251,315 [604,432) 130,391,982

Infrastructure 632,995,287 6,437,938 5,407,118 644,841,043
Total depreciable capital assets 291,496,881 11,843,129 28,913,531 1.032,253,541
Less accumulated depreciaiion for:

Buildings {85.788,647} {8.470,544) 149,359 |94,109,832}

Equipment (76396,066)  (10.932,057) 2,950,573 [84,377,548)

Infrastructure (358,457,028} (24,478,157} 5.748.13% [377.187,044)
Total accumulated depreciation (520,641,741} {43,880,758) 8,848,073 (555,674,426}
Total depreciable copital assels, net 470,855,140 (32,037.629) 37.761.604 476,579,115
Tolal capital assels, net $ 685,704,072 $20,202,65% $ {2010883] $703,895848
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RECREATION

Recreational facilities include the 7,500-acre Joe Poal Lake, championship-level Tangle Ridge Golf Club, Lone Star Park at Grand
Prairie and more than 52 public parks on 4,900 acres.

Parks and Recreation facilities include an extreme skate park, two multipurpose recreation centers, an active adult center, a setior
center, indoor pool, three outdoor pools, five softball and baseball complexes, two golf courses, 32 tennis courts, a soccer comp lex,
a central park, PlayGrand Adventures and the recently acquired two lake parks on Joe Pcol Lake,

Ripley’s Belicve It Or Not, The Palace of Wax and Trader's Village in the City are popular entertainment and shopping locations.
Neatby are Six Flags over Texas in Atlington and z00s, ait museums, symphonies and ballet in Dallas and Fort Waorth.

(One of three Class | horse-racing tracks in Texas, Lone Star Park at Grand Praitic opened for live races in April 1997, The track's
simulcast pavilion opened in mid-1996,

Professional Sports: the Dallas Cowboys of the National Football League, the Texas Rangers of Major League Baseball, the Dallas
Mavericks of the National Basketball Association, the Dallas Stars of the National Hockey League, and the FC Dallas of Major
League Soccer, All have home games within 5-25 minutes of the City.

NCA A-event schools: Southern Methodist University and Texas Christian University in Daflas and Fort Worth,

Cedar I1itl State Park, just south east of the City, offers 355, mostly wooded campsites in the Daltas-Fort Worth hill country.
Among patk facilities are two lighted fishing jetties and boat access to Joe Pool l.ake.

EDUCATION

Seven public universities and eight independent universities, including health related education facilities, in the region totaled
enrollment of 157,923 in 2020 (source; Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board). The universities, among them University

of Texas campuses (Arlington and Dallas), offer programs from engineering to business and degrees from bachelot's to medical
dactorates.

‘T'he Dalias and Tarrant counties public community colleges - the nearest of them Mountain View in Dallas, North Lake in Erving,
Cedar Valley in Lancaster, the Southeast campus of Tarrant County College in Arlington, and El Cenire in Dallas - counted over
186,244 students in 2020 (source: Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board). Additionaily, three technically oriented post-
secandary schools are within 30 minutes of the City.

In addition to their degree programs, many of these colleges and universities offer business consulting, employee training specific
to a company’s skill demands, community health care services, economic and land development research, computer and
information services and librasy facilities open to the community.

Grand Praivie Independent Schoel District (the “GPISD™) and the Aslington Independent School District (the “AISD") predominate
among the six school distriets with boundaries in the City.

GPISD comprises 20 elementary schools, six middle schoots, two ninth grade centers, four senior high schools, one alternative

education schaol and one early childhood center. Students whose residences are on the Dallas County side of the City attend
GPISD.

Students who reside in Tarrant County and Grand Prziric attend AlSD, which comprises of nine high schools, 13 junior high
schools, and 52 elementary schools (six in the City). AISD has no junior high schooels or high schools in the Ciry.



City Of Grand Prairle, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

B. Receivables

Al September 30, 2020, receivables, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts,
consisted of the following:

Nenmajor Inlernal Toial
Governmen al Activilies Genegral Section 8 Grants Pebf Service Governmenial Service Government al
Receivables:
Property laxes 3 24663540 - $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ L0932
Sales taxes 5301 947 - - - 6294842 - 12,594,789
Franchise fees 2393307 - - - 62212 - 2,485,519
Other 3752804 431 190,836 5517 869,477 291 4,825,573
Tolof receivables, gross 15111599 431 190.834 5.517 7.226,531 991 23,686,813
Less:
Allowance for unc ollectibles [1.445.447) - - - - . [1.767.397}
Tolal raceivables, met $ 13586552 % 431 5 190836  § 5517 § 7228531 % 991§ 21919414
Water Solid Other Total
Business-Type Activities; Wastewater Waste Nonmgjor Business-Type
Receivables:
_ ‘ Trade accounts 10,723,180 $ L794174 $ 924,487 $ 13451821
(This Page intentionally Biank) Other ) 16,680 ) 16,680
Totdl receivables, gross 10,723,180 1,810,854 934,457 13,468,504
Less:
Allowance for uncollectibles (4.847.855) {1,227 045} {257 ,4785) {6,352,378)
Total receivables, net $ 5855325 $ 583,809 $ 676989 $ 7116123
C. Reskicted Assets
At September 30. 2020, restricted assets consisted of the following:
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12099512 $ 2954906 $ 15055418
Investments 143.281.67% 464,484,427 207,766,104

$ 155381.171 $ ¢7.441,333 $ 222822524
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Septembber 30, 2020

The asset mix of the City's porifolio is expressed in terms of maximum commitment so as to allow flexibility
to take advantage of market conditions. The asset mix requirements are as follows:

% Maximum
1. US.Treasury bills and notes 100
2. U.5.agency orinstrument ality obligations {each iype) 25°%
3, Repurchase agreements 20
4. Municipal securities {total) 40
5. Municipal securities (out-of-staie) 20
4. Certificates of deposit {per institution) 20
7. Money market muiual fund 50°
8. Public funds investment pool 50

a Total agency investmenits limited to no more than 100% of the total portfolio.

b State low cliows up to 80% of monthly average fund balance, excluding bond proceeds. The City limits its exposure to 50% 10
reduce risk.

In addifion, the City may invest in callable securities but shall limit the iolal amount 6 no more than 50% of the portfolic. The City
did notinvest in any securiiies different from the categories mentioned above during the 2019-2020 fiscal year.

Grand Prairie Sports Faciiities Development

The Corp has recurring fair value measurements as presented in the table below. The Corp's investment
balances and weighted average maturity of such invesimentis are as follows:

Fair value Measursments Using

QuoledPrices Significanl
inAclive Gther Significant Weighled
Markets tor Observable Unobservable  Average
September 30,  Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Maturity
2020 {Levell] |Level 2) {Level 3] [Days) Credit Risk
Cash 3 ?6,165 $ - % - $ -

Inveslment s measured at amoertized cost:

investment Poals:

TexPool 2,019,192 - - - 1 ApAM
Invasiment s by fair value level:

LS. governmen agency securities:

FHLB 2,023,377 - 2023379 - 193 AAA

Total 3 11,128.734 $ - $ 2.02337¢ $ -

The Sports Corporation is authorized fo invest in obligations of the U. §. orits agencies and instrumentalities,
certain repurchase agreements, municipal securities with a rating of at least A, collateralized or insured
cerlificates of deposit, and SEC-registered, no-load money market mutual funds comprised of securities
allowed under the Public Funds Invesiments Act and public funds investment pools. At year-end, all
investments of the Sports Corporation were held by the Sports Corporation’s agent in the Sports
Corporation’s name. The fair value of investments owned at September 30, 2020 was $7.019.192 in the
Public Funds Investment Pool {TexPool} and $1,998,418 in U.3. agency instrumentalities.
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APPENDIX B

EXCERPTS FROM THE
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020
The information contained in this Appendix consists of excerpts from the City of Grand
Prairie, Texas Annual Financial Report for the Year Fnded September 30, 2020 (the

“Report™, and is not intended to be a comptlete statement of the City’s financial condition.
Reference is made to (he cosnplete Report for further information.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Invesiment Policy

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, the Public Funds investment Act (Act), to adopt,
implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written, primarily 1o emphasize safety
of principal and liquidity; address 1) investment diversification, vield, and maturity, and 2} the quality and
capability of investment management; include a list of the types of authorized investments in which the
investing enfity’s funds may be invested:; and, the maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual
investment owned by the entity.

The City Council has adopted investment policies [policies} which are in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, where applicable. The policies identify authorized investments and investment terms,
collateral requirements, safekeeping requirements for collateral and investments and certain investrment
practices,

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted as
part of the audit of the basic financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices,
management reports and establish appropriate polices. Authorized investments include obligations of
the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities [except for mortgage pass-through securities),
repurchase agreements, municipal securities, public funds investment pools, SEC regulated money
market mutual funds and collateralized or insured certificates of deposit. The City adheres to the
requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the City are in accordance with local
policies,

The invesiment policies require that repurchase agreements be made pursuant to a master agreement,
the colloteral is o U. 5. Treasury bill, note or bond; the security is held in safekeeping by the City's custodial
agent; and the investment is fransacted "deiivery vs. payment” so that the City’s interest in the underlying
security is perfected. The City does not invest in reverse repurchase agreements. No City monies were
invested in repurchase agreements al September 30, 2020.

investment Risk
Interest rate 1isk - In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure 1o declines in
fair values by limiting the weighted averaoge maturity of its investments portfolio to less than
twelve months.

Credit risk — State law limits investments in commercial paper if the commercial paper is rated not less
than A-1 or P-1 or an equivalent rafing by at least two nationally recognized credit rating agencies or one
nationally recognized credit rating agency and is fully secured by an irevocable letter of credit issued by
a bank organized and existing under the laws of the United States or any staie. The City's policy does not
allow investments in commercial paper.

Concentration of credit fisk — Investments shall be diversified to reduce the risk of loss resulting from over-
concentration of investments in a specific maturity, a specific issue, or a specific class of securities.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

The City has recurring fair value measurements as presented in the table below. The City's investment
balances and weighted average maturity of such investments are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Sigrificant W eighted
Markets for Observable Unobservable Average
Seplember 30, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs haturity
2020 {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level3) (Days) Credit Risk
Cash $ 18,074,414 $ . 3 = $

Investments measured at amortized cost:

Investment Pools:

TexPool 125,551,866 - - - 1 AMAM
Invesiments measured af net asset value (NAV):

Investment Pools:

TexStar 3,046,698 - ] 2 1 AMAM
Investments by fair value level:

Us. government agency securities:

US Treasuries 5,162,100 - 5,162,100 - 592 AAA
Municipal bonds 51,733,440 - 51,733,440 - 533 AAA
FAMCA, 31,419,030 - 31,419,030 - 582 Mot Rated
FFCB 41,016,987 - 61,016,987 - 395 AAA
FHLB 53,651,955 - 53,651,955 - 497 AMA
FHLMC 8,976,951 - B976951 - 289 AAA
FNMA 16,263,230 - 16,263,230 - 365 AAA
Total 3 374,896,671 3 - $ 228,223,693 $

The amounts for TexStar and TexPool (pooled investments) are reported as cash equivalents in the
Statement of Net Posifion.

The TexPool investment pool is an external investment pool measured at amortized cost. In order to meet
the criteria to be recorded at amortized cost, the investment pool must transact at a stable net asset
value per share and maintain certain maturity, quality, liquidity and diversification requirements within the
investment pool. The investment pool transacts at a net asset value of $1.00 per share, has weighted
average maturities of sixty days or less and weighted average lives of 120 days or less. Investments held
are highly rated by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, have no more than 5% of
portfolio with one issuer (excluding U.S. government securities) and can meet reasonably foreseeable
redemptions. TexPool has a redemption notice period of one day and may redeem daily. The investment
pool's authority may only impose restrictions on redemptions in the event of a general suspension of
trading on major securities markets, general banking moratorium or national state of emergency that
affects the pool's liquidity.

The TexStar investment pool is an external investment pool measured at NAV. TexStar's strategy is fo seek
preservation of principal, liquidity and currentincome fthrough investment in a diversified portfolio of short-
term marketable securities. The City has no unfunded commitments related to the investment pools.
TexStar has a redemption notice period of one day and may redeem daily. The investment pool’s
authorities may only impose restrictions on redemptions in the event of a general suspension of frading
on major securities markets, general banking moratorium or national or state emergency that affects the
pool's liquidity.

U.S. Government Agency Securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a
matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship to
benchmark quoted prices.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the City) as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2020, and the related notes to basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The City's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stafes of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is o express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the component unit financial statements for the Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation (a discretely
presented component unit). Those financial statements were audited by other audifors in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, whose report thereon has
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Grand Prairie
Housing Finance Corporation is based on the report of other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal confrol relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal confrol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P.
2300 North Field Street, Suite 1000 | Dallas, Texas 75201

Main: 972.490.1970
CPAs AND ADVISORS | WEAVER.COM



The Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Councll
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Opinions

in our opinicn based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the govermnmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2020, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America reguire that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budget to actual schedules for the General Fund ond Section 8
Fund, Schedule of Changes in Postemployment Benefits-Retiree Health Plan, Schedule of Changes in
Postemployment Benefits-Texas Municipal Retirement Systern, Schedule of Contributions-Texas Municipal
Retirement System, and Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liabitity and Related Ratios- Texas Municipal
Retfirement Systermn listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statemsnts. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmenial Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical contexdt.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we cbtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The intraductory section, combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements,

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules, os listed in the table of contents, is the
responsibility of management and wos derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements, Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial stalemenis and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financiol statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing stondards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund statements and
schedules are fairly stated. in all material respects, in reiation to the basic financial statements as awhole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjecied to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them,

CHy Of Grand Prairie, Texcas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Chapter 2257 Coltateral for Public Funds of the Government Code requires that all deposits in financial
institutions be fully collateralized by U.S. Government obligations or Tts dgencies and instrumentalities or
direct obligafions of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities that have ¢ market value of not less than
the principal amount of the deposits. The above book balance includes monies held in escrow, pushing
the book balance above the collateral vatue, Per Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and BNY Mellon's contractual
obligation te the City, the collateral value held in the City's name at September 30, 2020 was $9,207,300.

Crand Prairie Sports Facilities Development

Al September 30, 2020, the carying amount of the Sports Corporation's deposits included in cash and
cash equivalents was $921,736 while the bank balance of the Sports Corporation's deposits was $91.736.
The bank kbalance was entirely covered by collateral held by the Sports Corporation’s agent in the Sports
Corporation's name.

Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation

The bank balance of HFC at December 31, 2020, including restricted cash, totaled $2,034,003 all of which
was covered by FDIC insurance and collateral held by the depository institution in HFC's name. HFC's
unrestricted cash and cash equivadlents had a balance of $574,342. Restricted cash of $102,289 {tenant
security deposits) represents cash held on deposit by HFC for insurance proceeds received for damages
to federally funded assets. The liability is recorded until final disposition of the proceeds is requested by
HUD. Other assets include reserves of $140,275 and bonds held by o frusiee of $1,215,097 as a debt service
reserve.

Investments

The City and the Sports Corporation categorize its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Valve
Measurement and Application provides a framework for measuring fair value which establishes a three-
level fair value hierarchy that describes the inpuis that are used to measure assets and liabilities.

« level 1inputs are quoted prices [unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that
a government can access at the measurement date.)

» Level 2inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

» tevel 3inputs are uncbservable inputs for an asset or liability.

Tne fair value hierarchy gives the highest pricrity to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3inputs.
It a price for anidentical asset or fiability is not observable, a government should measure fair value using
another valuation technique that maximizes the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimizes the use
of unobservable inputs. If the fair value of an asset or iability is measured using inputs from more than one
level of the fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Minimum Fund Balgnce Policy
it is the desire of the City to maintain an adeguate fund balance in the General Fund in order to mgintain
liquidity and in anticipation of economic downfurns or natural disasters. The City Council has adopted a

financial policy to maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance of 50 to 60 days of budgeted General
Fund expenditures.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabiiifies, and
deferred inflows of resources. Resticted net position represents the difference between restricted assets
and liabilities payable from these assets that is extemally imposed by enabling legislafion.

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, plus deferred
outflows from bond refundings, reduced by retainage payable and the outstanding balance of any debt
used for acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets, plus any unspent bond proceeds.

F. Budgetary Conirol

As set forth by the City Charter, the City Manager submits annual budgets to the City Council in August
for the upcoming fiscal year. In September, the City Council adopts budgets for all govemmental funds
except for the Grants Fund, Police Seizure Funds, Public Improvement District Funds (PIDs}, Tax Increment
Financing District Funds [TIFs), and the Verizon Theatre Fund. For each governmental fund. budgeted
appropriations [expendiiures) may not exceed budgeted revenues plus beginning fund balances.

Capital project funds are controlled on a project basis and budgeted appropriations are carried forward
each year until the project is completed.

Note 2. Detailed Noles
A. Deposits and Invesiments
Cash and Cash Equivalents

At September 30, 2020, the City reported cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Net Position as
follows:

Unrestricted Restricted Total
Caish $ 15117.508 3 2,956,904 $ 18074414
Pocled investments 114,499,052 12,099,512 128,598,564
Tolal cash and cash equivalents $ 131,616,560 3 15056,418 3 146,672,978

Of this amount, the City's cash carrying amount (book) and bank balances were as follows:

Financial Institution Book Balance Bank Balance
W ells Fargo and BNY Mellon $ 18048158 3 19,256,441
Fetty Cash 26256 -
Total cash $ 18074414 $ 19.256.441
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The Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Audifing Standards, we have alo issued our report doted
March 11, 2021, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is To describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financicl
reporting and compliance and the resulis of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financiat reporting or on complionce. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Lo and Dideotl LLE
WEAVER AND TIDWELL, LLL.P

Dallas, Texas
March 11, 2021
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Pensions

For purposes of measuring net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of TMRS, and additions
fo/deductions from TMRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is
reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

Postemployment Benefits

The City provides postemployment healthcare benefits to all vested employees upon retirement from the
City. Employees are vested in the City's pension plan with twenty-five years or more of service, regardiess
of age, or five years or more of service at age sixty and above. Coverage is also available to dependents
or surviving spouses of retfirees. The City subsidizes medical, dental, and hospitalization costs incurred by
retirees and their dependents. Recommendations for plan benefits are presented to City Council for their
approval during the annual budget process. The City's plan qudlifies as a
single-employer, defined benefit plan. Complete details of the plan are listed in Note K starting on page
78.

Long-Term Debt

General obligation bonds and other debt issued for general government capital projects and acquisitions
that are repaid from tax revenues are recorded in the governmental activities column in the government-
wide Statement of Net Posifion. Debt issued to fund capital projects in the proprietary funds is recorded
in both the business-type activities column in the government-wide Statement of Net Position and in the
propriefary fund Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as deferred charges on
refunded debt obligations, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method in the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary funds. Bonds payable
are reported net of applicable bond premiums and discounts.

Nature and Purpose of Classifications of Fund Equity
Restricted fund balances in the governmental funds are externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other govemments for specific purposes.

Committed fund balances can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the
City Council through an ordinance or resolution, which are considered equally restrictive for the purpose
of committing fund balances. To remove or change the constraint, the City Council must take the same
level of action.

Assigned fund balances are determined by City management based on City Council direction, in
accordance with financial policies adopted by resolution. Assigned fund balances are constrained by
the intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance represents the amount that does not meet the criteria for restricted,
committed, or assigned.,

Nonspendable fund balances represent inventories and prepaid items.

The City considers expenditures to be made from the most restrictive classification when more than one
classification is available.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

« Pension and OPEB investment experience - the difference between projecied and actual
aamings of plon invesiments. The difference is deferred and recognized as pension plan expense
over ¢ closed five-year period as required by GASB No. 68 and 73.

« Pension and OFEB assumption changes - the difference resulting from a change in assumptions
used fo measure the underlying nat pension and OPES liability. These ditferences are deferred and
recognized over the estimaied average remaining lives of all members as of the beginning of the
measurement period.

Deferred inflows of resources represents an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future
reporting period, and as so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue} until that fime.
Deferred inflow of resources are reported in the basic financial statements the same as deferred outflows
of resources. The City has the foliowing items that qudiify for reporting in this category.

+ Unavailable revenue — at the governmental fund level, property tax and ambulance receivables
recorded but not expected to be collected within than sixty days affer fiscal year end are deferred
and recognized as an inflow of rescurces (revenue} in the period that the amounts become
available.

+ Pension and OPEB actuarial experience - the difference between the expected and actual
experience in the actuarial measurement of the total pension and OPEB liability not recognized in
the current year. This amount is deferred and amortized over a period of years determined by the
plan actuary. The amortization period is based on the estimated average remaining service lives
of employees that are provided with a pension or OPEB through the plans {active and inactive
employees) for the City determined at the beginning of the measurement date.

« OPEB assumpfion changes - fhe difference resulting from a change in assumptions used to
measure the underlying net pension and OPEB fiabllity. These differences are deferred and
recognized over the estimated average remaining lives of all members cs of the beginning of the
megsurement period.

» Pension Investment experience - the difference between projected and octual earnings of pian
invesiments. The difference is deferred and recognized as pension plan expense over a closed
five-year period as required by GASB No, 68.

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts, depending on tenure with the City. Thesa
benefils accumulate pro rata by pay period. Payment for unused vacation will be made upon separation
of emplioyment. Fire and police civil service employees who have completed their introduciory period
are paid up 1o 90 days sick leave upon separation of employment, excluding indefinite suspensions. The
valuation of the civil service sick leave is af current pay rates. The valuation of accrued compensated
absences includes salary-related payments such as the City's share of taxes and confributions to the
retirement plan in accordance with GASB 16.

Accrued compensated absence liabilities are reported in the respective columns in the government-
wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements. Compensated absences are
only reported in governmental funds if they are owed to separated employees at the end of the fiscal
yeqr,
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Receivables and Payables

Maijor revenue sources susceptible to accrual are recorded as receivables when they become both
measurable and available. Expenditures incurred during the current fiscal year but not yet paid are
recorded as payables at fiscal year-end.

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
fiscal year-end are referred to as due to/from other funds.

Inventories and Prepaid ltems

Inventory consists primarily of supplies and material and is recorded at cost when purchased and
expensed when consumed. For the General Fund, inventory is expensed on an actual specific-cost basis.
Special Revenue and Enterprise Funds' inventory is charged out on a first-in, first-out basis, except for fuel
inventory which is charged out on a moving-average basis. Prepaid balances are for payment made by
the City in the current year to provide services occurring in the subsequent fiscal year. The cost of prepaid
items is expensed when consumed rather than when purchased.

Accordingly, for both inventories and prepaid items, fund balance is classified as nonspendable for an
amount equal fo the cost to signify those funds are not available for spending.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capiftal assets (i.e. land, buildings, equipment, improvements other than buildings, infrastructure, and
constfruction in progress) of all the funds are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical
cost is not known. Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets
received in a service concession arrangement are recorded at acquisition value on the date donated.
An item is classified as an asset if the inifial, individual cost is $5,000 or greater. Capital assets of the City
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements. Assets subject to depreciation are
depreciated using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives of all depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings 20 - 40 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-15years
Improvements other than Buildings 20 - 40 vears
Infrastructure 20 - 40 vears

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represents a consumption of net position by the City that is applicable to
a future reporting period, and as so wil not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expenses/expenditures) until then. Deferred outflows of resources are reported in the government-wide
Statement of Net Position for governmental and business-type activities and in the Statement of Net
Position in the fund financial statements only for proprietary funds. The City has the following items that
qualify for reporting in this category.

» Deferred charges on debt refunding —resulfs from the difference in the carrying value of refunded
debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life
of the refunded or refunding debt.

» Pension and OPEB Employer contributions — contributions made from the measurement date of

the plans to the current fiscal year end (January to September). These contributions are deferred
and recognized in the subsequent fiscal year.
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Proprietary Funds

As mentioned earlier, proprietary funds use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrugl
basis of accounting. The accounting objectives for proprietary funds are the determination of net income,
financial position, and cash flows. Proprietary fund equity is segregated into (1} net investiment in capital
assets; (2) restricted net position, and {3) unrestricted net position. Proprietary funds distinguish operating
revenues and expenses from the non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's
principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operaling revenues and expenses.

The City reports two types of proprietary funds — enterprise funds and internal services funds.

Enierpiise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises, where the intent is 1} that the costs [expenses, including depreciation] of
providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges, or 2) where the City Council has decided that periodic determination of
revenues eamed, expenses incurred and/or operating income generated i appropriate for the purposes
of capital maintenance, public policy. management control, and/or accountability. The City maintains
five enterprise funds — water and wastewater services, solid waste services, storm water services, girport
operations, and golf course operations. These enterprise funds are classified as business-type activities in
both the government-wide and governmental fund financial statements,

Infernal Service Funhds

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department to other departments within the City, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City has two internal
service funds:

» Fleet Services Fund — accounts for a full range of services in managing and maintaining the City's
fleet of vehicles and equipment.

« Risk Management Fund — accounts for premiums, deductibles and claims for the City's property,
liability, workers compensation, and employese heclth and life insurance programs. The City
reports all risk financing activities in the Risk Management Fund.

E. Assets, Liabiiities, Deferred Quiflows/Inflows Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances

Deposits and Investments

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Interest earnings are
recorded in the General Fund unlass it is required by reguiations or agreements to allocate to certain
funds, In fiscal year 2020, the funds receiving allocation of interest eamings were the Grants Fund, Epic 2
CIP Fund, and the Police Seizure Funds. For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the City considers
cash on hand, demand deposits, and investments with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents,
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020
(Unaudited}

Management's discussion and analysis provides a namative overview of the financial activities and
changes in the financial position of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the City) for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2020, It is offered here by the management of the City to the readers of its financial
statements, Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the

informaftion furmished in our letter of transmittal, the introductory section of the City's financial statement,
and the accompanying notes.

FINANCIAL HIGHHGHTS

+ The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Cily exceeded its liabilities ond deferred
inflows of resources at September 30, 2020 by $684,440,019 {net position).

+« The Cily's iotal net position increased $3%,421,403, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020,
primarily due to increased property tax assessments, sales tax collections, and grant contributions.

» Al September 30, 2020, the City's govermnmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $234,115,110. The $47,731,260 uncssigned fund balance in the General Fund represents 32.9%
of total General Fund expenditures and transfers.

e The City's {otal long-term liabilities of $629,163,768 decreased by $73,034,453 {10.4%) during the
current fiscal year. In fiscal year 2020, net bonded debt decreased by $43.908,750, with the
remaining liability comprised of pension and employee related obligations See Table 4 in this
report for further information regarding the City’s long-term liabilities.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis i intended 1o serve as an intfroduction te the City's basic financial statements,

The reporting focus is on the City as a whole and on individual major funds. It is intended to present a
more comprehensive view of the City's financial activities,

The City's basic financial statemenis are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financiat statements. This report also contains
required and other supplementary infoermation in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements — The government-wide financial statements include the
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities. These statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the City's finances in a manner similar to that of a private-sector business. Both
are prepared using the economic resources focus and the accrual basis of accounting, meaning that all
the current year's revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred outfiows of
resources, liahilities, including capital assets and long-term liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources,
The differences between these items are reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
nel position may sarve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating. Other indicators of the city's financial position should be taken into consideration, such os
the change in the City's property tax base and condition of the City's infrastructure (i.e., roads, drainage

systems, water and sewer lines, et¢.}, in order to more accurately assess the overall financial condition of
the City. '

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the govermment’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year, It focuses on both the gross and net costs of the govermment’s various

activities and thus summarizes the cost of previding specific government services. This statement includes
all current year revenues and expenses.



City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis — Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020
{Unaudited)

The Statement of Net Position and $tatement of Activities divide the City's activities info two types:

Governmental Activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including general
government, public safety, planning, public works, fransportafion, housing, community development,
cuttural events, and library. Property taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees provide the majcrity of
financing for these activities.

Business-Type Activities - Activities for which the City charges a fee to customers to pay mast or all of the
costs of a service it provides are reported here, The City's business-type activities include o water ang
wastewater system, a solid waste sanitary landfill. o storm water utility system, municipal girport, and
municipal golf courses.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
govermnment), but ako the Grand Prairie Sports Facllities Development Corporation, Inc. (the Sports
Corporation) and the Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation {HFC) as component units. Both are
legally, financially, and administratively autonomous separate corporations. HFC issues tox exempt
revenue bonds 1o supply mortgage financing for low income home buyers and multi-family
developments, and engages in other affordable housing activities. The Sports Corporation oversees Lone
Star Park at Grand Prairie, a horse track facility.

The Crime Confrol ond Prevention District {CCPD} is a legally separate entity that is financially
accountable to the City. A blended presentation has been used to report the financial information of this
component unit.

Fund financial statements - The City, like other state and local govemnments, usss fund accounting o
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-reloted legal requirements. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used fo mainicin control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. These statements focus on the most significant funds and may be used to find
more detailed information about the City's most significant activities. All of the funds of the City can be
divided into two categories: gavernmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for the majority of the City's activities,
which are essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the governmeni-wide
statements, However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financicl
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating ¢
government’s near-term financing requirements.

The focus of the governmental funds financial statements is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements. Therefore, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for govermnmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements, By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the governmeni's near-
term financing decisions. Both the govermmental funds Balance Sheet and the governmental funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide o reconciliation to
facilitaie this comparison. These reconciliations explain the differences between the govermment’s
activities as reported in the government-wide statements and the information presented in the
governmental funds financial siatements.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Soilid Waste Fund

This fund accounts for the City's landfill, garbage/recycling collection service, brush and litter collection,
stfreet sweeping, ilegal dumping cleanup, Keep Grand Prairie Beautiful, and auto-related business
programs, as well as a number of special purpose transfers related to reserves for landfill closure,
post-closure costs and environmental remediation. All costs are financed through charges to sanitation
customers,

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers o what is being measured; basis of accounting refers o when revenues and
expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements, Basis of
accounting refates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus
apphed,

Government-Wide Financial Stafemenis

The govemment-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for proprietary funds are
reported using the economic rescurces measurement focus and the accruat basis of accounting. The
economic resocurces measuvrement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent)
are included on the Statement of Net Position, and the operating statement presents increases [revenues)
and decreases (expenses) in the net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when eamed, and expenses are recognized at the time tha liability is incurred.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Govermnmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and are accounted for using the modified accruai basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when both measurable and avaiiable . Measurable means
knowing, or being capable of calculating or estimating the amount to be received, Available means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabiities [generally sixty
days). Also, under the modiified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures [Including capital cutlay} are
recorded in the period when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond
principal and interest and expenditures related to compensated absences, which are recorded when
due rather than when incured.

Major revenue sources susceplible fo accrual in the governmental funds include property taxes, sales
taxes, franchise fees, charges for services. and intergovernmental revenues. Revenue is accrued when it
is deemed avdilable except for intergovernmental revenues,

Grant revenues are reccgnized not just when available, but when the qualifying expendifures nave been
incurred, and all other grant requirements have been met.

The City also reports unavailable and uneamed revenues in its governmental funds. Unavailable revenues
arise when potential revenue does net meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition
in the current period. Unearned revenues arise when the Cily receives revenue resources before it has
legal claim to it, as when grant money is received prior to the incidence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent pericds, when revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the
resource, the revenue is recognized.
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Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate sei of seli-balancing accounts which constifute its
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of rescurces, revenues,
expenditures/expenses, and fund balances. The fund financidl statements present each major fund as @
separate column, while all nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in ¢ single column. Major funds
are colculated using specific methods outlined in GASB Statement No. 34, or City management may also
deem funds as major for presentation purposes.

At September 30, 2020, major govermnmental funds include the following:

Generai Fund

The Generdl Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account for all financial
resources of the general government, except those reguired to be accounted for in another fund. All
general tax revenues and other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some
other fund are acceunted for in this fund. General operating expendiiures, fixed charges and capital
imptrovement costs not paid throvgh other funds are paid from the General Fund.

Section 8 Fund
This special revenue fund accounts for grant and conlract revenue received from the federdl

government for providing housing assistance to low income families and for the adminisiration of the
program.

Street CiP Fund
This capital project fund accounts for the construction and renovation of thoroughfares and arterial
streets and reads financed through general obligation bond proceeds and other dedicated sources.

Grants Fund

This special revenue fund accounts for the various federai, state and local grant revenue received by the
City. All grants included in this fund are for specific projects with limited duration.

Debt Service Fund

The City's Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of
principal, interest and related costs on general leng-term debt paid primarily from taxes levied by the
City. The fund balance of the Debt Service Fund is restricted exclusively for debt service expenditures.

Epic 2 CiP Fund

This capital project fund accounts for the proceeds from sales tax revenue bonds, current
lending/borrowing arrangements, and other dedicated sources to be used in the consiruction of The
Epic.

At Septrember 30, 2020, major enterprise funds include the following:

Water/Wastewaier Fund

This fund accounts for water and wastewater system services provided for residents of the City, including
administration, operations, maintenance, debt service, billing and collection. The City purchased treated
water from surrounding cities, and water is pumped from City-owned wells. Although the City owns the
wastewater collection system, it has no treatment facilities. Wastewater treatment is provided by the
Trinity River Autherity, Contracts relating to purchased water and wastewater treatment are discussed in
Note 2M. All costs are financed through charges to ufility customers with rates reviewed regularly and
adjusted if necessary to ensure the integrity of the funds.
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(Unaudited)

The City reports thirty ene individual govemmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund's Balance Sheet and in the govemmental fund's Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the City's six major funds - General Fund, Section 8 Fund,
Streets CIP Fund, Grants Fund, Debt Service Fund, and the Epic 2 CIP Fund. Data for other nonmajor
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation, Individual fund data for each

of the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

Propriefary funds — The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds - enterprise funds and
internal service funds.

Enterprise funds are used fo report the same functions presented as business-type activities of the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and
wastewater system, solid waste sanitary landfill, storm water utility, municipal airport, and municipat golf
courses. Proprieiary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, onily in more detdail. The City has five enterprise funds of which two are major enterprise funds
- the Waler Wastewater Fund and the Solid Waste Fund. Dato from other nonmajor enterprise funds are
combined into asingle, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual

fund data for each of these non-major enterprise funds is provided in the form of combining statements
slsewhere in this report.

Internal service funds are an accouniing device used to accumutate and allocate costs internally among
the City's various functions. The City uses intemal service funds to account for vehicle and equipment
maintenance and the premiums, deductibles, and claims for dlf insurance programs (e.g. employee
health, workers compensation, general liability, etc.). Because these services benefit both governmental
and business-type functions, they have been dllocated to both activities in the government-wide
financial statements in propottion to services received. The City's two internal service funds are combined
intfe asingle, aggregated presentation in the propristary fund financial statements. Individual fund data
for the City's internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Notes to the financial statemenis — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes. this report

also presents certain required supplementary information conceming the City's progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor

enterprise funds, and interal service funds are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information.
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Management's Discussiocn and Analysis — Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020
{Unaudited)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Total assets of the City at September 30, 2020 were $1,362,784,154, deferred outflows of resources were
$24,443,572, total licbilities were $679,577,0592, and deferred inflows of resources were $23,210,648 resulting
in a net position of $684,440,01%,

The largest portion of the City's net position, $529,985,182 {77.4%). reflects its investment in capital assets
(land, buildings and improvements, infrastructure, vehicles, machinery, and equipment), less any related
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these assets to provide services to its citizens;
consequently these assets are not availabie for future spending. Although the City reportsifs capifal assets
net of related debt, the resources neaded to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Table 1 below is a summary of the City's net position at year end cempared to the prior year.

Table 1
Net Position
Governmental Business-type Toidl
Activities Activities Primcry Gov emment
273072019 OL30/2020 9130720019 243042020 213042019 9£30/2020

Cash ondinvestmenls $ 288,433,355 $ 259,942.938 $ 113133233 114953733 § 401.564,588 $ 374895671

Other assats 20,485,432 26,581,255 11,679,221 12,403,270 32,364,652 38,584 525
Copital assets, net 485,704,072 703895348 236.585,491 245,007,090 922289563 248,902,958
Total assets 994822859 290420041 361.397.945 372364073 1.356,220.804 1.362.784.154

Deferred outflows of

resources 3%,2254351 21,526,204 4,344,178 2309822 43.56%.62% 23,836,726
Current liakilities 34,644,637 36,937,593 12,188,798 13,475,678 46833,435 50,413,291
Long-term bonded debt 453318815 416,024,621 57.863,033 51,248,478 211,181,648 447,273,099
Cther noncurend ligbililies 166,810,368 142026,244 24,206,005 19,864,425 191.016.373 161870669

Tetal liobilities 454,773,820 £94,988.458 94.257.824 84,588,401 749.031,656 679,577 059

Deferred inflows of

resources 5,191,644 20,878,302 548,517 1,725,500 5740181 22,603,802
Net Pasltion
Net Investment in
capitdl assets 311,012,615 336,590,522 176,239,658 193,374,660 487.25%9.273 529,985,182
Resiflcted 58.89%.457 38,788,228 59.346.971 61,272,475 118,246,428 120,060,703
Unresiricled 41463774 701,455 35349141 334692479 32512215 34,354,134
Total net position $ 374082844 $ 394,080,205 $ 270935770 4 288359814 $ 445018.414 P 684,440,019

A poriion of the City's net pasition totaling $120,060,703, or 17.5%, represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is o
$34,394,134.

The City's netf position increased by $3%.421,403 from the prior fiscal yeor due to an increase in property
taxes, sales taxes, charges for services, and grant contributions. Overall water and wostewater rates
increased approximately 4%.
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Grand Prairie industrial Development Authorify

The Grand Prairie Industrial Development Authority (GPIDA) was created to issue fax-exempt industrial
revenue honds to assist in the City's economic development and to evaluate tax abatement
applications. The City exercises ne conirol over the GPIDA's management, budget or operations,

C. Implementation of New Accounting Standards Next Fiscal Year
The GASB pronouncements effective for fiscal year 2021 are listed as follows:

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, in January 2017. This statement establishes
standards of accounting and financial reporting for fiduciary activities, This standard will become
effective for the City in fiscat year 2021, The City has not vei determined the impact of this statement.

The GASB issued Statement No. 82, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Censtruction
Period. This Statement estabiishes objectives to enhance the relevance and comparability of information
about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period, and to simplify accounting for
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period, This standard becomes effective for the
City in fiscal year 2021. The City has not vet determined the impact of this statement.

D. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The two govemment-wide financial statements, the Statement of Net Posifion and the Statement of
Activities, report information on all activities of the City, including component units. Governmental
activities, which include those activities primarily supported by taxes or intergovernmental revenue, are
repcried seporately from business-type activities which generally rely on fees and charges for support.
Significant revenues generated from business-type activities include charges to customers for water and
wastewater services, golf course fees, airport user charges, solid waste collection services, and storm
water utility fees. As a general rule, the internal activity between governmental activities and business-
type activities is eliminated from the govermment-wide financict statements except that charges for
administrative overhead services provided by the governmental activities to the business-type activities
are included s revenues to the governmental activities and expenses 1o the business-type activities.

The Statement of Activities reports the change in the City's net position from October 1, 2019 to
September 30, 2020. This statement demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function of the govermment are offset by program revenues. Specificaly, the City has identified the
following functicns of government - support services, public safety services, recreation and leisure
services, development services, water and wastewater services, solid waste services, storm water services,
airport operations, and golf course operations. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function of City government. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, of privileges provided by a given function,
and 2} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital regquirements of
a parficular function. Taxes and other items not included among program revenues cre reported as
general revenues in the statement of activities.

Fund Financigai Statements

In addition to the government-wide financial statements, the City also reports separate financial
statements for major functions or activities of the government. These financial statements are organized
on the basis of funds with governmental resources cllocated to and accounted for based upon the
purposes for which they are spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled, Separate
statements are presented for governmental activities and proprietary Qctivities,
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Discretely Presented Component Units

Grend Prairie Sports Facilities Development Corporation

The Sports Corpordtion was incorporated on June 10, 1992, under the provisions of the Development
Corporation Act of 1979, as amended, Article 5190.6, Texas Revised Civil Statutes Annotated, as amended
[Act) by Resolution No. 2841 of the Grand Prairie City Council. The purpose of the Sports Corporation is 1o
promote economic development within the City in order to reduce unemploymeni and
underemployment, and to promote and encourage employment and the public welfare of, for, and on
behaif of the City by developing. implementing, providing and financing projects authorized under the
Act.

The Act provides that the City may levy a one-half cent sales and use tax for the benefit of the Sports
Corporation if the tax is authorized by a majority of the qualified voters in an eiection, On January 18,
1992, a majority of the voters approved a proposition to levy and collect an additional one-half cent sales
and use tax for the purpose of constructing a horse racetrack. The one-half cent sales and use tax
increase became effective Apiil 1, 1993 to cover the costs of the project or the principadl, interest and
other cosis relating to any bonds or obligations issued fo pay the costs of the project or to refund bonds
or obligations issued to pay the costs of the project. All bonds were redeemed on September 15, 2007.
The sales tax was discontinued on September 30, 2007.

The City continues to receive significant financial benefits from the Sports Corporation as excess eamings
of the Sports Cerporation dre paid 1o the City; and, if dissolved, all assets of the Sports Corporafion
become the City's property, Although the Sports Corporation is alegally separate enfity, the City has the
abliity to impose its will upon the Sports Corporation asits Board of Directors are all appointed by the City
Council, and four of the seven-member board are actual City Councilmembers. For this reason, the Sporfs
Corporation is presented as part of the City's reporting entity as a discretely presented component unit.
Discretely presented component units are presented in a separate column alongside the City's financial
information.

Grand Prairie Howusing Finance Corporation

The Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation (HFC) was created to issue fax-exempt revenue bonds to
supply mortgage financing for iow income home buyers and muiti-family development. While the entity
is legally, financially and administratively autonomous, the governing body of the City of Grand Praitie
may, ai its sole discretion, and af any time, amend HFC's Articies of Incomporation, and alter or change
its structure, programs or activities, or terminate or dissolve it. Additionaily, members of the Board of
Directors are appointed by and may be removed by the City Council. However, the City is not financiaily
obligated for any debt of the HFC. For these reasons, the HFC is presented as part of the City's reporting
entity as a discretely presented component unit,

The HFEC's financial information, for its calendar year ended December 31, 2018, is included in the City's
financial statements in a separate column alongside the City’s. Separate audited financial statements
may be obtained by wiiting Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation, Attn: Executive Director,
P. O. Box 532758, Grand Prairie, Texas 75053-2758.

Related Autonomous Entitles

Grand Praiiie Health Faciiities Development Avthority

The Grand Prairie Hedaith Facilities Development Authority (HFDA] was created fo issue fax-exempt
revenue bonds to finance medical facifities. While the HFDA's revenue bonds were defeased, the HFDA
continues to exist only to make decisions from time fo time regarding the defeased bonds. The City
exercises no control over the HFDA or its budget.
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The fiscal year 2020 compared to fiscal 2019 changes in the City's net position were as follows:

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
Governmenlal Business-type Total
Activities Aclivities Primary Government
F130/2009 943042020 FL3072N 7 943042020 3207 PFI0/2020
Revenuss:
Program rev enues:
Charges for services $ 51189057 43289739 100,691,263 $ 104,798,492 $ 151.880,320 $ 150.088.231
Operating grants and contributions 3 BE5.579 43,784,399 31,007 96,306 392.8946.585 63.880.703
Capilal grants ond contributions 8575572 417,050 15,541,642 10,069,185 24.117.214 §0.486.235
General revernues:
Property 1ax 106,378,573 116,020.990 - . 104,378,593 114,020,990
Sales tax 69,672,182 70,808,352 - . 49,672,182 70,808,392
COther tax 2231039 1,794,491 - - 2,231,009 1.794.491
Franchise fees 14,796,138 13.903.806 - - 14,724,138 13.903.806
Inv estmenl income 2776886 7,952,664 $5.360 25770 7842246 7.978.434
Total revenues 302,485,026 31797153} 116,329,272 116,989,753 418,814.298 434,961,284
Bpemes;
Suppor services 30.669.782 31,310,741 - - 30,669,782 31.310.741
Public safety services 109.747,831 113.728.877 - - 10%,767.831 113.728877
Raeraation and leisure sarvicas 35.232,643 32,949,455 - - 35,232,643 32.949,455
Development services 102,740,890 110,126,929 - - 102,740,890 130,126,929
Il grasl onlong-lerm debt 14,287,576 12,687,169 - - 14,987,576 12,689,169
W aier and wostewaier - - 74389255 73,211,370 74,389,255 73211.370
Solid waste - - 13,009,024 13.044,195 13,009.024 13,044,195
Municipal airpert - - 2,942,253 2,529,664 2962253 2.529 664
Municipal golf course - - 3458.5%2 3,452,349 3458592 3452349
Stormwater - - 2.647.816 2,497,132 2,647 816 2497132
Tolal expenses 293,398,722 300,805,171 26,466,942 94,734,710 382.865,664 395,539,881
Increases |decreases) innet position
belore transfers 9,084,304 17144340 19,862,330 22,255,043 28948434 39,421,402
Transfers 7.253.810 4,830,299 {7.253.810) {4.830.999) -
Capilal asset reassignments - - {108.599) - (108,5%2)
Change innel position 16,340,114 21.997.35% 12,499,921 17,424,044 28,840,035 39,421,403
Met posilion - beginning of year 357,742,732 374,082,846 258,435,847 270,935,770 616,178,581 645,018,614
Met posltion - end of year § 374,082,844 § 396,080,205 $ 270935770 $ 288359814 $ 445018414 $ 484,440,019

Governmental activiles — Governmental activities increased the City's net position by $21,997,359 in
comparison with beginning nef position, primarily due to an overall increase in property tax assessments,
when compared to fiscal year 2019 and additional federal funding received as part of the Coronavirus
Relief Fund. This funding was passed-through Dallas and Tarrant County to the City to offset costs

associated with effects of COVID-19 on the City. Net position of governmental operations accounts for
57.9% of total net position.

Business-type activities — Business-type activities increased the City's net position by $17.424,044 in
comparison with beginning net position. Overall operating revenues and expenses increased

proportionately. Net position for business-type activities represents 42.1% of total primary government net
position.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

Governmental funds - The focus of City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. In particular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At fiscal year-end 2020, the City's govermnmental funds (excluding internal service funds) reported
combined ending fund balances of $234,115,110, a decrease of $25,669,741 in comparison with the prior
year. The unassighed fund balance portion is 20.4% and is available for spending at the government's
discretion. The remainder is restricted for specific purposes and is not available for new spending. Specific
purposes include non-spendable inventories and prepaid items ($71,220); amounts restricted by statutes,
bond covenants or granting agencies ($107,921,586) either for debt service payments, grant-related use,
special taxing districts, or for capital projects. In addition, committed funds ($66,052,337) reqguire formal
action by City Council. Finally, funds may be assigned ($12,238,707) by City Manager with the City
Council's delegated authority. Figures 1 and 2 that follow show the distribution of governmental funds'
sources of revenues and expenditures including transfers, $363,095,135 and $388,990,079. respectively, for
fiscal year 2020.

Figure 1 Figure 2
Revenue Sources Expenditures
Governmental Funds Governmental Funds
= Property Taxes = Support Services
A— = Public Safety

Recreafion and
Leisure

= Developmeni
senvices

» Capital Oullay

» Franchise Fees

= Service, Fees, and
Fines

« Principal P

= Intergovemmenial rincipal Fayments

» Interest

Transfers/ Other

22% = Transfers O ut

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At fiscal year-end, unassigned fund balance of
the General Fund was $47,731,260, while total fund balance was $60,648,430. As a measure of the General
Fund’s liguidity, it may be useful fo compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 47.2% of total general fund operating
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 37.2% of that same amount. General Fund's fund
balance increased in the amount of $15,468,159 from the prior fiscal year largely due to $10.7M in CARES
funding received from the counties of Dallas and Tarrant.

Other major funds with significant changes in fund balance include Streets CIP, Grants, Debt Service and

Epic 2 CIP. The Streets CIP Fund decreased by $25,430,385 due to an overall increase in street construction
funded from bond proceeds issued for this purpose.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Introduction

The City of Grand Prairie (City) is one of the Mid-Cities in the Dallas-Fort Worth Metroplex, 12 miles west of
downtown Dallas, 18 miles east of downtown Fort Worth and six miles south of DFW International Airport,
The City was incorporated in 1909, and adopted the Council-Manager form of government in 1948.

The accounting and reporting policies of the City relating to the funds included in the accompanying
basic financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting principles for locall
governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants as published in Audits of State and
Local Governments.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

The City's basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations. The criteria for including
legally separate entities as component units within the City's reporting entity are set forth in Section 2100
of GASB's Cadification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. Based on this
criterion, the City reports the following component units as part of the financial reporting entity:

Blended Component Units

Grand Prairie Crime Control and Prevention District

The City of Grand Prairie Crime Control and Prevention District (CCPD) was created in May 2007
under the provisions of the Crime Control and Prevention Act and authority of Chapter 363, Texas Local
Government Code, as amended (Act) by Resolution No. 2007-02 of the Grand Prairie City Council. The
purpose of the CCPD is to provide crime control and crime prevention strategies, specific treatment and
prevention programs, and court and prosecution services including the cost of personnel, administration,

expansion, enhancement, and capital expenditures, and any other programs as authorized by
Chapter 363.

Under the authority of the Act, the voters of Grand Prairie approved a proposition to levy and collect an
addifional quarter-cent sales and use tax for the purpose of funding the CCPD which became effective
October 1, 2007. In 2012, citizens vofed to continue/renew the quarter-cent sales and use tax for this same
purpose.

The CCPD's goveming body is substantively the same as the governing body of the City as the seven
members of the CCPD's Board of Directors are all City council members. The City has operational
responsibility for the CCPD, and the CCPD provides all of its services to the City. If the District is dissolved,
its assets will become the City's property. For these reasons, the CCPD is reported as a blended
component unit of the City and is reported as a special revenue fund within the City's governmental
activities. This special revenue fund was established specifically to account for the accumulation and use
of the quarter-cent sales tax revenue collected for the CCPD.
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The Grants Fund increased by $5,549,445 due primarily to transfers into the Grants Fund o pay the City's
portion of federal and state funded projects.

The Debt Service Fund decreased by $1,245,534 due to payments toward principal and inferest.
The Epic 2 CIP Fund decreased by $2,348,769 due to engineering, design, and construction costs.

The Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds had a collective decrease in fund balance of $22,105,861 due to
significant projects taking place during the fiscal year.

Proprietary funds - The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The net position of the City's enterprise funds and internal service funds were $285,216,940 and $18,847,294
respectively, at September 30, 2020. The enterprise funds' net investment in capital assets represented
67.8% of total enterprise fund's net position. The internal service funds’ net investment in capital assets
represented 10.2% of total internal service funds' net position. The enterprise funds' unrestricted net
position was 10.8% of their total net position, and internal service funds' unrestricted net position was 89.8%
of their total funds' net position. The City's enterprise funds and the internal service funds reported income
before contributions and transfers of $11,974,394 and $946,328, respectively. Other factors concerning the
finances of the proprietary funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the government-wide
financial statements and business-type activities. The following Figures 3 and 4 show the proprietary funds'
revenues of $137,641,158 and expenses of $124,206,503 (excluding non-operating revenues and
expenses, and contributions and transfers) by activity.

Figure 3 Figure 4
Revenues by Activity Expenses by Acfivity
Proprietary Funds Proprietary Funds
= Water and = Waoter ond
Waslewal er Wastewaler
» Solid Wesle = Solid Waste
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= Other Enferprise Funcls

Funds
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= Internal Service niernal Service Funds

Funds
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Manageiment’s Discussion and Analysis — Continued
For the Fiscal Yeor Ended September 30, 2020
{Unaudifed)

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Actual Generdl Fund revenues were $12,397,836, or 8.4%, higher than final budgeted revenues for fiscal
year 2020, Property taxes, sales taxes, hotel/motel faxes. and franchise fees were 80.9% of General Fund
budgeted revenues. Actual General Fund expenditures were $6,285,345, or 4.7%, lower than final
budgeted expenditures for fiscal year 2020. Budgeted excess of revenues over expenditures before other
financing sources and uses was $12,431,754 compared fo actual of $31.114.935, resulting in o net positive
budget variance of $18.683.181. The City traditionally budgets revenue conservatively and this practice
frequently results in positive budgetary variances.

Net change in fund balonces of the General Fund, including other financing sources and uses such as
fransfers, resulted in a net positive budget variance of $22,504,219,

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The City's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for its
governmental and business-type activities ot fiscal year-end amounted to $948,902,258. This investment
includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings {includes infrastructure), machinery and

equipment, and construction in progress. The City's capital assets increased from prior year by
$24,613,395.

Mdcjor capital projects occurring during the fiscal year included the following:

. Continued ambulance and engine replacement

. Continued construction of Fire Station #4 and Fire Station #3 upgrades
Continued street rehabilitation

Continued street assessment implermentation

Continued sidewalk construction

Continved improvements to water distribution and sewer system
wildlife Parkway Phase Il construction

L IR . I N

The Cify's capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, at fiscal year-end was as follows:

Table 3
Capital Assels
Governmental Business-type Total
Activilies Activitios Prirnary Gov ernment
2130/2019 913042020 2130420019 9430/2020 9130/2019 2J30/2020
Land $ 44708853 § 47157907 3 4831334 § 5105222 $ 51540187 § 52283129
Consiruction in progress 148,140,079 180,158,846 28548888 34,107,743 194,788.947 214,266,589
Cepreciable capilal assels 991,494,881 1.032.253.541 432,332 063 449 698,084 1.423.835944 1,481,95) 627
Accumulated depreciation [520,641,741) {555.674.426) {229,233.794) (243,203,961} {74% 875.535) {799.578.387)
Total capltal assets, net 3 485704072  § 703895868  $ 236585471  $ 245007090 5 922289563 G 748902958

Additional information regarding capital assets can be found starting on page 54 in Note 2.D.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Long-term debt — At September 30, 2020, the City had the following long-term liabilifies:

Table 4
Long-Term Debt
Governmental Business-lype Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
9/30/2019 9/30/2020 9/30/2019 9/30/2020 9/30/2019 9/30/2020

Bonded debt $ 453,318,815 $ 416,024,420 § 57863033 $ 51,248,478 $ 511,181,848 § 447,273,098
Compensated absences 18,363,930 21,064,457 472,012 469,411 18,835942 21,533,868
Other post employment benefits 55,519,084 40,687,581 5,885,150 6,275,983 61,404,234 66,963,564
Net pension liability 91,550,173 59.113.940 2.616,144 4,470,085 101,166,317 63,584,025
Pollution liability 77,037 20,900 - - 77,037 20,900
Closure and post closure liability - - 8,232,699 8,648,946 8,232,679 8,648,946
Other liabilities 1,300,144 1,139,367 o - 1,300,144 1,139,367

Total long-term debt $ 620,129,183 $ 558,050,865 $ 82069,038 $ 71,112203 % 702,198,221 $ 629,163,768
Long-term debt to net

position percentage 166% 141% 30% 25% 109% 92%

Of the total bonded debt, $416,024,620 or 892.0%, is backed by the full faith and credit of the City with a
property tax pledge.

In November 2019, the City issued $19,475,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2019.
$21,545,000 was used to advance refund the outstanding Series 2011 and Series 2011A Combination Tax
and Revenue Cerfificates of Obligation bonds; and the Series 2011 and Series 2011 A General Obligation
Refunding and Improvement bonds, leaving no remaining outstanding principal as of September 30,
2020.

In April 2020, the City issued $4,290,000 in Water and Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2020. $5,125,000 was used to advance refund the outstanding Series 2011A Water and Wastewater
System Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds leaving no remaining outstanding principal as of
September 30, 2020.

During this fiscal year, the City retfired principal on outstanding bonded debt fotaling $40,180,000. The
City's total interest expense for all bonded debt was $17,227,808.

Additional information is detailed in the Note 2.H to the Basic Financial Statements starting on page 60.

The City's bond ratings by Fitch and Standard & Poor's are currently as follows:

Standard &
Fitch Poor's
General obligation bonds AA+ AAA
Sales tax revenue bonds (taxable) AA+ A+
Sales tax revenue bonds (fax-exempt) AA+ AA-
Water and wastewater revenue bonds AAA AAA
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

The City's elected and appeointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2020
budget including fax rates and fees that will be charged for business-type activities. One of the biggest
factors continued 1o be the national economy and uncertfainty caused by the pandemic. Building and
development growth rates continue to increase overdil; and indicate healthy dactivities in the residential
sector and commercial type permitting. Although the City is largely built out and mature, there are stil
several areas available, mainly in the south sector with higher end residential areas along Joe Pootl Lake,
in addition, there is a leveling of multi-family developments, but a major increase in retail construction, in
large part due to toltroad 161 and emerging destination facilities, such as Epic and Epic Waters.

The City population as of September 2020 was 195,200 which is a 1.82% increase over prior year.
Residential expansions continue in the south and new manufactuing and distribution companies
continue to add growth to the City's economy. Even more growth is expected as a result of continued
development and mobility through the City. Readway improvements, like widening of Camp Wisdom,
Great Southwest Parkway and 1-30 frontage roads from SH 161 to McArthur continue to make additional
demands on the City for increased services. Our diverse economy, the overall DFW metroplex ecenomy
and major fransportation access all serve to create a synergy.

The following indicators were taken into account when adopting the budget for fiscal year 2021
«  4.6% increase in assessed property values;
» A 3.79% decrease in budgeted sales fax collections from FY2020 projected collections fo
anficipate possible impacts of the pandemic. There was no change in the City's sales tax rate.
» The City's very strong financial position, favorable bond ratings, and continued low interest rates.

These indicators resulted in an increase in budgeted property tax revenues of $3,207.012 for the General
Fund and $978,931 for the General Obligation Debt Service Fund. The City maintained the same property
tax rate of $0.669998 per $100 valuation for fiscal year 2021,

Budgeted sales tax revenues across all funds were decrecsed by $4,363,487, or [6.11)% over prior fiscal
year collections with no change in the sales tax rate.

The City's total approved operating appropriations for fiscal year 2021 is $406,504,723, an increase of
1.88% as compared to prior fiscal year projected expenditures. General Fund approved appropiiations
for fiscal year 2021 is $148.046,434, an increase of 1% over fiscal year 2020. Personnel services attributes to
74% of the total operating budget. This increase follows suit with additional staffing {full-time and part-
lime} to support generai administration public safefy overtime, civil service step progrom and other
market adjustments. The increases were offset by removing budget for frozen positicns, decreases in
Employee and Retiree insurance contributions and lower fuel rates. Other changes in total budgeted
operating appropriations include decreases in Parks Venue ($2.1M), Capital Lending Reserves {$3.8M)
and Internal Services Funds ($2.3M);

Fiscal year 2021 budgeted approepriations for the General Obligation Debt Service Fund decreased by
$1.389.,922, or (3.9%) from fiscal year 2020.

City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020
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[9.158,004) {3.171.851] 12,732,058} (150462718} 36878
- - [308.27%) {308,277} {23.884.341)
[4,747.158) {1,230.805) 142.801) {6,044,764} -
20,785,087 3.641,264 &041,737 0672083 2ATET
1.015.530 - [l W x] 2287143 {83071)
{1.311,808) 1298.354) 14,708,000} 17.318,162) 1230.219)
191.723 - - 191,733 -
[704.545) [298,354) [3.636, 367} |4.463% 268 |313.290}
4,290,000 4,290,000 -
1.837 577 - - 1,837 577 -
=817 79300 BOs,410 1,005,827 4374
{13.759.577} 12,387,429} {2,422,297) {18.569.703) [542,775)
10,380,000} - 160,000 110,520.000}) -
|1.442.083} - 139.710) (1,481,793} -
| 17,314,666} {2.307.32%) |1 815,897 123.438,092) {535,401)
4,399,732 1,599,994 £,099,728 -
- . - - 14.000.000}
25,770 257#0 -
4,425,502 1,69%.9%¢ £,125,498 14,000, 000)
5,395,376 2735377 589,473 8,720,228 12.374.59]
18,213,332 4,394 B44 1,432,853 24343030 5911 490
3 230,710 3 FA30.223 ¥ 2,273,334 3 Jr0463.259 + 3.536.499
4 7. T42457 11 1437178 3 3,592,864 ¥ 12492701 % F41,254
14,426053 V675,747 2100033 168,212,833 255432
{300,503} [72.693] 24,440 134%.154) -
1.140053 123,101 PRITE 1,342,432
- . 45,130 43,130 -
13,765 30,440 134,403 12,367
{1.744,018) - 33,400 {1.720.416) {921}
652,992 250,244 64,577 P67 813 {301,87%)
117.575) - - 117.575) -
68,722 431,423 4,124 304,26% 2,133,495
272280 |824) 271,384 .
- - 11122 [z -
13972 [314) 114,25%) 12.401) .79
89,412 55,438 51,944 194,524 10278
{1.456,325) 40,736 7,384 [1.406,003) [57%.277)
b 20582 087 % .64 1,264 % 6,041,737 % 30.672,088 3 2475700
] & 036,226 $ b 2,175,382 $ 8,231,608 3
} 20733604 b 780,223 ;1 2222376 3 30,106,353 $ 3535499
2954904 - - 2.556.904 -
% 23710710 3 7,130,223 $ 2.22232¢ } 33,063,259 ) 3,536,497

The Nates te the Basic Financial Statements are anintegral part of this statement.,
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

And Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

OPERATING REVEMUES
W atersales
W astewaler services
W ater and wastewater fees
W astewater sircharges
Solidwasie fees
Charges for services
Intergovernment ol rev ehue
Insurance premiums
Miscellane ous

Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries ond benefils
Supplies and miscellaneous purchases
Furchosed services
Insurance costs
Water purchases
W astewater freatmenl
Genergl and administralive cosls
Franchise fees
Miscellaneous
Deprecialion

Tolal cperating expenses

Operaling income

NONMOPERATIMG REVEMUIES { EXPEMSES)
Inv&stment income
Goin {loss) on propetfy disposition
Irderest supanie

Total nonoperating rev enues {expenses)

Income before conlilbulions and transiers

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital conlribulions-impaci fees
Capilal contributions
Trenslers in - copilal asseds
Tronsters out - capll ol assets
Transfers in
Transfers oul

Tod ol contributions and iransiers

Change innet position
et pasition- beginning of year
Net position - end of yeor

Reconcliiglion te government-wide Statement of Activiies:

Tolal chonge Innet position

Adjustimant s to refiect ihe comsolldalion of internal service fund aclivities reloted to Enterprise Funds
Change in net position of business-type aclivities

Business-Type Achvifies - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Monmajor Activities
Water Solid Enterprise Interrnal
Wastewaler Watle Funds Total Service Funcds
$ 47152407 % - 5 - 47152407 %

29.819,235 - 29819234 -

2,411,560 - - 2,411,560
864 098 - - 864008
- 14038.88% - 14.038.889 -
- - 11,267 3%1 11,267,371 5.94% 825
- 96,306 96,304 -
- - - B 24,781,182
329 446 205,508 708,365 1.243.21% 16,742

80,574,747 14,244 297 12072062 106,893,204 30,747,952
7 804,048 3268113 2FFFAF 13,849,308 1,532,939
1174070 463,237 1,090,049 2729356 2293222
3,361.752 6,034,468 1808705 13,206,923 1.383,787

- - - - 23,886,341

17.194.531 - 17.194,531 -

17 775836 - - 17 778834 -
4,305,622 432,849 143801 4,882,072 -
3,085,068 384374 308279 JFIRA2 -
1,682,090 B44,531 240202 2,764,823 454,277

14,426,053 1475747 2111033 18,212.833 255 432

72814090 13,107,217 8479176 ¥4,400.505 29,805,978
7762657 1,137,178 3592844 V24PN @41,954

25770 - - 25,770 -
28,963 52517 5110 97.580 4374
[601.315) - {38,760} {64007 5) -
(546,562} 42517 (32,6500 {514,715) 4374
7216075 1,199,695 3540214 11,975,986 ?46,328
1.837.577 - - 1837 877 -
6034226 - 2195382 8,231,408 -
122,403 - 122,403 -
- {122,405) . [ 122,405} 182,071)
1.015530 - 1.271.633 24871463 -

(1.911.808) 1298,354] 14,908,000} {7.118.162) (230.219)
7.0%9,930 [420.7 5%} 1,440,983} 5,238,186 {313,290}

14,214,005 778936 2119.221 17,214,172 $33038

211 853574 21,570,486 34792878 268,216,940 18,214.256
b 224,169.581 $ 27,349,422 § 34,912,109 285431112 % 18847294

The Notes to the Bosic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis - Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020
(Unaudited)

The City's approved appropriations for capital projects in fiscal year 2021 totals $50,053,324. Planned
capital projects include:

. $12,733,680 in street and signal projects

. $17.118,500 in water and wastewciter requests

. $5,229,500 in storm drainage projects

. $3.452,388 in fire equipment and stations’ relocations
. $5,593,01¢ in Municipal Facilities

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an
interest in the government's finances. Quesiions concering any of the information provided in this report
or requests for additionat financial information should be addressed to the City Controlier, City of Grand
Prairie, Texas, 326 W. Main Street, P.O. Box 534045, Grand Prairie, Texas, 75053-4045.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2020

Business-Type Actlivities - Enterprise Funds Governmenial
Monmajor Activiles
Waler Solid Enlerprise Internal
Wastewaler Wasle Funds Total Service Funds
ASSETS
Current osseis:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 20,753,804 3 7,130,223 $ 2,022324 L3 30,106,353 3 3,534,499

Investments 3,411,148 11,924,534 1,870,363 17,406,047 21,000,000

Accounts receivable, net 5855325 583.809 676,989 7116123 991
Inventories and supplies 527,006 - 67,423 594,429 87874
Prepaids 1,764,016 - - 1764016 444083
Restricied assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,956,906 = - 2,756,906 -
Investments £4,408,971 - 75456 44,484,427 -
Tolal current assels 99.877.174 19,638,568 4,912,557 124,428,301 25,069 449

Moncwrent asseds:
Copital ossets:

Land 2,597,138 1.748.378 759707 5105223 737 584
Bulldings 2,673,677 1,996,417 15,238,893 19,708,987 1,885,846
Equipment 14,529,471 11,124,331 2,451,986 28,107,788 2370415
D B . P ] H I Infrastructure 343,839,098 12,092,660 45,749,555 401,681,313 2
ream ’ 6 a l’ arc Construction in progress 30.907.973 1,240959 1,958,807 34,107,739 >
Less: accumulofed depreciation (200,549,272) [13,137,142) [30,217,524| (243,203.940) [3.079979]
Tolal noncurrent assets 193,998,085 15,047,583 35,941,422 245,007,090 1213848
Tolal assets 293,875,261 34,706,151 40,853,979 369,435,391 26,283317
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Debl refundings 804,849 - - B804 649 -
Related to OPER 163,148 89,473 B3,853 336,474 23,031
Related to TMRS pension 530,360 330,026 308,113 1.168499 40,968
Total deferred outflows of resources 1,498,357 419,499 371,966 2309822 83,999
LIABILITIES
THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
Accounts payable 4,652,627 748,489 313382 5714498 626023
Relainage payable 103,828 - - 103828 -
Accredinterest 311079 - 4,489 315588 -
Accued licbilities £44,480 257 441 131,201 1,033,122 4415760
Compensated absences 284,658 B6,418 3218 464,254 A7 428
Unearned revenue 905,606 - 124,555 1,030,161 -
Curren! portion of long-tefm debt 5,120,000 - 170,000 5,290,000 -
Current licbilifies payable from resiricted assels:
Customer deposits 5,203,045 - 75.456 5,278,501 -
Total current liahilities 17.225343 1,092,348 912,301 19,229992 7082211
MNoncurrent iabilities:
Compensated absences =~ - 5117 a7 -
Other postermployment benefits 3,711,568 1,312,574 1,251.84) 6275983 780,473
Closure and postclosure liobility - 8,648,944 - 84648746 -
Mel pension liability 2028888 1,262,512 1,178,685 4470085 233,230
Long-larm debi 45,403,478 - 555,000 45,958,478 -
Tolal noncurent liabililies 51,143,934 11,224,032 2990,643 65,358,609 1,013,703
Total liabilities 6B,369.277 12,314,380 3,502,944 B4,588,601 8102914

DEFERRED |NFLOWS OF RESQURCES

Reloted to COPER 243718 92.060 87.526 423304 49,146
Relofed to TMRS pension 571,042 347,788 343 346 1,302,196 67 5742
Tolol deferred inflows of resources 834,760 459,848 430,892 1,725,500 117,108

NET POSITION
Met investment in copital assets 143,110,655 15,047,583 35216422 193,394,640 1.913.848
Restricted for:

Debl service 5,596,271 - - 5596271 -

Capitol projects 55,676,204 - - 55476204 -
Unrestricted 21,786,451 7,281,839 1,695,687 0763977 16,933,426
Tolal net posifion $  224,14%581 % 22,349,422 % 38912109 3§ 285431112 3 18,847,294
Recenciliafion fo government-wide Statement of Net Position:
Adjustments o reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related o Enterprise Funds 2928702

Met position of business-iype aclivities $ 288357814

The Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements are an infearal part of this statement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of the
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Metchenge in fund balances - tetal governmental funds b [25.662.761}
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the siatement of activities are
differeni because;

Governmental funds report capital outlay as  expenditures. However, in the
government-wide slatement of activities, the cost of those assets is caopitdlized and
dlocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense, This is the
amaounl of capital assets recordedin the curreni period. 61,990,328

Depreciation on capital assets is reparted in 1he government-wide stalement ol
aclivities but does not require the use of current financlal resources. Therelore,
depreciation is not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds [except for
internal service fund depreciation of $255,432). {43,625,326)

Governmenlidl funds do not report capiial contributions, 224,800

The net effect of varous fransactions involving capital assets [ie., disposals, sales,
ond reassignments) are not report ed inthe govermmental funds. 1635,351}

The issuance of long-term debt [i.e., bonds) provides current financial resources to the
governmental funds, while repayment of the principal on long-term dett consumes
the curreni linancial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however,
has any effect on net position, Also, governmental Tunds report the effect of
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas the amounts
are deferred and agmorlized in the statement of activities. This amount s the net
effect of 1hese differences in the freatment of long-lerm dekt and rejateditems.

Basic Financial Statements

Refunding bonds issued (19,475,000}
Payments to bond escrow agents 21,784,352
Bond principal retirement 34,785,000
Bond premium issued (2.734,530)
Armortization of bond premiums/discounts 3173723
Amortization of 1ass on refundings {304,722) 37.428.825

Some expense accruals reporied inthe stalement of octivities do not require the use
of curent finoncial resources and, 1herefore, are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds.

Accruedinterest 331.794

Compensated absences {2,701,706)

Pollution renediation cbligation 56,137

Postemployment beneht obligation {5.148.108)

Persion licbility 31,357 768

Deferred persion and OPEB contributions, and inv estment

and actuarial experience {33.030,743)

Other licbilities 160,777 (8,974,099)
Certain revenues in lhe slatement of activities that do not provide current finoncial
resources are nel reported as revenues inthe funds, ' 884,777

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activilies, such as insurance and fleet maintenance, 1o indivicual funds. The net
operaling loss of the inlernal service funds is reporfed with governmental activities
{net of ihe amount cllocated 1o business-1ype activities of $209.872). 423,164

Change in net position of gavernmental acfivifles ¥ 21,997.35%

The Noles to ihe Basic Financial Statements are on integral part of 1his statement.
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Nonmajor Total
Debt Epic 2 Governmental Governmental
Grants Service CIP Funds Funds

- 32,768,034 $ - $ 12671070 % 115,295,488

- - - 35,709,436 70,647,615

- - - 1,538,585 1,794,491

- - - - 13,903,806

1,234 - - 12,061,412 23,507,913

5 5 " 219,457 3,487,467

E - 480,715 6,239,054

13,834,330 - - 457,946 63,519,235
- - - - 5,194,377

- - - 3,350,467 3,684,522

783 - 109,264 2.011 7,952,664
136,675 = - 360,517 554,866

- - - 513,348 2,140,453
13,973,022 32,768,034 109,264 67,371,964 317,921,953
- - - 3,603,086 246,386,107
3,886,801 - - 7,078,143 99,283,284
172,569 - 103,474 22,027,702 25,106,602
12,817,572 - - 10,399,127 86,609,926
532,787 - 5,854,559 43,124,518 61,990,328

- 23,255,000 - 11,530,000 34,785,000

- 10,786,624 - 4,903,501 15,890,125
17,409,729 34,241,624 5,958,033 102,666,077 350,051,372
(3,436,707} (1,473,590) [5.848,769) (35.294,113) (32.129.419)
9,043,471 20,833 3,500,000 30,549,616 43,999,920
(57.319) (17,955) - [15,375,502) (38,938,702)

- 2,734,530 - - 2,734,530

- 12,475,000 - - 19,475,000
- (21,984,352) - - (21,984,352)

- . - 46,671 1,173,262
8,986,152 228,056 3,500,000 15,220,785 6,459,658
5,549,445 (1,245,534) (2,348,769) (20,073,328) (25.669,741)

1,715,582 3,734,760 40,042,720 127,130,748 259,784,871
7,265,027 2489226 % 37,693,951 $ 107057620 3 234115110
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Statement of Net Position
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of September 30, 2020
Governmental Funds 1o the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 Grand Prairie Grand Praiie
Primary Govermnmeni Sperts Howsing
Govermmanal Business-Type Facilities Finence
Achivifies Aclivifies Telal Bevelopment Corporatien
ASETS
Streets Cath and cash aquivalent s $ 101510207 $ 20104353 $ 130815540 H 9N15.357 s 576,342
General seciion 8 clf investments 3051.540 17,406,047 20,457,587 2023379 -
Receivables, nel 21.91389% 7116123 29,030,022 1,053,454 -
REVENUES Inlergovearmmenl ol rec v aoles 6392879 - 6.9¥2.87% - -
Property taxes $ 69856384 % - 3 - Invenlcries and supplies 123,752 594,409 718,181 . -
Sales joxes 34,938,179 . . Frepaids A79.427 1.764.014 2243443 - 17674
Restricled ossets:
Other taxes 255,906 . . ) Coshand cash equivalents 12099.512 2956908 15,066,418 - 1,457,661
Franchise fees 13,903.804 - - I astrments 143,281 679 64,484,427 207,766,106 -
Charges for goods and services 4,978,448 6,466,819 - Infernal Bolonces 2928702} 2928702 - - -
Loose paymenls recsivoble - - - 8,701,641 -
Licenses and permits 2.981.59¢ 284,411 - Bstimated unguarant eed residual volue - - - 27,420,541 -
Fimes and forfeilures 5,758,341 - - _ Capital assets;
Intergov ernmenta 11,918,632 37.408,327 ) Nondepreciable 397314753 19212942 246529715 - 1812851
Deprecioble, nef A7ESTHANE 205,794,126 682,373,243 - 10.799.672
General and administrative 5194377 - -
Rends and rovallies 334,055 - - Total gssels 70,420,061 IPLI64073 1.362.784,154 48.314.292 14,484,201
Investrment income 7.833.606 - - DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Contributions 57.674 - _ Dafared chorge onrelundings 2,501,041 804,849 3,303,820 - -
Retated 1o OPEE 3.573235 336,474 3.909.70% . .
Other 1,533,059 78,046 16,000 Related lo TMRS pension 15452628 1,168,499 16,621,127 - .
Total revenues 159.544.064 44,139.603 16,000 Tl defemed ouiflows of resources 215256904 2309822 23.834,724 - -
UARIITIES
EXPENDITURES Acrounts payable 16,641,643 5.714,498 22,356,141 19,386 160.451
Current ope rations: Relcinage payable 1,103.253 103,828 1,207,081 - -
i Acoiued ligiities 13,640,802 1,033,122 14,673,924 . 247,500
Suppor services 22783020 N N Unearnedrevenus 2988040 1.030.161 4018171 - -
Public safety services 88.218.340 - - Cusrent liobilities payable: from restricted assels:

. . . Accryed interest 2531 885 315588 2847 473 - -
Recreation and leisure services 2.802.857 - ) Cuslorer deposts 32000 5.278,501 5310501 - 9277
Development services and other 13,263,283 41,638,764 8,491,180 Mancurend liabilities:

. Due wilkin one yaar:
Copilal oullay 1:261.630 80.055 11136777 Compemsated absences 2,005,253 464294 9,469,547 . ;
Debi service: Ewlronmentol remediction abligation 20500 - 20,900 . -
Brincipal retirement - - - Ofher linbiiilies 160776 - 160,776 - -
Current potlion of leng-1erm debt 34,875,000 5,250,000 AD 165000 - 228148
Inlerest ancl olher charges - - - Due in more ihon one yeo:
Compensated obsances 12,059,204 snz 12,064,221 - -
Total expenditures 128.429.13) 41,718.819 19,627,959 Olher posternpioymerl benefils $0.687.58% 6,27 5,983 65,962,564 - -
ExCess {daficiency] of revenues Qlosure ond posiclosure Fabikfy - 8,445,945 8,643,944 - -
Nt pansion liobilily 50,113940 4.470.085 63,584,025 - -
over [under) expenditures 31,114,935 2,420,784 (19.611,95%) Ofher labillies 978591 . 978,591 . -
{engd erm debt 381,149,620 45,958,478 527,108,098 . 14,648,522
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES {USES) o
. Tet o liobilities 594,988,450 54,588,601 679,577,069 19.386 15,497.358
Transfers In ) X 286,000 RED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
DEFER
Transfers out (16,762,667} {20,833) {6.704,426) Refoled to OFES 3,657 592 423,304 4080896 - -
Premium on bonds issued - - - Refaled 10 TMRS pension 17290710 1302194 18.522.906 - -
Refunding bonds issved - - - Totat deferned oulflows of resources 20,878,302 1,725,500 22.503.802 - -
Fayments to bond escrow agenis - - - NET POSITION
Proceeds from sale of assets 1,115.891 10,700 . Nel invesiment in copilal osets 336,590,522 195,25 4,640 529 985,182 - {1.349.049]
Reshilclied for:
Total other financing sources |uses) {15.644.774) 110,133} {5.818,426) Debd service £77.354 £.594,271 6,273,625 - -
Copital projscts 2574708 55,675,204 58.250,912 . -
Net change in fund balances ' 15,468,159 2410651 {25,430,385) Support Servlc es 3.183.285 - 3,182,285 - -
PUBiC saiely 12791158 - 12.791.188 - -
Fund balances - beginning of year 45,180,271 772,634 41,207,956 Recreation and feisure 11,654,424 - 11.656.424 - -
Developmenl services 20157218 - 20.157.215 - -
Fund balances - end of year % 60,648,430 % 3183285 % 15777.571 Other specilic puposes 7748054 - 7.748,054 - -
Focility ease - - - A7 Dae 952 -
Replacamenl reserve - - - - 149 787
Urveslricted 701 455 33,492,479 34.994.134 11.225.054 V84045
Total netposliion $ 394080205 §  288.359.814 $ 684440019 b 48295006 $ (10307
The Notes to the Basic Financial Staternenis are an integral part of this siatemeant. The Moles to the Basic Financial Statements are anintegral part of this statement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Program Revenues

Operafing Capital
Charges Grants and Granfs and
Functions/Activity Expenses for Services Confributions Confributions
Primary government.
Governmental activities:
Support services $ 31,310,741 % 6,872,544 % 195474 % <
Public safety services 113,728,877 12,049,004 23,757,161 -
Recreation and leisure services 32,949,455 9,275,408 507.507 -
Development services and other 110,126,929 15,092,783 39,324,257 417,050
Interest on long-term debt 12,689,169 - - -
Total governmental activities 300,805,171 43,289,739 63,784,399 417,050
Business-type activities:
W ater and wastewaler 73,211,370 80,576,747 - 7,873,803
Solidwaste 13,044,195 14,245,289 =+ -
Municipal girport 2,529,664 1,906,648 96,306 -
Municipal golf course 3,452,349 2,386,574 - -
Starmwater 2,497,132 7,682,534 - 2,195,382
Total business-type aclivities 94,734,710 106,798,492 94,304 10,069,185
Total primary government $ 395539881 $ 150,088,231 $ 43,880,705 % 10,486,235
Component units:
Grand Prairie Sports Facilities Development $ 4,540,434 % 985,025 % - $ 521,941
Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation 6,207 049 5,987.835 - =
Total component units 5 10,747,483 % 6,972,860 $ - $ 521,941

General revenues:
Taxes
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Hotel/motel and other taxes
Franchise fees (and those based on gross receipts)
Investment income
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position - bedginning of year
Net position - end of year

The Notes 1o the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this staternent.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2020

Todal fund balance - totnl governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmenial activities in the sialeman of net position are different
becouse:

Cupital assets usedin governmental activities are nol financial resources, and therefors,
are not raporledin the funds {excludinginternal service funds' capital assels of $1,513,848),

Certainravenues ore not available to pay for current-period sxpenditures: therelore, these
ravenues are deferred inthe funds.

Cerloin assefs and liabilities do not provide or require the use of current financial resources;
therefore, these assets and tiabililies are rot reportedin Ihe gov ernment al funds.

Accrued interest anlong-ierm debt

Unomortized loss of bond refundings

Deferred pension and OPES conlribulions, and investment and actuarial experience
{excluding Intermnal service fund totals of $33.109).

Internal service funds are used by management to charge cost of cerlain actlivities, such os
smployee hedlth insurance, risk management insurance. and fleel services, to individual
funds. The assets and liabililies of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the government-wide stialement of nel positlon [net of amount allocated ta
busingss-type activities of $2,928.702).

Moncurrent lighilities are not cue and payable inthe current period: therefore, they are not
reported in the governmenl al fund balance sheet. These noncurrend liobilities are os
follows:

Long-tenm det)

Urnarnorlized bond premivmydiscount, nel

Compensaled absences {excluding infernal service fund totals of $47,428)

Cther post employment berefits {excluding internal service tund 1o1als of $760,473)

Net pension liability {excluding internal service fund totals of $233,230)

Environmen! of remediation obligalion

Cther liakilities

Net position of gevemmental activilies

The: Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents are aninlegral part of this staterment,
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{2.531.885)
2,501,04)

[1.819,334)

(389.935.000)
(26,089,620}
(21017029
(59,907,109
{58.680.710]

120.900)
{1,139,367)

$ 2840115110

701,982,000

2904416

{1.850,178)

15918552

[556.989,735)

Net{Expense) Revenue and

3 3%6.080,205
— —

Changes in Net Posifion Grand Prairie Grand Prairie
Primary Government Sporks Housing
Governmental Business.Type Faciliies finance
Actlivities Acfivilies Total Davalopment Corporation
3 (24242723 % - $ (24242723) % - h) -
{77,922712} - {77.922.712) - -
{23,166.540) - {23.166,540) - -
[55,292,839) - {55.292,839} - -
[12,689.149} - {12.489.169}) - -
{193.313983) - 193,313,983} - -
- 15,239,130 15,239,180 - -
- 1,201,794 1,201,794 - -
- {526,710} {526.710) - -
- [1,065,775) {1.065,775) - -
- 7,380,784 7.380.784 - -
- 22,229,273 22229273 - -
[1%3.313,983) 22229213 (171,084,710} - -
(3.033.448) -
- (219.214}
{3.033,468) (219,214}
114,020,990 - 114,020,990 - -
70,808,392 - 70,808,392 - -
1,794,491 - 1,794,491 - -
13,903,806 - 13,903.804 - -
7.952,644 25,770 7.378.434 132971 409
4,830,799 [4.830.299) - - -
215,311,342 {4,805,22%) 210,506,113 132,971 4019
21.997.359 17,424,044 39,421,403 12.900.477| [215,195)
374,082,844 270,935,770 645018616 51,195,503 [798.002)
$ 394080205 § 288359814 G 6B4.440.019 § 48295006 % {1.013.197)
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City of Grand Prairle, Texas
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2020

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Property tax receivable, net
Sdles taxreceivable
Franchise fees receivable
Other receivables, nef
Infergovemmental receivables
Due from ot her funds
Inventory
Prepaids

Total assets

LIABLLITIES
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Accruad liabilities
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Unearmedravenug

Totalliabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue

Total deferredinflows of resources
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Commitied
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Tolal liabilities, defemred infiows of
resources and fund bolanceas

Sheels
General Section 8 CIP
$ 5,386,202 % 2819363 3,242,696
53,209,057 333,109 15,360,381
1,830,275 - -
6,301,947 - -
2,393,307 -
3,141,023 431 -
1,335,126 - -
35,344 - -
73,633,288 3,352,203 18,603,077
3,734,460 72528 2,544,208
- - 281,298
6,137,750 26,690 -
356,283 -
571,962 - _
10,800,455 169,618 2,825,506
2,184,403 - -
2,184,403 - -
35344 - -
543119 3,183,285 5,825,575
- - 9951994
12,338,707 - -
47,731,260 - -
60,648,430 3,183.285 15,777,571
$ 73633288 § 3,352,903 18,603,077

The Notes to the Bosic Financial Statements are anintegral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Total
Debt Epic 2 Governmental Governmental
Granls Service CiP Funds Funds
$ 2,817,994 181,479 § 40,254,473 % 55,371,006 $ 110073220
- 2,200,000 - 54,030,672 125,333,219
- 823,041 - - 2,633,316
- - 6,294,842 12,594,789
- - - 62,212 2,455,519
190,836 5517 - B49.477 4,207,284
3,656,753 - - - 6,992,879
- - - 3,449 919 3,449,919
- - - 35876 35876
- - - - 35,344
8,665,583 3,210,037 40,254,473 120,114,004 267,833,365
1,159,614 798 2,300,958 6,202,649 16,015,615
- - 259,564 562,371 1,103,253
133,542 - - 857,040 7,225,042
- - - 3,093,636 3,449.919
- - - 32,000 32,000
107,380 - - 2,308,668 2,988.010
1,400,556 798 2,560,522 13,056,384 30,813,839
- 720,013 - - 2,504,416
- 720013 - 2,904,416
- - 35,876 71,220
7265027 2,489,226 2%.000,000 59,615,354 107,921,586
- - 8.693.951 47,406,390 66,052,337
- - - - 12,338,707
- - - - 47,731,260
7,265,027 2,489,226 37,693,951 107,057,620 234115110
$ 8,665,583 3,210,037 % 40,254,473 $ 120,114,004 § 267.833,345
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